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JOHN LEWIS PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 JANUARY 2023

The Directors of john Lewis plc (‘the Company’ and together with its subsidiaries ‘the Group'} present the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the 52 week period ended 28

January 2023.

The Company is the principal trading subsidiary of John Lewis Partnership plc (together with its subsidiaries
‘the Partnership’). It owns Waitrose Limited and other companies (see note 29). The Group trades as the
Waitrose and John Lewis brands and has over 74,000 employees — or Partners — for whom the Partnership is

owned in Trust.
Review of performance

Key performance indicators

2023
Financial performance
Revenue (£bn) 10.5
Loss before tax (£m) (125.4)
(Loss}/prof{t beffare Partnership Bonus, tax (68.9)
and exceptional items {£m}
Liguidity' (£bn) 1.5
Borrowings’ (£m) 637.8

The financial year is che 52 weeks ended 28 jJanuary 2023 (prior year: 52 weeks ended 29 january 2022).

2022

108

(272)

180.0

7316

! Liguidity is the cash, short-term investrnents and undrawn committed credit facilities we have available to us, which we can use to settle

kiabilities as they fall due.

? Borrowings consist of £650m of borrowings, less unamortised bond transaction costs and the fair value adjustment for hedged elements

on bonds.
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Performance summary

WeTe on track across many areas of cur Partnership Plan, which gives us great confidence, and we're
responding at pace to the economic environinent as well as the changing nheeds of our customers. This coming
year, we are prioritising where we invest our time and money to deliver three critical prierities: cost out,
margins up and customer focus. Ve ook ahead from a position of strength and the fundamentals of our
business - customer base, liquidity and balance sheet - are robust.

The Partnership's principal internal measure of trading performance is Profitloss before Partnership Bonus, tax
and exceptionals (PB1BE). This comprises trading operating profit for our brands, combined with other
operating costs managed centrally (such as costs of our {London and Bracknell offices, {T, net finance costs,
property costs, depreciation and investment expenses). The loss before tax and exceptional items was £69m in
the year, down frem a £180m profit in 2021/22. Our loss before tax but after exceptional items was £225m,
versus a loss before tax of £27m in 2021/22.

QOur loss before tax and exceptional items is £249m lower than last year, primarily due to:

& ‘Waitrose trading operating profit’ dectined by £125m to £894m, due to challenging trading dynamics,
inflation pressure which increased our cost base by £67m this year and one-off cost inefficiencies,
partially offset by cost savings including £29m of Lean Simple Fast savings and profit growth from new
propositions;

® |ohn Lewis trading operating profit fell by £82m to £676m, due to trading dynamics and inflation,
partially offset by cost savings which includes £47m of Lean Simple Fast savings delivered in the year.
Across our John Lewis operations, and excluding the effect of input cost inflation on goods we sell,
inflation increased our cost base in john Lewis by £70m this year. Freight costs alone were £26m
higher in the year than previously, as pressure on global supply chains created spikes in cost;

®  OQur financial services results are also reported within the Trading operating profit of John Lewis.
Income was up 22%, supported by Partnership Card and rebound of Travei Money after two subdued
years of customer travel;

® Other cost savings relate to the Lean Simple Fast savings below Trading operating profit amounting to
£62m in year. Added to the cost savings shown in Waitrose and [ohn Lewis Trading operating profit,
the combined net saving is £138m in year (£181m of gross savings offset by non recurring savings from
last year of £43m);

®  Our business rates costs are £58m higher this year following the end of the business rates relief
scheme utilised to offset Covid costs. This tax relief was used last year to offset higher operating
costs across the business specific to Covid;

® Higher investment has been made in the Partnership Plan transformation which led te an additional
£38m of non recurring revenue expenditure;

® Exceptionally high rates of inflation in our other operating costs (below Trading operating profit), such
as utility costs increases, added £42m of cost. Total inflation on operating costs (including elements
presented in Trading operating profit of our brands) amounted to £17%m, including £87m in pay;

® A combination of higher rates of interest earned on short term deposits zlong with lower pension and
long leave costs reduced financing charges by £42m;

& Other costs of £7m of additional cost YoY principally refate to new property costs this year for
expansion of our supply chain network to support future growth, pardally offset by actuarial gains on
the long leave provision.

¥ Trading operating profit represents operating profits used to assess the performance of the John Lewis and Whitrose brands and
determine the allocation of resources to them. it excludes centrally managed costs, including fixed property costs and depreciation.
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The highlights from the year were:

WAITROSE

L 4

Waitrose sales’ for the year were £7.3bn, down 3% like for like and in total last year. Revenue was
£6.8bn, down 3% on last year This equates to a reduction in market share from 5.0% to 4.7%". Trading
operating profit fell by £125m to £894m, due to five key drivers: challenging trading dynamics, inflation
pressure and one-off cost inefficiencies, partially offset by cost savings and profit growth from new
propasitians;

Despite customer numbers increasing by 7% in the year, sales volumes were down 0% in the year.
There are a number of factors driving this including record online vofume gains from fast year in part
reversing and a consumer shift co converience, where we're looking to grow our presence in future.
We also saw customers putting fewer items in their basket {(basket size down 15% in shops) and
switching to lower priced products;

High online vofumes last year have now normalised to lower levels, albeit weil above pre pandemic
levels. Online sales this year represented just over 14% of Waitrase sales at average orders per week
of 16B,000. This compares to 17% last year at average weekly orders of 213,000, This 27% drop in
online volumes was expected and contributed significantly to the movement in market share during
the year;

As the UK increasingly returns to pre-Cavid working patterns, with growing hybrid or office-based
working, we have seen, consistent with the wider market, healthy growth in convenience channels. For
example, market growth of 32% in ‘Food to Go’ categories;

As a consequence of low consumer confidence and pressure on household incomes amid the cost of
living crisis, we have seen customers trading down to cheaper ranges; seeking to make their money go
further and shifting their purchase behaviour with smaller baskets but more frequent shopping.
Secondly, we saw an increase in customer marketing through vouchers and other customer
promotions as customers began to spread their spend across supermarkets, convenience channels and
eating out;

Product innovation continued at pace with the faunch of 779 new products including the exclusive
listing of Plants by Deliciousiy Ella. The biggest launches of the year included our Cocks Ingredients
range, which relaunched with 40 new products and our Summer Food Festival range of 71 products
from around the world;

We provided an even greater choice of high quality Meal Deals during the year, and Essentials
maintained its position as the largest value range of any grocer;

Our industry leading propasition saw Whitrose win more Grocer 33 Store of the Week awards than
any other grocer;

Customers benefited from over £100m in personalised money-off rewards through our foyalty
programme, MyWaitrose, which now has nine million members {up by 3%). We relaunched free coffee
for members with 240,000 drinks per week, 12% higher than the comparable period in 2019/20;

The roliout of the John Lewis ‘shop within a Waitrose shop’ continues and we added 50 shops taking
the total to 88, with more pianned this year;

We have expanded Waitrose's presence with third parties, growing our convenience offer: we expect
1o have rolled out Dobbies Food Halls to 44 branches by May 2023, Our partnership with Deliverco
has expanded; now in 222 shops and customers can choose up to 2,500 products. We've seen strong
growth of this proposition, with orders up 33% year-on-year, many of which are to a new, younger
customer base. We began supplying 13 convenience stores in Scodand and Jersey and opened || new
Waitrose shops at Shell forecourts taking the total te 80, with plans for more this financial year.

* All references to sales are trading safes which includes VAT, sale or return and other accounting adjustments.
* Source: Kantar data 52 weeks to 22 January 2023 and 52 weeks to 23 January 2022
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JOHN LEWIS

e John Lewis sales® for the year were £4.9bn, up £16m (0.3%} on a like-for-like basis with last year and
up £13m (0.3%} in total. Revenue was £3.8bn, down 2% on last year. John Lewis Trading operating
profit fell by £82.1m to £675.6m, due to trading dynamics and inflation, partially offset by cost savings;

e  Our split of sales across categories reshaped to close to the last full year pre-pandemic with Fashion
and Technology our largest sales (by value) categories at 37% and 36% of cur sales mix respectively.
Home has been relatively consistent for the fast four years at 27%;

e Footfall tn i shops grew 31% {1eaching 100 mittion tor the first time since before Covid), while
online traffic was down 5% on last year (albeit more than half a billion visits to our online channels),
highlighting the value of both channels working in combination for our customers;

® Rediring our pledge, Never Knowingly Undersold, enabled us to provide even better value for all
customers through a £500m investment in price;

®*  VWe launched our new mid-tier own label range in September, and expanded our entry range
ANYDAY, with 600,000 customers trying it for the first time. Of our 2.7 million ANYDAY customers,
over 70% also bought from our mid-tier john Lewis & Partners range and more than 75% bought
items from our branded ranges, during the year;

e The strength of our offer and expertise is also evident in the record number of personal styling
appointments, with over 60,000 in the year, and nursery advice appointments, at over 21,000;

®  We invested significantly in improving our digital capabilities to inspire customers and be more
convenient: including in stores, online, through our App and our contact centres;

®  We invested £5.4m in 27 shops with store designs using fresh new colours, as well as making it easier
for customers to shop and find seasonal newness in store. We also partnered with our suppliers to
deliver over 180 enhancements across our shop estate;

® Ten thousand Partners completed courses at the School OFf Service, our retail training academy, and
we were named top retailer for customer service by The Institute of Customer Service.

Our Partners have been exceptional in embracing the opportunities and challenges this year has brought.
During the year, we distributed £26.7m from cash reserves to support our Partners with the cost of living
crisis (a £500 payment pro rata), provided free meals across the business over winter at a cost of £5m and
doubled the financial assistance fund for Partners facing hardship, to £800,000.

income in John Lewis Financial Services was up 22% on last year. During the year, we acquired 40% new
custemers (gross), with Partnership Card, Point of Sale credit and Travel Money performing particularly well.
Since the completion of the Partnership Card transfer; which wasn'’t easy for all customers given the scale of
the change, we have seen average weekly spend of these customers increase by over 20% towards the end of
last year. Our pet insurance product relaunched in Q2 and offers an annual video health check for pets,
winning a Which! Best Buy. We will shortly launch the trial of a new proposition that helps parents invest for
the long term future of their children with a John Lewis junior ISA.

With over 20 million customers, loyalty card members (comprising nine million at Waitrese and five millicn at
John Lewis), 360 stores, over 500 million website visits per year and 2.8 million readers of Waitrose Food
Magazine per month, our physical and digital estate is uniquely placed to offer opportunities for third party
brands to engage with our customers through our channels. We have significant plans to develop this business
furcher.

The areas of focus for the year ahead include:
® [nvesting £100m across the year in lowering Waitrose prices:
® Increasing our presence in the convenience market through partnerships with third parties such as
Deliverco, Dobbies, Shell and local convenience shops to bolster and enhance our convenience reach

for our customers;

* All references to sales are Total trading sales which includes VAT, sale or return and other accounting adjustments,
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e Launching the trial of a new propesition that helps parents invest for the long term future of their
children with a John Lewis Junior ISA;

e  Tripling our original efficiency saving targec to ~£900m by January 2026 in order to help us return to
healthy profit.

Exceptional items

During the year, we took the difficult decision to close two Waitrose branches and also reduce the space at
both our Bracknell and London offices. We paid our Partners a onetime cost of living payment of £50¢ per
Partner (pro rata), amounting to £27m. Additionally, we have recorded a net impairment charge for the year of
£113m against the value of our store estate. This is a non-cash accounting adjustment reflecting the
performance in Waitrose. Together, these have totalled a net charge of £156m (2022: £16)m charge).

Cash and liquidity

Our total liquidity at the year end remains strong at £4.5bn, including £1.04bn cash and short-term
investments, and undrawn bank facilities of £420m. This allows us to invest with confidence in our Partnership
Plan and meet our obligations. We carry £1.7bn of Total net debts including £1.9bn of leases and a pension
deficit of £102m on an accounting basis, with £350m of financial borrowings due to be repaid in the next two
years (£50m term loan maturing in December 2023 and £300m bond maturing in January 2025).

Liquidity has dropped by £473m from last year end. Qur plans for 2022/23 anticipated much of the reduction
as we sought to invest strongly in our Partnership Plan and repay £150m of term loans in the year. YWe had
been operating with elevated cash positions from raising additional debt during the pandemic, all of which have
now been repaid. In 2022/23, we paid a £46m bonus and £27m cost of living support payment te our Partners.

Despite weaker trading this year, we have positive cash generated from operations before Partnership Bonus of
£342m (2021/22: £669m).

Pensions

At the year end, we had an IAS {9 accounting pension deficit of £102m (£100m after deferred tax), compared
to a surplus of £474m in January 2022 (£33 1m post deferred tax). The accounting position reflects the gap
between the market value of pension assets held by our defined benefit scheme and the IAS 19 value of our
pension liabilities. At the year end, IAS [9 pension liabilities were £4,490m, down from £6,752m at january
2022, with the reduction largely attributable to an increase in the discount rate as a result of increasing interest
rates, partly offset by this year’s inflation figure being higher than expected. The market value of pension assets
was £4,388m, down from £7,226m at January 2022. The reduction was largely due to a fall in the value of
liability driven investments designed to hedge interest rate and inflation risks related to the pension scheme’s
liabilities (as measured on an actuarial basis).

Following positive progress over most of 2022, the pension scheme was affected by extreme market volatility
in September and October following the UK government’s ‘mini budget’, which created significant inscability in
the economy and financial markets. in order to preserve suitable liquidity within the Trust’s assets, the hedge
{designed to protect against rmovements in interest rates and inflation) was reduced from 100% to 75% of
assets. The Trustee is currently in the process of increasing this back to the 100% target and expects to be
back to this level of hedging within the next few months. The Trustee continues to manage scheme risks
carefully and appropriately and the pension scheme remains liquid and well funded despire the earlier market
volatility.

Ethics and sustainability

Qur Ethics and Sustainability (E&S) strategy is in service of the Partnership Purpose, and is broken down into
six focus areas which we believe are all important in order for us to be a more ethical and sustainable business.
By delivering this strategy we will play our part in protecting the planet and respecting and supporting the
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interests of all those touched by our business. Building strong trusted relationships inside and outside of the
Partnership is key to delivering our vision for ethics and sustainability and long-term business success.

The Partnership Purpose

Working in Partnership for a Happier World

Our Echics and Sustainability strategy

PEOPLE IN SUPPLY
CHAINS
Protecting the rights of workers
in our supply chains and
championing worker voice

CLIMATE ACTION AND
BIODIVERSITY
Reducing greenhouse gas
emissions in our operations and
supply chains, and protecting and
enhancing nature through

SOCIAL IMPACT
Connecting and giving back to
communities and charitable
causes

biodiversity
AGRICULTURE, CIRCULARITY AND HEALTH, NUTRITION AND
AQUACULTURE, WASTE WELLBEING
FISHERIES AND RAW Designing with circularity in mind | Enabling customers, Partners and
MATERIAL SOURCING and eradicating waste communities to lead healthy and

Guaranteeing a fair deaf for happy lives
producers, and supporting them

to farm with nature

Our ethics and sustainability highlights for the past year include the following:

& We reduced greenhouse gas emissions by 28.88% compared to the 2018 baseline and continue to
make progress towards our goal of reaching net zero emissions in our operations by 2035;

® Reduced the overall Group’s energy consumption by 20.1% compared to our 2018 baseline, on track
to meeting our target of 25% by 2028;

e Underlining cur commitment to our farmers, we pledged and substantially paid an extra £56m to
invest in our ong-standing UK suppliers to maintain high standards as they struggled with significantly
rising costs;

+ We won more Compassion in World Farming awards than any other UK retailer;

s In 2022, as we considered both our heritage and our Purpose, we took stock of the impact of cur
business on the world around us and reaffirmed our fong-term relationship with nature. Our founder,
John Spedan Lewis, was passionate about the environment and the wildlife within it. So it makes sense
that we have developed Qur Plan for Nature;

*  We launched Qur ‘Building Happier Futures’ programme to provide jobs for young people who have
grown up in the care system, and the ‘Building Happier Futures’ fund has raised over £im;

¢  Cur customers and Partners donated £4.6m, to which we added a further £5.0m, to local charities
including FareShare and Home-Start, te support those in need within our communities and beyond;

* Tosupport cur commitment to reducing waste we launched our new fashion rental service with aver
3,000 customers registered on the site. We also partnered with thelittleloop to offer 1,500 lohn Lewis
own-brand childrenswear preducts to rent.

You can find more on our Echics and Sustainability strategy, ambition and performance in our Ethics and
Sustainability Report 2022/23 or at www.johnlewispartnership.co.uk/csr. john Lewis Partnership plc’s Annual
Report and Accounts 2023 (pages 21 ro 31) includes our greenhouse gas emissions, energy consumption and
energy efficiency action from January 2022 to December 2022, in line with the UK Government’s Streamlined
Energy and Carbon Reporting (*SECR’) regulation, and our disclasure against the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures {'TCFD’) framework.

John Lewis ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023



JOHN LEWIS PLC

Section 172(1) Statement and Statements on engagement with employees, suppliers, customers
and others

This secticn forms the Company's section §72(1) statement. In accordance with the Large and Medium-Sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended by the Companies
{Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018), this section also constitutes the Company's statement on
engagement with, and having due regard to the interests of, our Partners (employees) and other key
stakeholders.

The Company’s ultimate parent company is John Lewis Partnership plc, which is owned in Trust for the benefit
of its members, the Partners employed in the Partnership. Whilst being Directors of the Company, and having
acted in a way they consider is most likely to promote the success of the Company, the Directors on the
Board are also members of the Partnershin’s Executive Team, which manages the Group’s business as part of
the Partnership’s governance structure. In carrying out their duties, the Directors have had in mind the
Partnership’s Purpose, which was refreshed at the start of 2022 and is set out in the Partnership’s Constitution
(available online at www.johnlewispartnership.co.uk). The opening section states: ‘Our Partnership is an
ongoing experiment to find happier, more trusted ways of doing business, for the benefit of us all. Ve work
together to create a successful business and a fairer, more sustainable future for Partners. customers, suppliers
and communities’.

The Purpose is in many ways aligned to the matters to which Directors must have regard under section 172(1)
of the Companies Act 2006 through its objectives to find more trusted ways of doing business and to work
together to create a successful business and a fairer, more sustainable future for Partners, customers, suppliers
and communities. Further information on decision-making and engagement with stakeholders in the
Partnership can be found in John Lewis Partnership plc's Annual Report and Accounts 2023 available at
www,johnlewispartnership.co.uk.

Decision-making at the Board

Certain matters, under the Company’s governance arrangements, are reserved for decision by the Directors.
Directors are briefed on the background and reasons for any proposal and the associated costs, benefits and
risks, as well as any potential impacts and risks for our customers, Partners and other stakeholders including
our suppliers, the community and environment and how they are to be managed. The Directors take these
factors into account before making a final decision that they believe is in the best interests of the Company and
its members - our Partners.

Long term sustainability

The second Principle of the Constitution includes the objective of making “sufficient profit to retain our
financial independence, invest in our Partners and pursue our Purpose’. The shared aim of the Partnership
Chairman, Partnership Council and Partnership Board, the Partnership’s three governing authorities, is to
safeguard the Partnership's future, enhance its prosperity and ensure its integrity.

Key stakeholders and community and environmental impact

When it is carrying forward that aim, the Board keeps in mind the impact the Group has on different
stakeholder groups. It is not possible to have a financially healthy business, and thus a return for Partners as the
beneficiaries of the Trust that holds the Partnership, on a sustainable basis if this is at the expense of other
stakeholders. These stakeholders include: our customers, whose needs we respond to and with whom we aim
to build long-term relationships; our producers and suppliers from whom we purchase goods and services; the
communities and the environments in which we operate; and our financial stakehoiders, including the
Partnership Pensions Trust, relationship banks and holders of John Lewis plc financial bonds. Alongside these,
engagement with campaign groups and non-governmental organisations, particularly those working on ethics
and sustainability, is key. Partners are the thread that draws these other stakeholders together, acting as
owners of the business and more than employees. Information on the engagement methods in the Partnership,
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which are used by the Company's Directors, are in John Lewis Partnership pic’s Annual Report and Accounts
2023 (pages 33 to 39).

FPartners
Qur Purpose is clear that, as owners of the business, Partners are more than employees and share knowledge,

power and profit. The Constitution empowers all Partners to shape the future of the Partnership. Hearing
Partner opinion and ensuring this is taken into account in decision-making is intrinsic to our employee
ownership model.

Partners receive updates about the Partnership from regular dialogue with management, email updates,
pedcasts, viogs, the Partnership's Intranet and through the weekly independent Gazette publication. Further
information on the engagement methods in the Partnership, which are used by the Company’s Directors, and
on the democratic structures used to channel Partner views are on pages 33 to 34 and 56 to 59 of John Lewis
Partnership pic’s Annual Report and Accounts, available at www johnlewisparinership.co.uk.

Customers
We take pride in making our customers happy. We put everything we have into everything we do, earning the

loyalty and trust that we need to be successful. Qur Partners support this by providing specialist expertise,
curation and advice to our customers. The Partnership aims to offer its customers the best value in the
marketplace for goods and services of comparable quality and avaifability. The Group’s own brand ranges offer
quality products for every budget, and we offer enhanced payment and credit services, We continually strive to
optimise our customer experience by monitoring key customer metrics including Brand Advocacy (Net
Promoter Score) and Customer Satisfaction (CSAT), reviewing performance against our historic measures and

also our competitive market set.

The Partnership’s customer research team are the voice of our customers, seeking to understand how
customers and potential customers think and feel. We gather their experiences and expectations through
surveys, face-to-face research, customer feedback to Partners and contact centres and external data sources.
We also manage a dedicated Customer Perspectives Panel allowing deep dives, concept testing and more
collaborative research on new services and products, to ensure we understand the customer engagement and
reaction ahead of launches. Regular customer reports are produced for management 2nd Directors for
Partnership Board meetings, tracking and reviewing emerging trends, as well as measuring the business
response and feeding in data to support both strategic and tactical initiatives and decision-making.

Producers and suppliers
A strong, trusted and transparent supply chain is integral to our success as a retailer. Our aim is to take a

long-term view, working clesely with producers and suppliers across our supply chains, forming mutually
beneficial partnerships and ensuring workers are treated fairly. It is the strong working relationships we form
that allow us to source high quality, more sustainable and ethical products for our customers.

The Partnership Board monitors relationships with the Partnership’s suppliers in a number of ways including:
review by the Partnership’s Audit and Risk Committee of compliance with the Groceries Supply Code of
Practice; and the steps the Partnership is taking to meet its ethics and sustainability goals, to protect the
human rights of those who grow, pick, pack or make our products and to prevent modera slavery and human
trafficking in our business and supply chains through the Partnership’s Ethics and Sustainability Committee.
Fuether information is available at www.johnlewispartnhetship.co.uk/esr.

The Partnership engages with suppliers in a number of ways, including through our dedicated online supplier
portals and supplier forums, such as the Waitrose Farming Partnership (which encompasses the Livestock
Steering Group, the Fish Forum and Agronomy Group), and a number of programmes and advocacy work
including The John Lewis Better Jobs Programme and The Waitrose & Partners Foundation.
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Communities in which we operate

In line with our Purpose, we are working in Partnership for a Happier World. We are driven to make a
difference to people’s lives and create positive social impact, using the skills and resources within the
Partnership to support where help is needed.

The Partnership Board monitors refationships with communities in which we operate via the Partnership’s
Ethics and Sustainability Committee, including the Partnership’s response to the increasing social challenges
faced by today's society.

The Partnership engages on matters impacting communities via a pumber of channels including our national
charity partnerships. We select national charity partners that support our ambition to improve the lives of
those most vuinerable in the community and with a geographical presence matching our estate where possible,
giving our Partners the opporcunity to make a difference locally.

in November 2022, the Partnership launched its Building Happier Futures programme which seeks to support
children and young people who have experienced care. Ve aim to keep the voice of the community at the
heart of what we do. To that end, we are supported by an Advisory Group made up of field experts and
care-experienced individuals and we have partnered with two national charities, Action for Children and Who
Cares? Scotland. Through a mixture of customer and Partnership contributions, we raised £1.Im for this
programme.

Financial stakeholders

This includes the John Lewis Partnership Pensions Trust, relationship banks, credit insurers and folders of john
Lewis plc bonds. Through our website, we share details on our performarce, and the Partnership’s Treasury
team provides further detail as needed. YVe invite our financial stakeholders to join cur financial updates and
announcements, which gives them an opportunity to hear and engage with the Directors and senior
management. YWe maintain an open and coliaborative relationship with our pension trustee, providing financial
information, and proactive engagement ahead of material transactions.

Environmental impact

The Partnership is committed to sourcing the raw materials used in our own-brand products more sustainably,
collaborating with others to drive positive change and being transparent about our progress. We recognise the
potential negative impacts that raw materials used in our products can have on people, animals and the nacural
environment,

The Partnership Board monitors environmental impact via the Partnership’s Ethics and Sustainability
Committee, including responding to the environmental challenges faced by today's society and those which may
impact our business operations. Waitrose and John Lewis leadership teams attend internal workshops used to
establish programmes to reduce the environmental impact on those matters most material to the Partnership.

The Partnership engages on environmental issues via a number of stakehoiders including our Partners, third
parties and as signatories of a number of industry sustainability initiatives. This engagement ensures we have
visibility of emerging threats as well as opportunities, are able to communicate and advocate collaborarively
with the wider retail sector and develop out own initiatives to reduce our environmental footprint.

Business conduct

The Group’s reputation for its standard of business conduct is a key driver of customer perception of our
brands. All Partners are expected to contribute to the maintenance of high standards of business conduct, and
the Constitution provides our framework to do this for all Partners. It includes specific Rules for Partners
refating to maintaining honesty, fairness, courtesy and promptness in their business conduct.

Acting fairly as between the Company’s members
The Company and Group form part of a group which is held in Trust for the benefit of its Partners, and their

John L ewis plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2023



JOHN LEWIS PLC

interests are at the forefront of Board decision-making. The first Principle of the Constitution stares that we
treat people with fairness, courtesy and respect. All Partners benefit from an interest in the ownership of the

Partnership.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Our principal risks are those that have been assessed as high or very high risk in the pursuit of delivering the
Partnership Plan when considering the potential impact and likelthood of occurrence. Oversight and
monitoring takes place formally on a quarterly basis through the governance mechanisms set cut on pages 42
to 50 of John Lewis Partnership plc’s Annual Report and Accounts 2023.

Qur principal risks are:
1. Insufficient profit to achieve our Purpose;
. Change delivery;
. Information security;
. Regulatory non-compliance;

Partner differentiation;

2

3

4

5  Propaosition;
6

7. Customer experience;
g

. Partner wellbeing;

9.  Ethics and sustainability;
10. Strategic resilience,

What has changed since fast year?
Managing our principal risks within appetite this year has been challenging. Significant levels of internal change

coupled with volatility in the external environment has exacerbated the likelihood of some principal risks and
has given rise to a re-prioritisation of investment in mitigating activity. As a result, mitigations delivered have
served to maintain a generally similar overall risk position to last year. The challenging backdrop has sharpened
our focus and increased the time we have spent reviewing and navigating cur most important potential risk
exposures and mitigations in service of achieving our Partnership Plan. Consequently, risk management has
matured. Additional mitigations have been identified and delivered in respect of our transformation, driving
sufficient profic and differentiation on our distinctive Partnership character and proposition for our customers
and Partners. In addition, over 300 senior leaders and change professionals have actended behavioural training
in risk management, so as to more quickly and better navigate risk in decision making. This work, alongside
other support to develop capability, has noticeably improved the maturity of risk management across the
Partnership this year.

Changes to our risk profile over the past twelve months are noted below:

e The historical External environment principal risk which tracked how changes outside Partnership
controf impacted delivery of business as usual operations and strategic objectives was replaced with a
new Strategic resilience principal risk, placing greater focus on the concepts within the
Partnership’s control, namely whether our Plan is right for the envirenment in which we operate.
Further detail is provided in the principal risk table below;

e The likelihood of Insufficient profit to achieve our Purpose risk was increased in recognition that
current market cenditions are making a return to sufficient profitability significantly more challenging;

*  The likelihood of Proposition risk increased in the period as inflation adversely impacted consumer
spending;

®  The likelihood of Partner wellbeing risk increased as challenging internal and external conditions
created increasing uncertainty for our Partners;

» Customer experience risk likelihood increased in Waitrose reflecting changing consumer habits
and internal investment prioritisation; whereas the risk impact decreased in John Lewis as a result of
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the execution of risk mitigation plans driving improvements in performance metrics to an improved

and more stable position,

Principal risks are described on the following pages, together with an explanation of how they are managed or

mitigated.

Managing our principal risks

The external risk environment in which we operate remains challenging with a range of existing, evolving and

new emerging risks driving reduced margins in traditional retail. The Partnership Plan is our strategic response

to this environment and its effective operationalisation is our single most important mitigation.

1. Insufficient profit to achieve our Purpose {increased likelihood)

Risk

Risk that we won't make sufficient
profit to achieve our Purpose; the
impact of which would be a
combination of reduced
competitiveness and ukimately
commercial failure, loss of Partner faith
and demaocratic vitality due to lack of
suitable Partner rewards and inability
te maintain our distinctive character.

Key causes and consequences

An inability to diversify fast enough,
trade profitably. take out costs and/or
allocate capital effectively in a
challenging retail environment,
combined with increasing inflation,
could mean that we fail to deliver the
Purpose, Parwnership Plan and
Partnership Profic.

Current controls and

improvements in the year

& Monthly performance review
reporting to the Partnership
Transformation Cffice, Partnership
Executive Team and Partnership
Board, with corrective action taken
as required

¢ Delivering growth and margin
improvement initiatives as part of
strategy delivery across retail and
new services e.g. john Lewis Brand
Promise launched (for all life's
moments), Waitrose propositions
launched including dine in for two
meal deals, myWaitrose and My
John Lewis loyalty schemes
relaunched, growing out Financial
Services business inchuding
Partnership card switchover, new
and expanded partnerships
including Deliveroo and Dobbies
and School of Service principles and
standards developed with over
{0,000 Partners trained Parthership
wide

¢ Cost savings ‘roadmap’ for
achieving the required cost savings
in the Partnership Plan developed,
approved and used to identify
priority portfolio funding areas

¢ 2022 Partnership Plan refresh
embedded in annual cycle

e Methodology for defining and
measuring sufficient profit, financial
targets and key sensitivities
articulated

o Refreshed financial strategy to

Further actions planned
e Enhance financial reporting and
toofs to provide greater visibility
of profitability
® Monitor delivery of the cost
savings achieved against the
roadmap
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determine key sensitivities and
downturn playbook produced
Ongoing monthly Financial
Performance updates to all Partners
through Gazette and Parcner
Intranet to encourage a
cost-conscious mindset

Budges targets for leaders have
been communicated and reflected
in the Partnership Plan Objectives
with quarterly progress updates

2. Change Delivery (no movement)

Risk

Change activity does not realise the
desired benefits and drives unforeseen
costs and consequences.

Key causes and consequences
Business, operating model and change
complexity combined with the valume
and pace of the change required and
capacity to receive change, could result
in increased costs, disruption to trade,
poor customer and Partner experience
and missing our transformation
ambitions.

Current controls and
improvements in the year

Annual Transformation and
Operating Plan implemented and
enabling the Partnership
Transfermation and Operations
Delivery Group (TxQDG) to make
informed decisions on optimal
resource allocation

Financial spend authoerity process
reviewed and changes implemented
New change profession hub
faunched

Partnership Chief Transformation
and Technology Officer and
Partnership Transformation
Director appointed

Roles and responsibilities defined
and visibility of change and portfolic
ownership communicated to the
Partnership Executive Team and
Partnership Board

Prioritised investment portfolio
communicated

Further actions planned
» Development of a multi-year

Transformation roadmap translating
strategic outcomes into
programmes of change

Finalise Transformation
organisational design

Review capability gaps to be built
into roadmap to enable and support
Partnership Plan delivery

Improved portfolio management of
prioritised activity to deliver the
Parcnership Plan

Set out Transformation capability
roadmap plan with immediate
priority areas to include a reset of
reporting, set up portfolio
management capability and improve
partner communication and
engagement

Further refinement of Change and
Portfolio governance

3. Information security (no movement)

Risk

Loss of key customer, Partner andfor
commercially sensitive data leading to
financial, regulatory, legal, operarional
and reputational issues.

Key causes and consequences
External and internal threats, behaviour

Current controls and
improvements in the year

Information Security Steering
Group established with
representation from Parcnership
Data and Insights, Partnership Data
Protection Officer and Partnership

Further actions planned

Continue to deliver further 1T
Security related projects

External benchmarking exercise, to
support strategy and pricrities
Mature control framework
reporting and ongoing delivery of
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which fails to protect the integrity of

data in both Partnership and third party

systems could result in loss of key
customer, Partner or business data,
causing internal and/or excernat

reputational damage, interruption of IT

service and trading, fines, unforeseen
costs and regulatory consequences.

Technology and Transformation
teams

& Control improvement strategy and
plan underway

e Governance exists for all
Technology and Transformation
sponsored investment and
Partnership Chief Information
Security Office engagement in place

& Mandatory Partner training
(handling information)

e Controls Assurance framework
introduced and continues to be
extended acrass key systems

® Security embedded within
Technology and Change risk
management processes

s (nformation Security and Data
Protection policies and standards
maintained

® Security impact assessments
undertaken for projects and
programmes to ensure compliance
with security standards

& Positive confirmation of new third
party adherence to policy

e Robust security monitoring and
alerting

improvements per new information
security strategy

& Ongoing monitoring, training and

controls improvement

4. Regulatory non-compliance (no m

ovement)

Risk
Failure to comply with key regulatory
reguirements.

Key causes and consequences
Lack of awareness, understanding or
control of key and/or changing
regulatory requirements could have
legal, reputational and/or financial
damage which, depending on scale,
could cause major trading disruption.

Current controls and

improvements in the year

® Policies and standards maintained
for identified areas of Regudatory
compliance such as Anti-Bribery
and Corruption and Gifts and
Hospitality

s Mandatory Partner training with
improved completion rates {and
ongoing menitoring)

e Clear Executive accountability for
all key regulatory areas

# Horizon scanning of new/changing
regulations and the potential
Partnership impact and response

e Financial Crime risk assessment
completed by the Partnership

Further actions planned

e Continued implementation of
improvement activity arising from
regulatory assurance reviews

® Continued focus on mandatory
training to maintain completion
rates

s Annual review and sign-off of the
Partnership’s accounting policy
manual to identify new or amended
compliance requirements in
accounting standards

o Deliver new Financial Services
Quality Assurance Framework and
Financial Crime Remediation Plan
for improved controls
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Money Laundering Reporting
Officer

¢ implementing measures in response
to High in Fat, Salt and Sugar
legislation

® Programme of independent high
risk regulatory assurance reviews
Mature oversight and monitoring
Annual gender pay reporting

® People focused Internal Controls
framework, including a database of
risks, controls and assurance
mechznisms

5. Proposition (likelihood increased)

Risk

Failure to deliver profitable,
market-leading propositions to inspire
our customers and maintain
competitive advantage.

Key causes and consequences
Poor customer insight, range, quality,
pricing strategy, lack of investment
and/or availability of products or
competitor disruption could negatively
impact the customer proposition and
its competitiveness, leading to loss of
customers, erosion of profit margins,
reputational damage and failure to
deliver growth plans.

Current controls and

improvements in the year

e Regular strategic risk review and
monitoring by leadership and the
Partnership Executive Team

® Regular strategy implementation,
customer and performance metrics
evaluation

e Continued development of high
quality, innovative propositions,
tested with customers for
relevance and consideration
Focus on shop standards
Focus on experience enhancements
across the customer journey

« myWaitrase and My john Lewis
loyalty schemes relaunched

e Waitrose propositions launched,
including dine n for two meal deals
and scan pay go rolled out

& John Lewis Brand Promise launched
in September 2022 - for all life’s
moments

& John Lewis re-launched its
own-brand mid-tier proposition,
and delivered additional beauty
brands and beauty hall
enhancements with increased
Christmas 2022 scope

¢ John Lewis Financial Services
Partnership card switchover
completed

Further actions planned

e Continued differentiation on own
brand products for example in
home, fashion, Waitrose No. | and
Waitrose ‘dine in for two' meal
deals, as well as further
development of John Lewis Financial
Services product range

& Significant focus on reinforcing value
across 2 number of price points,
including Waitrose investment in
value throughout the year and john
Lewis’ ‘quality at every price’
campaign

& Family Life launch to bring family
advice, products and services to
John Lewis customers from Baby to
Tween (John Lewis)

e Stock management changes to
improve perfect order

® Online enhancements to improve
website and app experience for
customers

& Systems advancements to improve
stock availability and ranging

® Ongoing range and category
reviews, including bringing in
tranded products that complement
overall range architecture

& Development of more personalised
offers and experiences for loyalty
members
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¢ Launch of circularity propositions

such as John Lewis clothing rental,
Fashion Cycle and Beauty Cycle

6. Partner differentiation (no movement)

Risk

The responsibilities and benefits of
membership are not sufficienty felt and
experienced by Partners and/or do not
drive a distinctive and better business
in service of our Purpose.

Key causes and consequences
Lack of clarity on, and tangible impac:
of, the responsibilities and rewards of
being a Partner could lead to Partners
not feeling or delivering a differentiated
experience, leading to Partner and
customer dissatisfaction.

Current controls and
improvements in the year

Our Partnership Values bring to life
what we ‘give and get’ as Partners
and how we support, challenge and
find meaning as a community
everyday

Our Purpose has been updated to
provide a clear and unambiguous
message about why we exist, who
we are and the three guiding
principles that drive us: Happier
Pecople, Happier Business and
Happier World

Earning membership - a 90 day
process to ensure that all new
Partners are right for our business
and our business is right for them
by checking they understand and
demonstrate the Partnership
Values, have the skills and
capabilities we need and have
demonstrated the behaviours we
aspire to as a Partnership

Our Partner handbook clearly
outlines the benefits of membership
in the Partnership as well as the
rules and frameworks that keep us
safe

The Constitution embodies the
ideas, rules and values of the
Partnership’s experiment in
industrial democracy and explains
the role of Partners within thag, as
well as some of the key aspects of
our Distinctive Character that
makes the Partnership different
Demacracy structure and channels,
including Partnership Council and
Forum, with support from
Democratic Vitality function
ensuring the voice of Partners is
heard as part of our democratic

Further actions planned
e Continued focus on reimagined

approach to performance,
specifically recognition and regular
conversations on wellbeing,
contribution and development
Modernised and simplified pay
strategy

Purpose activation plan to embed
purpose in gverything we do and
ensure purpose actively influences
our decisions

Increase effectiveness and efficiency
of the co-ownership model through
the Future of Democracy project
and new accountability framework
Leaders improve role modelling of
the benefits of co-ownership and
the differentiation this brings to
Partners and customers

Refreshed Capability policy
launching April 2023
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principles and decision making
within the Partnership

» Diversity of Partnership Councit
supplemented with additional
Partners under 25 years of age

¢ Democratic Vitality definition
updated and aligned to purpase.

® One-off £500 pro rata cost of living
support payment for all Partners
announced and delivered

¢ Doubled financial assistance fund
for partners and introduced more
support to help partners manage
their finances

® free food in the Partner Dining
Room over winter

® Sharing financial and wider business
performance more transparently
and frequently with Partners

» | eadership behaviours are now
embedded in our leadership
learning programmes and appear
across the Partner lifecycle

7. Customer experience (likelihood increased; impact decreased)

Risl

Customers do not receive
differentiated, excellent customer
service across touchpoings,

Key causes and consequences
Systems, data, process, and the store
environment impact service quality and
convenience in store and online,
resulting in declining customer
experience and loyalty, and a gap
between customer expectation and
reality.

Current controls and

improvements in the year

¢ John Lewis Customer Experience
strategy defined to identify and
address friction and opportunity
across customer journeys

# School of Service principles and
standards developed, with over
10,000 Partners trained Partnership
wide and the John Lewis Service at
Peak campaign and ‘At Your
Service' 2023 service plan launched

e Branch Operational Procedures in
place
Partner training delivered
Delivery of Regular ‘Customer
Voice’ meetings

¢ Customer insight data and key
performance indicators, including
Have Your Say, Customer
Satisfaction, Custemer Voice
(including complaints and queries)
and Net Promoter Scores

Further actions planned

& |mplementation of a new telephony
system for customer service
support

® Continue School of Service training
to develop Partners skills,
knowledge and confidence to sell
with high quality service

s New john |ewis Service Sighatures
pilot to drive a consistent
Partner-led experience in stores and
contact centres
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® Weekly performance report
reviewed, including metrics for
product availability

8. Partner wellbeing (increased likelihocod)

Risk

Partners' sense of wellbeing is
threatened by societal and
organisational uncertainty and change.

Key causes and consequences
Pressure on Partners relating to the
longer term impact of the pandemic (in
respect of both physical and mental
health and social impacts), cost of living
challenges and/or significant
organisational change and job insecurity
could lead to deterioration in Partner
wefllbeing, increased absence, loss of
talent and failure to deliver the
Partnership Plan.

Current controls and

improvements in the year

# New Health and VVellbeing strategy
introduced, defining what Wellbeing
means in the Partnership and
clearly connecting Wefilbeing and
Purpose

¢  Wellbeing support services such as
Wellbeing Support, Occupational
Health and Personnel Policy and
Advice are in place to provide
Partners with mental and physical
health, emotional, financial and
bereavement support

* Cost of Living information cascaded
along with refreshed advice on
emaotianat support: posters,
Gazette coverage, podcasts and
Partner Choice campaigns

e One-off £500 pro rata cost of living
support payment for all Partners
announced and delivered

e Mechanism for simpler payment of
hardship grants implemented

e Monitoring of the Partner Choice
membership (non financial rewards
and benefits)

Further actions planned

e Deliver Wellbeing strategy including
quarterly VWellbeing themes for
2023

# Maintain routine measurement of
Partner Welibeing with roiling
Partner surveys and benchmarking
against the UK population

e Delivery of pilot mental health
awareness course and Wellbeing
workshops

® Wellbeing course in development
for fate 2023 roflout

o Wellbeing Retreat tested in March
2023

* Community Cafes being evolved in
2023 to combat isolation and
loneliness in local communities

® Mechapism for faster payment of
hardship grants due early 2023

e ‘Pay It Forward’ scheme to be
implemented following successful
proof of concept delivery in January
2023

9. Ethics and sustainability (no movement)

Risk
Failure to live up to our ethics and
sustainability ambition.

Key causes and consequences
Central to the Partnership Plan and our
Purpose, rising stakeholder
expectations, eConomic pressures,
increasing competitor activity, broad
and complex supply chains and the
need to invest in systems, processes,
data and people. Falling short could
cause reputational damage through loss

Current controls and

improvements in the year

s Partnership Human Rights policy

® Stringent animal welfare
requirements (progression
supporting ‘Best Retailer’ and ‘Best
Rertailer Innovation’ in Compassion
in World Farming awards)

® Improved visibility, monitoring and
ethical compliance of the supply
chain, including the factory audits
programme

Further actions planned

& Improving the sustainability
credentials of own-label products
and services, including dara quality,
analysis and reporting, and a singie
use packaging reduction rarget and
rcadmap

e Continuing to strengthen animal
welfare credentials

e Deliver climate and carbon
commitments including 2035 net
zero operations pathway, science
based targets for scopes ), 2 and 3,
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of trust, with knock-on effects on
trading performance.

e Developed and submitted science
based targets {climace)

¢ Improved governance and ways of
working

® Product certification standards and
targets

e Traceability systems maintained and
improved

e External targets and reporting e.g.
E&S report and Human Rights
Report

o TCFD climate scenario analysis {see
pages 24 to 31 of john Lewis
Partnership plc’s Annual Report and
Accounts 2023)

® Dedicated agricultural supply chains
in key product categories

e launched Building Happier Futures
programme to support Care
Experienced community and
partners

and further TCFD climate scenario
analysis

e Continue commitment to Building
Happier Futures

e Continue to improve visibility,
monitoring and ethical compliance
of the supply chain, partcularly with
goods not for resale analysis

& |mprove communication and
engagement with ethics and
sustainability activity

10. Strategic Resilience (new)

Risk

Our strategy may not respond to the
changes in the external environment
sufficiently or fast enough to secure the
future success of the Partnership.

Key causes and consequences
Reduced margins due to changing
customer behaviour and confidence -
exacerbated by the cost of living crisis -
and competitor activity, may result in
an inability to sustain financial
performance and meet customer
needs.

Current controls and

improvements in the year

® Partnership Plan created and
refreshed annually as part of
business planning

e Material progress in scoring,
planning and delivery of key Lean
Simple Fast (LSF) programmes,
giving increased confidence in
benefits

e Increased savings target with
regular progress reporting against it

e Priorities and investment plan for
2023 agreed and signed off by the
Board

+ Monthly portfolic and
transformation delivery reporting

® John Lewis brand promise launched
and customer experience strategy
completed

& Embedded in key trade and
business organisations

Further actions planned

e Continue to track progress against
the Partnership Plan and ensure
Ptan continues to reflect changes in
the external environment and
internal performance

& Ongoing strategy development
Continue to engage and lobby
through trade groups
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Looking ahead

Our principal risk portfolio will continue to be monitored through our governance inte year three of the
Partnership Plan. Further maturing of our risk management framework to support decision making in pursuit
of the Partnership Plan is important. Strong progress on developing maturity has been made in the last 12
months to clarify governance, information flows and our risk management coolkit, all of which form a solid
foundation for risk navigation in decision making for 2023 and beyond. We will review our tolerances in
refation to risk appetite with the Board in 2023 and work will continue to broaden and embed the behaviourai
change started in 2022, to continue to develop the effectiveness of our risk culture by cascading behavioural
learnings down to more Partners across the Partnership.

Viability statement

The UK Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code’) requires Directors of all Companies with a Premium Listing
to make a statement cn the viability of their business within their annual reports. Although the Company is not
required to adhere to the requirements of the Code, in the case of the Viability Statement we believe that the
Code provides the best framework for the Directors to communicate how they have assessed the Group's
ability to remain commercially viable in line with best practice, and to show how they continue to uphold their
constitutional obligation to protect the long-term health of the Group. This takes into account the Group's
current position {pages 30 to 105); current strategy {pages 3 to 7); and risks and uncertainties (pages 12 to
2h0.

Assessment period

The Partnership Plan is designed to develop cur business over the long term and is underpinned by work in
recent years to strengthen the Partnership’s and Group’s balance sheet and financial sustainability, with £1.5bn
in total liquidity available at the date of approval of these financial statements. As shown below, a wide variety
of time horizons are relevant to the management of the Group:

i 2 3 4 5 ] 8 10+
Strategy Years 3-5 of the five year Partnership Plan Extended Plan
Forecasting and Detailed Currency and
budgeting budget commaodity hedging

forecasts

Financiai strategy Anayal funding and liquidity plan Funding the Partnership Long-term financial scracegy
and funding Plan
Asset lives Majority of lease payments subject to market review every five

years

Useful ecenemic lives for intangible assets

Useful ecanomic lives for larger tangible assets

Employee benefit Long Pensions
liabilities* leave

* Weighted average duration

The Directors have assessed the Group’s viability over a three year period to January 2026. Reflecting the
speed of change in the retail environment, a three year period of assessment is deemed an appropriate
timeframe as it captures the period over which detailed budgeting and forecasting is provided for planning
purposes. As a business that takes a longer term view of its strategy and financial plans, the details of our plans
run to 2026 and we also extend a further two years to derive a five year plan out to 2027/28.
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Current climate
Given the pace of change in the retail sector, the economic uncertainty and the continued war in Ukraine,

along with risks resuiting from the volatility in the external environment linked to inflation, energy price rises
and labour shortages, we expect to see continued volatility over the short-term. ¥Ve are continuing on our
journey to implement the Partnership Plan in order to transform our business into a thriving Group, loved by

Partners and customers.

Severe downside modelling
In assessing the viability of the Group, the Directors considered the Group's revenue, profit, net assets and

cash position under the budget and the Partnership Plan approved by the Partnership Board. In the context of
a challenged UK economy, these tock account of factors such as increased levels of infladion and sustained cost
pressures. Based on the Group's principal risks, which are the most relevant risks when assessing the Group's
viability, the Directors created three downside risks scenarios which are severe but plausible. The financial
impact of the risks occurring was medelled by overlaying them on the budger and remaining two years of the
Partnership Plan to quantify the potential impact over the assessment period. In addition a combined severe
downside scemaric combining selected impacts and assumptions from the scenarios was modelled consistent
with management’s geoing concern assessment but extended for the full viability period.

The severe downside scenarios and the principal risks (pages 13 to 20) underpinning them have been assumed
to occur over the three year period of assessment, in order to test the Group’s ability to withstand muitiple
simultaneous challenges. These scenarios also assume that all Group borrowings are repaid at their raturity
date and that no further refinancing or funding is undertaken. The potential impact of one-off ‘black-swan’
events that cannot reasonably be anticipated are not included within the severe downside scenarios.

The downside scenarios do not represent the Groups view of probable outcome. Details of the scenario
assumptions and how they link to the Group's principal risks are summarised below:

Downside scenarios Link te Group
principal risks

Scenario | - Customer and external environment [. Insufficient profit to
The tough trading environment seen in the last year continues with increased achieve our Purpose
competitive pressure and persistent high inflation. Against this background the 5. Proposition
Group propaosition will be stretched, requiring further price investment and lower | 7. Customer
margins. experience

9. Ethics and
Assumptions: sustainability
Sales: Customer demand and sales volumes decline until mid 2024 [Q. Strategic resilience

Margin / Costs: High levels of inflation persist into 2025 impacting costs with a
further impact of consumer confidence and increased competitive pressure.
Fall in the value of Pension scheme assets due to the market environment

Scenario 2 - Under delivery of Lean Simple Fast I. Insufficient profit to
The Group fails to deliver cn the Lean Simple Fast programme and does not achieve our Purpose
transform into a more efficient business. This would consequently {ead to a lass of { 2. Change delivery

Partner septiment and support. 6. Partner
differentiation

Assumptions: 8. Partner wellbeing
Margin: Removal of the margin improvements from Lean Simple Fast efficiency
savings included in the Partnership plan

Costs: Missed project delivery and under delivery of cost savings included in the

Partnership plan
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Scenario 3 - Information security or regulatory breach 3. Information security
A serious but one-off breach resulting in a fine and foss of repurational damage. 4. Regulatory
non-compliance
Assumptions:

Safes: Fall in sales volumes due to reputation damage
Costs: £50m Penalty paid in 2024

Mitigating actions

In response to any of the scenarios occurring, the Directors have identified £2.4bn of mitigations {£1.5bn
available within the first two years up to January 2025, and a further £0.9bn available in the third year 2025/26),
afl within management’s control, to reduce costs and optimise the Partnership’s cash flow, liquidity and
covenant headroom, the majority of which would anly be triggered in the event of a severe downside scenario
materialising. These actions were identified as part of the Group’s contingency planning which considered both
feasibilicy and time frames to execute. Mitigating actions include, but are not limited to. reducing capital and
investment expenditure through pastponing or pausing projects and change activity; deferring or cancelling
discretionary spend (including discretionary Partner benefits); and reducing marketing spend. These mitigations
are all within the control of the Group and exclude those mitigations which place some reliance on the
external market {such as asset sales). Continuous monitoring of the Group’s liquidity position enables
management to proactively apply these mitigations as required.

Internal mitigations alone would be sufficient to absorb the effects of each of the severe downside scenarios in
isofation.

Reverse stress testing

The combined severe downside scenaric model indicates that without mitigating actions a number of the
Partnership’s covenants refating to the bonds and undrawn committed credir facilities would breach at the next
batance sheet date due to the reduction in profits and net assets madeled. Further modelling was performed
using the combined severe downside scenario to determine the sales decline which would be required before
the Group breached its covenants or utilised all available funding after applying all available mitigations. This
model indicates that the Group's covenants relating to the undrawn syndicated credit facility of £420m are the
most sensitive and would breach at the next balance sheet date due to the reduction in profits and net assets
modelied. Management consider that the resulting sales declines in each brand to be highly unlikely and whilst
this extremely severe scenario indicates breaches in the next year, the cash low point under such a scenario
would be £630m after mitigations, the bond covenants would not breach, and the bonds would not be required
to be repaid earfy. The Group would prefer to retain the option to utilise its facilities, therefore, covenant
compliance will continue to be monitored closely and, if deemed necessary, the Group will seek a covenant
relaxation from its bank group, or take other actions te replace the level of liquidity support provided by these
facilities.

The Directors consider that such a severe decline in combination with the two other severe scenarios
occurring is highly unlikely; however should a combined event occur, additional liquidity could be sourced from
the external market assuming sufficient appetite existed, e.g. asset disposal or sale and leaseback of property.

Viability assessment

This assessment is based on the Directors’ best view of severe but plausible scenarios that the Group might
face. If outcomes are unexpectedly significantly worse, the Directors would need to consider whar additional
mitigating actions were needed, for example accessing the value of our asset base to support liquidity.

Having reviewed current performance, forecasts and risks, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group:
o Has adequate resources to continue in operation;
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e Can meet its liabilities as they fall due;
Can retain sufficient available cash across all three years of the assessment pericd;
Will not breach any financial covenants attached to its financial debt (bonds, term loans and bark
facilities).

The Directors therefore have a reasonable expectation that the Group will remain commercially viable over the
three-year period of assessment. An overview of the process undertaken to reach this conclusion was provided
to, and reviewed by, the Partnership’s Audit and Risk Committee {sce pages 69 10 70 of john Lewis Partership
plc’s Annual Report and Accounts 2023).

Approved by the Directors on 27 April 2023 and signed on behalf of the Board.

IPLE

Sharon White
Director, John Lewis plc
28 April 2023
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 28 JANUARY 2023

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the 52 week period
ended 28 fanuary 2023.

The Directors have chosen, as permitted under section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006, to include
certain matters in the Strategic report that would otherwise be required to be disclosed in the Directors’
report as the Board considers them to be of strategic importance. These are:
e Section {72(1): In accordance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended by the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations
2018}, the Company's statements on engagement with, and having due regard to, the interests of
employees and key stakeholders are contained within the Section |72(1) report in the Strategic
report (pages 3 to 11);
Risk management - pages 12 to 20;
Future business developments - pages 6 and 21.

Principal activities

The Company is incorporated and registered in England and Wales. The principal activity of the Company is
retailing, with the main trading operations being the Waitrose and fohn Lewis brands: Jjohn Lewis operates in a
number of different formats including 34 John Lewis stores, online {johnlewis.com), financial services, in-home
services, and sourcing offices in Gurgaon, India and Kwun Tong, Hong Kong; Waitrose operates 329
supermarkets and convenience shops in the UK and Channe! Islands, online {(waitrose.com and specialist sites
for wine, pet supplies, plants and flowers), cookery schools and the Leckford Estate (the Waitrose Farm).
Shops also operate under ficence in the Middle East. There are also business te business contracts in the UK
and abroad and ancillary manufacturing activities. The Company’s subsidiaries and related undertakings are
listed in note 29.

Directors

The Directors of the Company, whe held office during the year; and up to the date of signing the financial
statements, were as follows:

Sharon White
Bérangeére Michel

Corporate governance statement

The Company, as the principal trading subsidiary of John Lewis Partnership plc, falls within the governance
auspices of the Parctnership. The Directors of the Company are members of the Partnership’s Executive Team
and are two of the three Executive Directors on the Partnership Board.

The Company’s corporate governance arrangements are in accordance with policies agreed by the Partnership
Board and its Committees. These arrangements are explained in the Governance section on pages 56 to 94 of
John Lewis Partnership plc's Annual Report and Accounts 2023. As stated in John Lewis Partnership plc’s
Annual Report and Accounts 2023, the Partnership does not report against any formal corporate governance
code, because it is governed by its own Constitution. The Constitution and the governance structures are
broadly consistent with the Wates Principles. The Constitution sets out the Partnership’s Purpose and values,
and the Gevernance section of John Lewis Partnership plc’s Anpual Report and Accounts 2023 sets out how
the Partnership’s governing authorities are structured and monitor alignment of policy and behaviour with the
Purpose.

john Lewis plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

The management functions responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements for John Lewis plc
and its Internal Audit and Risk rmanagement functions are provided by the Partnership. The Partnership’s Audit
and Risk Committee (‘the Cornmittee’), which has at least one independent member and at least cne member
with competence in accounting, assists the Partnership Board in fulfilling its responsibility by reviewing and
monitoring (i) the integrity of the Partnership’s financial and narrative statements, other formal announcements
relating to the Parmership’s financial performance, and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them (i) the effectiveness of the Partnership’s system of internal controls and risk management;
{iii) the effectiveness of the Partnership’s auditor and the internat and external audit process; and (iv) the
effectiveness of the Partnership's processes for compliance with laws and regulations, including systems and
controls for the detection of fraud. lts composition and the Committee’s activities in these areas are detailed in
the Audit and Risk Committee report on pages 66 to 75 of John Lewis Partnership ple’s Annual Report and
Accounts 2023.

KPMG LLP were the Partnership’s and the Group's external auditor for 2022/23. They provided the
Committee with relevant reports, reviews, information and advice throughout the year, as set out in their
engagement lecter. The Committee is responsible for making a recommendation to the Partmership Beard
relating to the appointment, re-appointrment or removal of the external auditor.

The Partnership has a risk management framework, including a process for how we identify, evaluate, manage
and monitor the principal risks faced by the Partnership, supported by tools, Partners and a governance
structure with defined accountability. The principal risks and uncertainties for the Company and their
mitigations are explained on pages 13 to 20 of the Strategic report. These risks are reviewed and menitored by
the Committee. The work undertaken by the Committee during the year to review these risks is detailed in
the Audit and Risk Committee report on pages 66 to 75 of John Lewis Partnership ple's Annual Report and
Accounts 2023,

Reporting tc the Committee during the year was through presentations from senior management and Financial
Control as well as the work of , which provides independent and objective assurance on the effectiveness of
controls through the defivery of a risk-based work plan. The Director of internal Audit and Risk reports
operationally to the Chair of the Committee and structurally to the Partnership’s Executive Director, Finance.
The Partnership Beard receives updates, through the Chair of the Committee and copies of its minutes, on the
operation of the systems of internal concrol for risk management.

Employees

The Constitution of the Partnership provides for the democratic involvement of our Partners as co-owners of
the business. Partners are provided with extensive infermation on alt aspects of business operations and are
encouraged to take an active interest in promoting its commercial success.

The Partnership has in place a structure for sharing power amongst the Partnership Council {which reflects
Partner opinion}, the Partmership Board and the Partnership Chairman, as established by the Constitution. The
Council's democratic network of elected council, committees and forums enables Partners of all levels and
experience to participate in decision making, challenge management on performance and have a say in how the
business is run. There are further formal ways in which democratic vitality is encouraged: through Councillors
and Forum representatives; open journalism through the Gazette; through the work of the Democratic Vitality
Team, which seeks to gather and promote the communication of Partner opinion; and through the
Independent Directors {Partners who are independent from executive accountabilities and are appointed by,
and report to, the Partnership Chairman).

Partners may receive an annual Partnership Bonus from the profits of the business if approved by the
Partnership Board in any given year. This is a shared bonus for shared effort. No Partnership Bonus was
awarded in respect of 2022/23.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Equal opportunities, diversity and inclusion

The Partnership is committed to promoting equal opportunities in employment for existing Partners and for
prospective Partners throughout the recruitment process. All Partners and job applicants will receive equal
treatment regardless of age, disability, gender reassignment, marital or civil partner status, pregnancy or
maternity, race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion or belief, sex or sexual orientation. These
are known as ‘Protected Characteristics’.

The Group is actively working to attract Partners from a diverse range of backgrounds and experiences, and
we remain devoted to nurturing a feeling of belonging in a Partnership where we all feet comfortable being our
true selves without fear or judgement, no matter our background, identity or circumstance. The Partnership
has a Diversity and Inclusion Plan, and its Inclusion Report sets out the steps the Partnership is taking to
achieve its aim to become the UK's mast inclusive business. It is underpinned by the following Rules contained
in the Constitution;
& Rule 54: The Partnership takes no account of age, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, ethnic
origin, social position or religious or political views.
® Rule 55: The Partnership employs disabled people in suitable vacancies and offers them appropriate
training and careers.

The Group recruits people with disabilities to suitable vacancies on merit. We offer tatlored support through
the recruitment process for applicants who declare their disability. We know adjustments are of the utmost
importance for our Partners with disabilities, be they physical or cognitive, and arrange reasonable adjustments
required at an individual level to ensure our disabled applicants and Partners are supported.

For further information, see John Lewis Partnership plc's Annual Report and Accounts 2023 at pages 19 to 20
and the Partnership’s [nclusion Report which can be viewed at www.johnlewispartnership.co.uk.

Directors’ interests

Under the Constitution of the Partnership, all the Directors, as employees of John Lewis plc, are interested in
the 612,000 deferred ordinary shares in fjohn Lewis Partnership pic, which are held in trust for the benefit of
emplayees of john Lewis plc and other Partnership companies.

The Company maintains procedures that allow for the review of potential conflicts of interest. Directors are
required to declare pertinent interests and absent themselves from any discussion that might give rise to a
conflict of interest. A register of interests is maintained by the Company Secretary and reconfirmed every six
months.

During the year no Director declared a material interest in any contract of significance with the Company or
any of its subsidiary undertakings, other than any third party indemnity between each Director and the
Company.

Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance and indemnities

The Directors and key managers (Officers) of the Company are beneficiaries of Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance providing cover for claims made, subject to certain limitations and exclusions, which is purchased
and maintained throughout the year by the Partnership. The Partnership also provides an indemnity for the
benefit of the Trustees of the Partnership’s Pension Fund, in respect of liabilities that may attach to them in
their capacity as a Trustee.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Capital structure

At 28 January 2023, the Company had in issue 6.75m ordinary shares of £1 each. Each ordinary share carries
the right ro one vote at a general meeting of the Company. The ordinary shares are wholly owned by John
Lewis Partnership plc.

Listing on the London Stock Exchange (LSE)
Jehn Lewis plc is a Standard Listed company in respect of two corporate bonds listed on the LSE. The
Company has no securities carrying voting rights admitted Lo trading ui a regulated market.

Dividends
The Directors do not recemmend the payment of a dividend on the ordinary shares (2022: £nil).

Use of financial instruments
The notes to the financiat statements, including note 7 from pages 92 to 97, include further information on our

use of financial instruments.

Going concern

The Directors, after reviewing the Group's operating budgets, investment plans and financing arrangements,
consider that the Company and Group have sufficient financing available at the date of approval of this report.
Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements. Refer to pages 36 and 37 for further detail.

A full description of the Group's business activities, financial position, cash flows, liquidity position, committed
facilities and borrowing position, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and
performance, is set out in the Strategic report on pages 3 to 24,

Political donations

It is the Partnership's policy not to make donations to political groups or those acting with the express
purpose of seeking changes to the law or political policy. No political donations were made in respect of the
year under review (2022: £nil).

Ethics and sustainability

More information on the progress we are making on our ethics and sustainability aims is available in the John
Lewis Partnership 2022/23 Ethics and Sustainability Progress Report. To read this and our latest Modern
Slavery Statement, please visit www.johnlewispartnership.co.uk/csr.

Annuat General Meeting (AGM)

The Company’s 2023 AGM will be held and conducted in accordance with the Companies Act and the
Company's Articles of Association on Tuesday 20 June 2023 at 8:55am at 171 Victoria Street, London SWIE
S5NN.

Events after the balance sheet date
Since 28 January 2023, there have been no subsequent events which require disclosure in the financial
statements. See note 8.3 for further information.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Auditor and disclosure of information to auditor
The auditor, KPMG LLP, have indicared their willingness to continue in office, and a resolution that they be

re-appointed will be proposed to the 2023 AGM, together with a resolution to authorise the Directors to
determine the auditor's remuneration.

The Directors have taken all reasonable steps to make themselves aware of any information needed by the

Group's auditor in connection with preparing their report and to establish that the auditor is aware of that
information, As far as the Directors are aware, there is no such information of which the Group’s auditor is
Unawaisa.

Approved by the Directors on 27 April 2023 and signed on behalf of the Board.

Je L §S/v:>

Jane Cheong Tung Sing
Company Secretary
28 April 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT for the 52 week period ended 28 january 2023

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our revenue minus our incurred expenses showing the Group's overall profit for the 52 week period

Nates 2023 2022

fm £m

21,22 Revenue 10,534.0 10,837 5

Cost of sales (7.280.8) {7.359.4)

Gross profit 3,253.2 3,478

23 Orcher operating income 128.8 1081

24 Operating and administrative expenses {3,532.1) {3.469.5)
of whicty:

25 Exceptional items {net) (156.5) (160.8)

Partnership Bonus - (46.4)

33 Share of profic of joint venture {net of tax) 1.2 1.0

21 Operating (loss)/profit (150.9) 117.7

5. Finance costs {13%.7) {155.2)

5.4 Finance income 65.2 103

16 Loss before tax {215.9) (272}

29 Taxation 35.0 [C1N}]

Loss for the year {190.4) (68.3)

2.1 Profit bafore Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional items (48.9) 180.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Profit as shown in the income statement pius other income and expenses not yet realised, giving total comprehensive

income for the 52 week period

2423 2021
Notes m £m
Lass for the year (190.4) {68.3}
Other comprehensive {expense)fincome:
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
6.1 Remeasurement of defined benefit pension scheme (599.5) 11169
29 Movemant in deferred tax on pension scheme 147.2 (241 2)
9 Movement in current tax on pension schetne 2.0 1.9
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Fair value gain/{loss) on cash flow hedges 367 {Z.1y
Cash flow hedge gain reclassified and reparted in the consolidated income statement (10.2) {1.0)
29 Mavement in daferred tax on cash fow hedges ({82 {3.5)
Other comprehensive (expense}/income for the year {425.7) 87).0
Totai comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (6164} 8027

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSQLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 28 january 2023

A financial snapshot of the Group, showing our assets and how they are financed

2023 2022
Notes £m ém
Noun-current assets
3t Incangible assets 441.8 4460
31 Proparty. plane and equipment 1,883.3 19174
32 Righi-of-use assets 1,319.6 1,4733
4.2 Trade and other receivables 6.9 158
72 Derivative financial instruments 1.6 17
33 Invescment ih and joans to joint venture 5.6 4.4
23 Deferred tax asset 57 0.5
6.1 Retirement benefit surplus - 492.8
4,674.4 53619
Current assets
4.1 Inventories 7oLz 6557
42 Trade and other receivables 344.1 3317
Current tax receivable 16.3 -
7.2 Derivative financial instruments 1.3 60
53 Short-term investments 0.3 953
5.4 Cash and cash equivalents 1,038.1 14154
2,118 2.504.1
Total assets 6,786.2 7.866.0
Current liahilities
55 Borrowings and overdrafts {50.0} {150.0y
43 Trade and other payables (1,768.9) {1,806.9)
Current tax payable - {0.5)
52,56 Lease fiabilities {148.5) (156.6)
4.4 Provisions {(102.3) (140.8)
72 Derivative financial instruments {4.0) (8.4}
{2,073.7) (2.263.2)
Non-current liabilities
55 Borrowings (587.8) (641.6)
4.3 Trade and acher payables (28.3) {30.0}
5.2.56 Lease liabilities {1,754.7) (1.831.7)
4.4 Provisions (122.9) {161.2)
7.2 Derivative financial instruments (8.8) {0.8)
6.1 Retirement benefit obligations (1ol (1.3
2.9 Deferred tax liabiiity 5.1 (177.5)
(2,609.5) (2.862.1
Total liabilities (4,683.2) {5.125.3)
Met assets 2,103.0 1,740.7
Equity
8.1 Share capitai 8.7 67
Share premium 0.3 03
Other reserves 3.8 1.3
Rerained earnings 2,092.2 2,7324
Total equity 2,103.0 27407
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 28 January 2023 (continued)

The financial statements on pages 30 to 98 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2023 and signed on its
behalf by Sharon White and Bérangére Michel, Directors, John Lewis plc.

M=

Sharon White and Bérangére Miche!
Directors, John Lewis ple
28 April 2023

Al

Registered number 00233462

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

A reconciliation between the beginning and the end of the 52 week period which discloses profit or loss, items of
comprehensive income/(expense) and any changes in ownership interests

Share Share Capital Hadging Foreign Retained Total
capital premium  reserve reserve  currency earnings equity
rransation
reserve

Notes £m £m im £m £m £m £m
Balance at 30 January 202) 6.7 0.3 14 {14.5) 0.4 1,923.1 1L,917.4
Less for the year - - - - - (68.3) (68.3)
Remeasurement of defined benefit

6.1 pension scheme - - - - - .16 Liies
Fair value loss on cash flow hedges - - - 2.1y - - .n
Cash flow hedge {gains) / losses reclassified and reported in the
consclidated income statement - - - [{RU] - - (o)

19 Tax on above items recognised in equity - - - (3.5) - (239.9) (242.8)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (6.6) - 8093 8027
Hedging losses cransferred to cost of inventory - - - 208 - - 206
Balance at 1% January 2022 6.7 0.3 b4 {0.5) 0.4 2,732.4 2,740.7
Loss for the year - ~ - - - (190.4) (190.4)
Remeasurement of defined benefit

6.1 pension scheme - - - - - {599.5) (599.5)
Fair value gain on cash flow hedges - - - 367 - - 367
Cash flow hedge gain reclassified and reported in the
consolidated income starement - - - {102} - - {10.2)

29 Tax on above items recognised in equity - - - 1% - 1492 1473
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - 246 - (640.7) {616.1)
Reclassification - - - - (0.5} a5 N
Hedging losses transferred to cost of inventory - - - (21.6) - - (21.6)
Balance at 18 January 2023 8.7 0.3 1.4 2,5 (0.1) 2,092.2 2,103.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the 52 week period ended 28 [anuary 2023

The Group's cash inflows and outflows analysed by various key activities

2023 2022
Notes im £m
27 Cash generated from operations before Partnership Bonus 3422 668.7
MNex taxation {paid)freceived 9.7} 1!
Pension deficit reductinn payments {10.0) (10.0)
Finance costs paid {96.3) {105.5)
Met cash generated from operating activities before Partnership Bonus 116.2 55853
Partnership Bonus paid {46.2) -
Nat cash generated from operating activities after Parthership Bonus 180.¢ 555.3

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment (222.8) (205.7}
Purchase of intangible assets (128.6) (109.1)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 2.0 1.0
Finance income received 16 0.9
52 Cash inflow/{outflow) from short-term investments 95.0 (95.0)
Het cash used in investing activities (242.8) (397.9)

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid in respect of bands L) {301
Finance costs {paid)/received in respect of financial instruments {0.5) 10
Payment of capital element of leases {132.9) (155.1}
Cash outflow from borrowings {150.0) (75.0}
Net cash used in financing activities {314.5) (260.2)
Decrease in net cash and cash equivalents {(377.3) (l02.8y
52 Net cash and cash equivalents at beginping of the year 1,415.4 1.518.2
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,038.1 1.415.4

54 Net cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash at bank and in hand 162.9 1625
Short-term deposits 875.2 1,252.9
1,038.1 14154

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Jobn Lewis plc Anmual Report and Accounts 2023
34



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
I ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
1.1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

PURPOSE

We prepare our financial statements in compliance with UK-adopted international accounting standards (UK-adopted
IFRS). We have set our our significant accounting policies in these notes. These have been applied in the current reporting
period and apply to the financial statements as a whole. All of the Group’s accounting policies are set in litte with the
requirements of UK-adopted IFRS. Changes to significant accounting policies are described in note I.1.4.

COMPANY INFORMATION

The Company is a public company limited by shares, incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and
Wales under number 00233462, The address of the registered office is 171 Victoria Street, London SWIE SNN.

1.i.{ BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consclidated financial statements are prepared under the historical ¢ost convention, with the exception of certain land
and buildings which are included at their deemed cost amounts, and financial assets and financfal fiabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) which are valued at fair value through profit or loss. These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards {UK-adopted IFRS).

The preparation of consclidated financial statements in conformity with UK-adopted IFRS requires the use of judgements
and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Although these estimates are based on management's
best knowiedge of the amount, event or actions, actual results uftimately may differ from those estimates. The ¢ritical
accounting estimates and key judgements made by management are disclosed in section |.1.6.

The financial year is the 52 weeks ended 28 January 2023 (prior year: 52 weeks ended 29 January 2022). See Glossary

section in John Lewis Parcnership plcs Annual Report and Accounts 2023 pages 183 co 188 for explanation of
financial terms.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1.1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Going concern

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statemeats for the period ended 28 lanuary 2023, the
Directors are required to consider whether the Group can continue in operational existence for a peried of at least 12
months from the approval of these financial statements. The Board has concluded that it is appropriate to adopt the gaing
concern basis, having undertaken a rigarnus assessment of the financial forecasts with specific consideration to the trading

position of the Group, for the reasons set out below.

2022/23 has been a tough year for financial performance due to a range of macro economic pressures such as high inflation
and the resulting cost of living crisis. However the Group still has a strong balance sheet, as at 28 January 2023, the Group
had total assets less current liabilities of £4.7bn and net assets of £2.1bn. Liquidity as at that date remains strong ac £1.5bn,
made up of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and undrawn committed credit facilities of £0.4bn.

The Directors have modeiled a severe but plausible Jownside scenario ('severe downside scenario’) which reflects a deeper
economic downturn and under delivery of the Partnership Plan, This scenario combines selected impacts with consistent
assumptions to the scenarios disclosed in the viability statement. The modelling covers the going concern assessment
periad, being the {2 month period ending 27 April 2024. For the purposes of the going concern assessment, it is assumed
that all Group borrowings are repaid at their maturity date and that no further refinancing or funding is undertaken.

In chis severe downside scenario, Waitrose and John Lewis remain operational both in store and online, albeit with sales
and margin pulled back from current trading levels due to poor trading environment throughout the assessment period
resulting in a reduction in sales, as well as a reduction in margin across both brands and a higher impairment charge, a
decrease in pension scheme assets and under-delivery of key activities of the Partnership Plan. The impact of the severe
downside adjustments has been reviewed against the Group's projected cash position and financial covenants, Should these
adjustments occur simultanecusly, mitigating actions would be required to ensure that the Group's liquidity remains
sufficient,

The severe downside model has a significant adverse impact on sales, margin, costs and cash flow. In response, the
Directors have identified available mitigations in the going concern assessment period, all within management's control, to
reduce costs and optimise the Group's cash flow, liquidity and covenant headroom. The majority of these mitigations would
only be triggered in the event of the severe downside scenario materialising. Mitigating actions include, but are not limited
to, reducing capital and investment expenditure through postponing or pausing projects and change activity; deferring or
cancelling discretionary spend {including discretionary Partner benefits); and reducing marketing spend.

The Group has a syndicated credit facility of £420m maturing in 2026. The credit facility is undrawn at the balance sheet
date and has not been drawn at any peint throughout the year. The severe downside scenario modelled indicates that
without mitigating actions a number of the Group's financial covenants would breach at the next balance sheet date due to
the reduction in profits and net assets modelled. Post mitigating actons, there would be no breaches of financial covenants
and the cash tow point under such a scenario would be £661m, with further mitigations available.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1.1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{.1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The severe downside scenario detailed above is considered by the Directors to pravide a severe but plausible stress test
on our ability to adoprt the going concern basis. This includes a significant reduction in 2023/24 performance and reduced
trading performance across both brands, resulting in a pre-mitigation cash reduction to forecast. We have made our
assessment based on our best view of the severe but plausible downside scenario that we might face. If outcomes are
unexpectedly significantly worse, the Directors would need to consider what additional mitigating actions were needed, for
example, accessing the value of our asser base to support liquidity.

Consequently, the Directors have concluded that the Group and Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its
liabilities as they fall due for at least |2 months from the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts and therefore
have prepared the financia) statements on 2 going concern basis.

1.1.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The Group's consolidated financial statements incorporate the results for the Company and all entities controlled by the
Company including its subsidiaries and the Group’s share of its interest in joint ventures made up to the year end date.

[.1.3 SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED UNDERTAKINGS

Subsidiary undertakings are all entities over which the Group has control. Control exists when the Group has the power
to direct the relevant activities of an entity so as to affect the return oh investment. joint ventures are investments for
which the Group shares joint control with a third parcy. Alf intercompany balances, transactions and unrealised gains are
efiminated upon consolidation.

The following UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 47%A of the Companies
Act 2006 for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023. Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings fisted below are
registered at (71 Victoria Street, London SWIE 5NN, United Kingdom, and all have a single class of ordinary share with a
nominal value of £1.

Company name Company number
Carlisle Place Ventures Limited 02879583
Herbert Parkinson Limited 00318082
JLP Scocland Limited' $C370158
John Lewis Car Finance Limited 04328890
John Lewis International Limited 07501 166
John Lewis Partnership Pensions Trust 00372106
John Lewis PT Holdings Limited 07106855

' Registered office is Joha Lewis & Partaers Edinburgh, 60 Letth Screet, Edinburgh EMI 35P

The following UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the exemption from preparing and filing individual accounts as set out
within section 394A(1) and 448A of the Companies Act 2006 for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023. Unless
otherwise szated, the undertakings listed below are registered at |7} Victoria Street, London, SWIE 5NN, United
Kingdom, and all have a singfe class of ordinary share with a nominaf value of £1.
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements (continued)
1.1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.1.3 SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED UNDERTAKINGS (CONTINUED)

Company name Company number
Buy.Com Limited 03709785

Jonelie Jewetlery Limited 00223203

Jonelle Limited' 00240604

Peter [ones Limited 00285318

The Odney Estate Limited 02828420

t Jonelle Limited has three classes of shares, each with a nominal value of £1.

As required, John Lewis ple, the principal trading subsidiary of the Group, guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the
subsidiary companies listed in the tables above are subject at the end of the financial year, until they are satisfied in full. This
Is in accordance with Section 479C of the Companies Act 2006. The guarantee is enforceable against john Lewis plc as the
parent undertaking, by any person to whom the subsidiary companies listed abave are liable in respect of those liabilities.

{.1.4 AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The following standards, amendments and interpretations were applicable for the periods beginning after I January 2022
and therefore adopted by the Group for the period from 30 January 2022 to 28 January 2023. The adoption of these
standards has not had a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated results, financial position or disclosures:
¢ Amendments to IAS |6: Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (applicable for the petiod
beginning 30 january 20272);
*  Amendments to IFRS 3: Business Combinations - updated references (applicable for the period beginning 30
January 2022}
s Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (applicable for the periad beginning 3¢
January 2022);
®  Annual improvements cycle to IFRS 2018-2020.

The Group is assessing the impact of the following new and amended standards, which have been issued or are awaiting
endorsement by the UK Endorsement Board:
& IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, Amendments to IFRS 17 and Initia! Application of IFRS17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative
information (effective date 29 January 2023);
®  Amendments to |AS | Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (effective date te be confirmed);
®  Amendments to tAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to introduce a new
definitien for accounting estimates (effective date 29 January 2023);
*®  Amendments to 1AS | Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statements 2 Making Materiality
Judgemenzts (effective date 29 January 2023});
Amendments to IFRS {6: Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback (effective date to be confirmed);
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single
Transaction (effective date 29 January 2023).
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterments {continued)
LI ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POULICIES (CONTINUED)
I.1.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Where significant accounting policies are specific to a particular note, they are described within that note. Cther significant
accounting policies are included below.

Financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to fluctuations in financial markets, including
foreign exchange rates, interest ratas and ceraain commaodity prices. Derivative financiat instruments used by the Group
include forward currency and commodity forward contracts and interest rate swaps.

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. The fair value of a derivative financial instrument
represents the difference between the value of the outstanding contracts at their contracted rates and a valuation
cafculated using the forward rates of exchange and interest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Subsequent to initial
recognition, unless designated as hedging instruments, derivatives are measured ac fair value and any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value are taken directly to the income statement.

Hedge accounting has been adopted for derivative financial instruments where possible. At the inception of designated
hedging relationships, the risk management abjective and strategy for undertaking the hedge is documented. Additionally,
the Group documents the economic relationship between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument, and a
qualitative and forward-looking approach is taken to assess whether the hedge will be effective on an ongoing basis. At the
end of each financial reporting period, for each derivative financial instrument, prospective testing is performed to ensure
that the economic relationship remains; the impact of credit risk on changes in values is reviewed; and the hedging ratio is
reassessed.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument matures, is terminated or exercised, the designation is
revoked or it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability of cash flows that are either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability, or a highfy probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in
the intrinsic fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity. All other
changes in fair value are recognised immediately in the income statement within other gains or losses. When the hedged
forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item such as inventory, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is included directly in the initial cost of the non-financial item when it is recognised. For
all other hedged forecast transactions, amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments qualifying for cash flow hedge accounting are
principally forward currency contracts.

A fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability. Derivative
financial instruments qualifying for fair value hedge accounting are principally interest rate swaps.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1.1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.1.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The table below sets out the Group's accounting classification of each class of its financial assets and liabilities:

Note Measurement
Financial assets:
Trade receivables 4.2 Amortised cost
Qther receivables 4.2 Amortised cost
Derivative financial instrumencs 7.2 Fair value through profit and loss or OCI'
Short-term investments 53 Amartised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 54 Amortised cost
Financial liahilities:
Borrowings and overdrafts 55 Amortised cost
Trade payables 43 Amortised cost
Orher payables 43 Amorused costc
Accruals 4.3 Amortised cost
Partnership Bonus accruaf 4.3 Amortised cost
Lease liabilities 82586 Amaottised cost
Derivative financial instruments 72 Fair value through profic and loss or GCI'

" Cash flow hedges designated a being in a hedged relationship upon initial recognition are measured at fair value with the effective portion of any changes in
the intrinsic value recognised in equity.

Offsetting
Balance sheet netting only occurs to the extent that there is the legal ability and intention to settle net. As such, bank
overdrafts are presented in current liabilities to the extent that there is no intention to offset with any cash balances.

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges. On translation of assets and liabilities in

foreign currencies, movements go through the foreign currency translation reserve.

Government grants
The Group accounts for government grants on an accruals basis and has elecred to present receipts relating to government
grants as a deduction in reporting the related expense.

1.1.6 KEY JUDGEMENTS AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other relevant factors,

including management’s reasonable expectations of future events.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgements concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, be likely to differ from the related actual results. The estimates that
have 2 significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year and management's key judgement in respect of presentation are:
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
L.} ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[.1.6 KEY JUDGEMENTS AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Areas of key risk Note Critical accounting estimates and key judgements
Exceptional items 25 Key judgements

Impairment 12 Critical accounting estimates

Retirement benefits 6.1 Critical accounting estimates

1.2 NON-GAAP MEASURES

PURPOSE

Qur financial scatements disclose financial measures which are required under UK-adopted IFRS. We also report additional
financial measures that we believe enhance the relevance and usefulness of the financial stacements. These are important
for understanding underlying business performance, and they are described as non-GAAP measures. In this note, we have
explained what the primary non-GAAP financial measures are and why we use them. For definitions, and where applicable,
reconciliations, of other non-GAAP measures, please see the Glossary section in John Lewis Partnership plc’s Annual

Report and Accounts 2023, pages |83 to 188.

1.2.1 TOTAL TRADING SALES

Total trading sales represents the full customer sales value including VAT as reported weekly to the Group's Executive
Team, before adjustments for sale or return sales and other accounting adjustments. This measure shows the headline sales
trend and is used by the Executive Team and brands to assess the performance of the John Lewis and Waitrose brands.

1.2.2 TRADING OPERATING PROFIT

Trading operating profit (‘TOP') is based on operating profit, but excludes centrally managed costs. These centrally
managed costs are outside of the direct influence and controf of the brands and are raviewed and managed by the
Executive Team at a Group level in aggregate. TOP is used to assess the performance of the John Lewis and VWaitrose
brands and determine the allocation of resources to those segments.

1.2.3 CENTRALLY MANAGED COSTS

Centrally managed costs include all Group fixed property costs, costs of central operations, change-related costs, revenue
expenditure and one-off adjusting items. Ohe-off adjusting items are those that do not meet the Group's definition of
‘exceptional items’, because they are considered to be relevant to the principal activities of the business. However, these
are removed from the trading operating profit of each brand. as they are non-recurring in a business-as-usual scenario. This
allows management to better assess the underlying performance.

1.2.4 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
The separate reporting of exceptional items helps to provide an indication of the Group’s underlying business performance.
Exceptional items refate to certain costs or incomes that individually or collectively, are significant by virtue of their size
and nature. In considering the nature of an item, management's assessment includes, both individuaily and coliectively, each
of the following:

®  Whether the item is cutside of the principal activities of the business;

& The specific circumstances which have led to the item arising;

®  The likelihood of recurrence.

1.2.5 PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE PARTNERSHIP BONUS, TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL 1TEMS (PBTBE)
Profit/loss before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional items is presented at the foot of the consolidated income
statement. This measure is important as it allows for a comparison of the Group’s underlying profitability, and is a core
measure of performance for Partners.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
1.2 NON-GAAP MEASURES (CONTINUED)
1.2.6 NET DEBT

Net debt incorporates the Group’s consolidated borrowings, bank overdrafts, fair value of derivative financial instruments
and lease liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and unamortised bond transaction costs. This
measure indicates the Group’s debt position, excluding any pension deficit/surplus.

2 PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE
2.1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

PURPOSE
During the year we analysed our performance between our two reporting segments, Waitrose and john Lewis. This
analysis is consistent with how our Executive Team reviewed performance throughout the year.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Segmental reporting: The Group’s reporting segments are determined based on business activities for which operating
results are reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (CODM). The Group’s CODM js the Executive Team and the
reporting segments reflect the management structure of the Group.

Partnership Bonus: Whether to award a Partnership Bonus is decided by the Board each March, having regard to
performance in the previous year. When the Board has decided to award a Bonus, it is announced and paid in the same
month. The Partnership Bonus is recorded in the year it relates to rather than the year it was declared because there is a
constructive obligation to pay a Partnership Bonus and the amount can be reliably estimated once the results for the year

are known.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified based on the way in which the Group’s internal
financial reporting is organised and regularly reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources and to assess the performance
of the different operating segments. The Group's reporting segments are determined based on the business activities of its
brands {John Lewis and Waitrose)} for which operating results are reviewed by the CODM which is the Executive Team,

The Executive Team reviews the operating performance for each brand (John Lewis and Waitrose) in the Group, including
non-GAAP measures known as Total trading sales and Trading operating profit { TOP') (see note 1.2).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
2.1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

John Lewis Waitrose Total
1023 Lm &m im
Total trading sales 49383 73109 12,250.2
Vajue added tax (800.2) (424.5) (1.224.7)
Sale or return and other accounting adjustmenits (3542) (137.3) (491.5)
Revenue 31,7839 &,750.1 10,534.0
Trading operating profit' 6755 894.3 1,569.9
Other operating and administrative expeiises (1.720.8}
of which:
Exceptional itermns {net) (156.5)
Partnership Bonus -
Operating profit* (150.9)
Finance costs (139.7)
Finance income 652
Loss before tax {225.4)
Taxation 35.0
Loss for the year {190.4}
Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional items (68.9)

" Included in trading operating profit is other operating income of which £.118.9.m (split between operating segments: £37.3m Waitrose and £81.6m john
Lewis) represents further income from external customers {see note 2.3}, This is reported to the CODM separately as part of other income and expenses.

* Included within operating loss is a £1.2m share of profit of a joint venture in John Lewis. See note 3.3,
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Notes to the conscolidated financial statements {(continued)
2.1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

John Lewis Waitrose Total
2022 £m £m £m
Total trading sales 4,925.6 7,535.9 12,461.5
Value added tax (797.5) (439.4) {1.237.1)
Sale or return and other accounting adjustments {274.2) (riy) (386.9)
Revenue 3,853.9 6,983.6 10,837.5
Trading operating profit' 757.7 1,019.6 1,771.3
Other operating and administracive expenses {1.659.5)
of which:
Exceptional items (net) (160.8)
Partnership Bonus {46.4)
Operating profit’ 117.7
Finance costs (155.2}
Finance income 10.3
Loss before tax (27.2)
Taxation (41.1)
Lass for the year {682.3)
180.0

Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional iterns

! Included in trading operating profit is other operating income of which £101.2m {split between operating segments: £30.8m Waitrose and £704m John
iLewis) represents further income from external customers (see note 2.3). This is reported to the CODM separately as part of other income and expenses.

? Included within operating profit is 2 £1.0m share of profit of a joint venture in John Lewis. See note 3.3,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued}
2.2 REVENUE

PURPOSE
Revenue is generated solely from contraces with custormers.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in 2 contrace with a customer: The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue: We evaluate our revenue with customers based on the five-step model under JFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts
with Customers: (I} identify the contract with the customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (3}
deterimine the transaction price; (4) affocate the transaction price to separate performarice obligations; and (3] recognise
revenues when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied. Ve generate the majority of our revenue from the sale of
goods or from providing services to our customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognised when the Group has satisfied its performance obligations by
transferring a promised good or service to the customer: The good or service is considered to be transferred when the
customer obtains controf of that good, or the service is complete. Revenue in respect of sale or return safes’ which
represents concession income is stated at the value of the margin that the Group receives on the transaction. Revenue is
also net of Partner and customer discounts and VAT, adjustments for the sale of free warranties and adjustments for
expected customer returns. Revenue is recognised in respect of sales under bill and hold arrangements when the buyer
takes controf of the asset, even if it has not physically been transferred to the customer. Revenue under bill and hold
arrangements is not recognised when there is simply an intention to acquire.

Sales of gift vouchers and gift cards are treated as liabilities, and revenue is recognised when the gift vouchers or cards are
redeemed against a later transaction. Non-redemption revenue is recognised in proportion to the pattern of rights
exercised by the customer based on assumptions regarding redemption rates and time to expiry. Certain entities within the
Group sell products with a righs of return, and experience is used to estimate and provide for the value of such returns at
the time of sale. This is further discussed in note 4. 1.

Business is predominantly carried out in the United Kingdom and gross sales and revenue derive almost entirely from that
source.
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Notes to the consolidated financial staternents (continued)
2.2 REVENUE (CONTINUED)
2.2.1 DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

We analyse our revenue between goods and services. Goods are split into four major preduct lines: Grocery, Home,
Fashion and Technology. Services currently comprise free warranties on selected goods. This presentation is consistent

with how our Board and Executive Team review performance throughout the year

2023 2022
im im
Major product lines:
Goods
— Grocery 6,726.2 68997
- Home 1,061.3 1Lii%8
~ Fashion 1, 1184 11273
~ Technology' 1,397.5 1,56%.%
Services
— Free warranty' 17.8 124
Other revenue 1nxe 1082
10,534.0 10,8375

' The balances for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022 have been adjusted to reflect the split of revenue between Technology and free warranty,

2.2.2 REVENUE RECOGNITION POLICIES
The following table provides information abour the nature of the major product and service lines generating revenue.

Type of Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance obhligations Revenue recognition
product/
service
Grocery Grotery products are printipally sold by VWaitrose and include food, drink, household and Revenue is recognised when the goods
other items. Additionally, fuel sales and food halls ave shown heve. have been received by the customer and
contro| ebtained.
Customers obuain control of grocery products when the goods are recerved by the
customer. Adjusunents are recorded for returns
where material, based on historic wends
Cusromers pay at the point of sale in Waitrose shops. Where a grocery producc is and recent sales pacceras. The cight to
ordered online, it is fulfilled by 2 Waitrose shop and customers are charged on the day of return goods is included under
delivery. inventory, nate 4.1,
For business to business (B2B) customers, invoices are raised and are usually payable
within 30 days.
Waitrose accepts returns in accordance with a customer’s statutory rights under
consumer laws in the United Kingdom and has a discretionary goodwill policy. Under the
goodwill policy, customers can return products within 35 days after receipt. if not entirely
satisfied.
Home Home products are principally sold by John Lewis and include jtems incended for use in Revenue is recognised when the goods

the home environment.

Customers obtain control of home products when the goods are received by the
customer,

Customers pay at the point of sale in John Lewis shops. Where a home product is ordered
online, it is generally fulfilled from a centralised location.

For B2B customers, invoices are raised and are payable an a variety of payment terms up
to 30 days

John Lewis accepts returns in accordance with a custamer’s statutory rights under
consumer laws in the United Kingdom and has a discretionary goodwill policy. Under the
goodwill policy, customers can return products within 35 days after receipt, if not entively
sacisfied.

have been received by the customer and
conwrol abained

Adjusements are recorded for returns
whare marerial, based on historic trends
and receni sales patterns. The right 1o
return goads is included under
inventory, note 4. 1.
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Fashion

Fashion products are principally sold by John Lewis and inchude <lothing, jewellery and
other jitems. This also includes ‘sale or return’ sales.

Customers obrain contrel of fashion products when the goods are received by the
customer.

Customers pay at the point of sale in John Lewis shops. YWhere a fashion produce is
ordered online, it is generally fulfiled from a centralised location,

For B2B customers, invoices are raised and are payable on a variety of payment terms up
to 30 days.

John Lewis accepts returns in accordance with a customer's stacutory rights under
consumer laws in the United Kingdom and has a discretionary goodwill policy. Under the
goodwill policy, customers can return products within 35 days after receipt, if not entirely
satisfied.

Revenue is recognised when the goods
have been received by the customer and
control abtained.

Adjusuments are recorded for returns
where material, based on historic trends
and recent sales patterns. The right to
return goods is included under
inventory, note 4.1.

Technology

Technology products are principally sold by John Lewis and include televisions, computers,
tablets and other slectrical items.

Customers obtain control of Technology products when the goods are received by the
customer.

Customers pay at the paint of sale in John Lewis shops. Where 2 Technology producr is
ordered online, it is geperally fulfilled from a centralised Jocation.

For B2B customers, invoices are raised and are payable on a variety of payment terms up
to 30 days.

John Lewis accepts returns in accordance with 2 customer’s statutory rights under
consumer laws in the United Kingdom and has a discretionary goadwill policy, Under the
goodwill policy, customers can return products within 35 days after receipr, if not entirely
satisfied.

Revenue is recognised when the goods
have been received by the cusromer.
‘When Technology products ate sold
with a free warranty an element of the
sales price is allocated to the
performance of that service (see below).

Adjustments are recorded for returns
where material, based on historic wrends
and recent safes patterns. The right to
recurn goods is included under
inventory, hate 4.1

Free warranties

The free service guarantee is provided with certain Technology produrts which are sold by
Jobn Lewis.

Custamers receive a free warranty of between two and five years on the purchase of
specified Technology products. No separate payment is made for this free service
guarantee.

An element of the sales price of the Technology preduct is allocated 1o the free service
guarantee Oh a cost plus margin basis. This amount is deducted from revenue and deferred
on the balance sheet.

Revenue is deferred on the balance
sheet and then released to the income
statement over the period of the
guarantee on a straight-line basis.

Deferred income is shown under trade
and other payables. See note 4.3,

Other revenue

Other revenue prodiuctsiservices are principally sold by John Lewis and include catering,
customer delivery and workrooms. Other revenue also includes non-redemption revenue
relacing to gift vouchers and gift cards that are never redeemed or expire unredeemed.

Customers obtain control of other revenue products/services when the products/services
have been rendered and the performance obligations have been met.

Cuscomers pay at the point of sale in John Lewiz shops. Where other revenue
producisiservices are ordered online. it is generalty fulfilled from a centralised location.

Revenue is recognised when the
productsiservices have been received by
the customer and the performance
obligations have been met.

Non-redemprion revenue 1s recognised
in proportion to the pattern of rights
exercised by the customer based on
assumptions regarding redemption rates
and time to expiry.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
2.3 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

PURPOSE
Orher operating income is income that does not satisfy the definition of revenue in that it does not relate to the main
trading operations of the Group.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Ofier operating income includes:

Commissions, backhauling, car park income and licence fees: Income is recognised when the Group has satisfied
its performance obligation by delivering a promised service to the customer in accordance with the transaction price
agreed.

Rental income: Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis based on the length of the contract and when the
performance obligation of the contract is satisfied.

Other income: Orher income is recognised when the services have been rendered to the customer and performance
obligations have been met.

2023 2022
Other operating income fm £m
Commissions §9.5 772
Rental income 9.4 69
Backhauling income 7.8 70
Car park income 6.8 5.0
Licence fees 4.2 35
Qther income 9.1 85

126.8 108.1

Orther income mainly relates to concession income and data provision for industry research. It is made up of items that
individually are not material and no other material groups were considered to be shown.

2.4 OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

PURPOSE

We analyse operating expenses into shop and onfine operating expenses and administrative expenses, as well as
exceptional items and Partnership Bonus. Shop and online operating expenses are directly associated with the sale of goods
and services. Administrative expenses are those which are not directly refated to the sale of goods and services.

2023 2022

Operating and administrative expenses £m £m
Shop and online operating expenses (2,245.0) (2.225.9)
Administrative expenses (1,130.6) (1.036.4)
Exceptional items (net) - see note 1.5 (156.5) (160.8)
Partnership Bonys - (46.4)
{3,532.1) (3,469.5)

in addition to the items disclosed in note 2.6, within operating and administrative expenses, we include charges such ag
marketing expenses, general rates and customer delivery.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
2.5 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

PURPOSE

Exceptional items are jitems of income/expense that are significant by virtue of their size and nature {see note 1.2.4). We
believe these exceptional items are relevant for a better understanding of our underlying business performance, and
exceptional irems are therefore highlighted separarely on the face of the income statement. This note provides detail of the
exceptional items reported in both the current and prior year.

KEY JUDGEMENTS

Exceptional items: Exceptional items are those where, in management’s opinion, their separate reporting provides a
better understanding of the Group’s underlying business performance; and which are significant by virtue of their size and
nature, In considering the nature of an item, management’s assessment includes, both individually and collectively, whether
the item is outside the principal activities of the business; the specific circumstances which have led to the ftem arising: the
fikelihood of recurrence; and if the itemr is fikely to recur; whether it is unusual by virtue of fes size.

No single criterion alone classifies an jtern as exceptional, and therefore management must exercise judgement when
determining whether, on balance, presenting an item as exceptional will help users of the financial statements understand
the Group's underlying business performance.

2023 2023 2022 2022
Operating Taxation Operating Taxation
(expense)/ credit/ (expense)/ credit/
income {charge) income (charge}
Exceptional iterns £m im £ £m
Strategic restructuring and redundancy programmes:

Central aperations reviews (0.2) 0.0 1.7 {2.2)
Physical estate’ (4.1} 0.5 {108.0) 25
Shop aperations (2.2} a.4 (1.4} 79
{16.5) 0.9 {137.7) 8.2

Shop impairments (Waitrose) (W3L.7) 13.6 -
Shop impairments (John Lewis) 18.4 {4.3) (23.1) 3.0
Cost of living payment (26.7) 5.1 - -
(156.5) 15.3 (160.8) 12

" For the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023 this includes a net impairmenc charge of £14.0m (2022 £11.9m).

Strategic restructuring and redundancy programmes
The Partnership Plan is about two things - increasing the appeal of our brands and building on them to diversify into new
services, Some of this transformacion is in the form of restructuring.

The costs incurred over the fife of the change programmes outlined are significant in value and, given the level of change,
they are significant in nature, therefore the Group considers them exceptional items to provide a more meaningful view of
the Group’s underlying business performance.

Since jJanuary 2022, the Group has continued its strategic review of physical estate with the closure of two Waitrose stotes
and reduction in office space at our sites in London and Brackneil. During the year, the Group has progressed
recrganisation of management structures in John Lewis and Waitrose stores and the restructure of central operations, as
announced in previous years.

These programmes present significant deviations from normal operations for the Group, in terms of their size and nature,
and are therefore presented as exceptionaf items. The financial impacts of these programmes are detailed bejow.

Central operations reviews: The transformation of centraf operations began at the end of 2017 to make the central
operations feaner and more efficient. The associated transformation programmes have reached completion this year with a
net £0.2m of costs recognised across the Head Office Transformation and Tech & Change Transformation initiatives,
primarily related to redundancies.
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements (continued)
2.5 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (CONTINUED)

Included within operating expenses, and rot separately reported as exceptional, are £4.1m (January 2022: £4.6m} of
restructuring and redundancy costs which are considered by the Group to be separate from our strategic programmes and

part of the underlying business performance.

Physical estate: Since 2017, we have been working on our programme of rebalancing our existing estate; this includes
ensuring that che size and shape of our physical estate is delivering on both our customer proposition, and financial returns.
With the launch of the Partnership Plan, and the acceleration of change we have seen in customer shopping behaviour, we
have refocused on the need to ensure our stores reflect how our customers want to shop - ‘right space, right place’ - and

as a result we anticipate these changes will extend to 2027/28.

In 2022, we negotiated the early surrender of the leasehold interest in the London office. In 2023, plans for the use of this
office space have developed and we have recognised an impairment charge of £15.6m, following the announcement to close
seven floors of our London office and to revise the use of our Bracknell office buildings.

Further charges of £2.9m were recognised for the closure of two Waitrose stores, announced in August 2022, primarily
comprising redundancies and impairment of assets. These costs are offset by a £0.2m release of provisions held for prior
year Waitrose closures. In 2019/20 and 2020/21 we closed 16 John Lewis stores. This year we have recognised a net
income of £4.2m associated with these closures, following the exit of the lease for two stores and a net refease of

associated property, impairment and redundancy provisions.

Shop operations: Alongside the assessment of our physical estate, we also identified that the way in which we run and
manage our shops would require adjustment. In order to improve the customer experience and efficiencies in our stores,
we have made a number of changes in our shop operating models in order to deliver a more flexible, multi-skilled and
productive model.

In July 2021, we announced the proposal to redesign management structures in Waitrose and John Lewis shops to be
simpler and more flexible. This change programme has progressed since January 2022 and, in the 52 weeks to 28 January
2023, we have recognised a net charge of £2.2m primarily related to redundancies.

Store impairments (Waitrose)

In 2023, a net impairment charge of £131.7m (2022: nil) has been recognised. The cash flow forecasts for individua!
Wiaitrose stores at January 2023 have been updated for the latest view of future trading, based on a prudent scenario which
excludes costs and benefits associated with capital investment.

The updated cash flow forecasts have led to new impairment charges of £131.9m and a reversal of impairment charges of
£0.2m for existing provisions which were previously charged as excepticnal. The charge has been recognised as exceptional
by virtue of its size, and that the circumstances which have led to the charge arising are unique and unusual, including
external factors such as higher discount rates, shifts in consumer behaviours and high inflation. See note 3.2 for further
detail.

Store impairments (John Lewis)
In 2023, a net impairment release of £18.4m (2022: £23.1m charge) has been recognised. The cash flow forecasts for
individual John Lewis stores at January 2023 have been updated for the latest view of future trading, based on a prudent

scenaric which excludes costs and benefits associated with capital investment.

The updated cash flow forecasts have led to a reversal of impairment charges of £75.8m and new impairment charges of
£57.4m. The existing provisions were previously charged as exceptional. By virtue of the size of the charge, and that the
circumstances which have led to the charge arising are unique and unusual, the charge has been recognised as exceptional.

See note 3.2 for further detail.
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Notes to the consalidated financial statements {(continued)
2.5 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (CONTINUED)

Cost of living payment

In 2022/23, the Board decided to distribute a one-off cost of fiving support payment of up to £500 per Partner; pro rata
based on scheduled weekly hours. The total cost including employers’ National Insurance was £26.7m (2022: £nil). The
Group has classified these payments as an exceptional item to provide a2 more meaningful view of the Group’s underlying

business performance because this type of payment is material and specific 1o the unusual economic circumstances this
year.

2.6 LOSS BEFORE TAX

PURPOSE

Detailed below are items (charged)/credited to arrive at our loss before tax as defined by UK-adopted IFRS and required to
be reported under UK-adopted IFRS.

2023 2022
£m fm
Staff costs (note 2.8.2) {1.819.6) (1.843.2}
Depreciation’ (476.9) (387.9)
Amortisation of intangible assets {131.5) (129.4)
Net loss on sale of property (including exceptional items) {1.0) (39.2)
Net profit/{loss) on disposal of other plant and equipment and intangible assecs 1.5 (2.6}
Net profit/(loss) on lease exit’® 2.7 {98)
Inventory — cost of inventary recognised as an expense (7,280.8) (7.359.4)
Sub-lease income:
- land and buildings 19.0 60

' Included within depreciation 15 a net impairment charge of £121.2m (2022: £35.6m) see note 3.2.
T Includes gain from the early termination of lease kabilities, less cost of the corresponding right-of-use asset and any termination payments or receipts,

Total auditor’s remuneration is included within administrative expenses, and is payable to our auditor, KPMG LLP as
analysed befow:

2023 2022
Auditor’s remuneration £m £m
Audit and audit-related services:
— Audit of the Company and consofidated financiai statements {0.8) (0.6}
— Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries (1.8) (1.2
(2.6) (1.8)
Non-audir services:
— Other assurance services (0.1} 0.0
(0.1} 0.1
Yotal fees {z.7) (19
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

2.7 RECONCILIATION OF LOSS BEFORE TAX TO CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE

PARTNERSHIP BONUS

PURPOSE

We have analysed how our loss before tax reconciles to the cash generated from our operating activities before
Partnership Bonus. Items added back to, or deducted from, loss before tax are non-cash items that are adjusted to arrive at
cash generated from operations before Partnership Bonus which is shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows. Loss
before tax includes investment costs which are riot eligible to be capitalised.

2023 2022
£m £m
Loss before tax (215.4) (27.2)
Amartisation and write-offs of intangible assets 133.4 129.4
Depreciation' 476.9 387.9
Share of profit of joint venture {net of tax) {1.2) (1.0}
Met hinance costs 74.5 144.9
Parthership Bonus . 46.4
Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments Q.1 (L.2)
{Profiti/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and early
terMination of leases {3.1) Sl.6
increase in inventories {48.5) (12.9)
Ingrease in receivables {12.7) (70.5)
Increase in payables {1.0) 77.3
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations 3.0 34
Decrease in provisions (47.7) (52.8)
3471.2 668 7

Cash generated from aperations before Partnership Bonus

"Includes a net impairment charge. See nate 3.2.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)}
2.8 PARTNERS

PURPOSE

note also covers Partner benefits, including pay for senior Partners and the Board.

The average number of FPartners employed during the year, together with details of the area of the Group in which they
work, and total employment-related costs are shown in the tables befow. The average number of full time equivalent
employees is 53,300 (2022: 56,000). At the end of the year, our total number of Partners was 74.300 (2022: 78,600). This

2.8.1 PARTNER NUMBERS

During the year the average humber of Partners in the Group was as follows:

2023 2022
John Lewis 21,100 21,200
Wiaitrose 52,700 55,800
QOther 1,606 2500
76,400 79,500
2.8.2 PARTINER PAY AND BENEFITS
Employment and refated costs were as follows:
023 2022
£m £m
S1aff costs:
Wages and salaries (1,526.1) (1,540.2)
Social security costs {119.8) (1126}
Partnership Bonus {41.4)
Employers' National Insurance an Partnership Bonus {50
Casc of living paymeanc {26.7)
Other pension charge {note 6.1.2) (137.3) (134.0)
Long leave cost .7 (100
Total before Partner discounts (1,819.4) {1.843.2)
Parwner discounts (excluded from revenuej {101.8) (105.0}
,921.4) {1.9482)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
2.8 PARTNERS (CONTINUED)
2.8.3 KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

2023 2022

&m L

Salaries and shore-rerm benefits (6.3) (AN
Post-employment benefits' {0.6) {0.5)
Termination provisions’ (1.2) -
(8.1) (6.5)

1 N N .
includes cash supplements in lieu of future pension accrual.
? Includes contractual payments and compensation for |oss of office.

Key management includes the Directors of the Company and other officers of the Group. Key management compensation
includes salaries, Partnership Bonus, National insurance costs, pension costs and the cost of other employment benefits,
such as company cars, private medical insurance and termination payments where applicable. Costs of key management

compensation are included within operating expenses and exceptional items as applicable.

Key management participate in the Group’s long leave scheme, which is open to all Partners and provides up to six months’
paid leave after 25 years’ service. There is no proportional entitlement for shorter periods of service. It is not practical to
allocate the cost of accruing entitlement to this benefit to individuals, and therefore no allowance has been made for this

benefit in the amounts disclosed.

2.8.4 DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments have been summarised below. Further details of the remuneration of Directors is given in the parts

of the Remuneration Committee report noted in John Lewis Partnership plc's Annual Report and Accounts 2023 on pages

83 to 89, which can be viewed at www.johnlewispartnership.co.uk.

2023 2022
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments (1.8) {1.8)
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Nates to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
2.9 TAXATION

PURPOSE

Qur tax charge for the year is shown below. This includes an explanation of how each item is calculated, a reconciliation of
our effective tax rate to the UK standard tax rate, and an update on any tax rate changes. We have placed further
explanatory boxes within the note to explain each table.

Ouwr Tax strategy aligns to the Principles of cur Constitution and, as a responsible leading recaifer, we recognise that paying
taxes arising from our activities is an impartant part of how our business contributes to the societies in which we operate.
The Tax strategy adopted by the Board is available on the Group’s website. In addition, our total tax contributions are
shown in john Lewis Partnership plc’s Annual Report and Accounts 2023 on page 55,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Taxation: Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred rax. Tax s recognised in the income
seatement except to the extent thac it refates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income/{expense), in
which case it is recognised directly in other comprefiensive income/{expense).

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheec liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from
differences hetween the tax bases of assets and fabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred rax arising from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination,
that ac the time of the trapsaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, is not recognised.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for alf taxable temporary differences and deferred rax assers are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised,

Deferred tax is calculated ar the tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date thac are
expected to apply to the period when the assert is realised or the liability is sertled.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
2.9 TAXATION (CONTINUED)
2.9.1 ANALYSIS OF TAX CHARGE FOR TIIC YEAR

PURPOSE

The components of our tax charge are below. The tax charge is made up of current and deferred tax. Current tax is the
amount payable on the taxable income for the year, and any adjustments ro tax payable in previous years. Current tax is
charged through the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive jncome/(expensa),
Deferred tax js explained in note 2.9.3.

2023 2022

Tax credited/{charged) to the income statement £m fm
Current tax — current year 4.9 (ren
Current tax — adjustment in respect of prior years 7.6 05
Total current tax creditv/(charge) 2.7 (10.6)
Deferred tax — current year 18.7 (14.6)
Deferred cax - rate change 9.3 (15.4)
Deferred cax — adjustment in respect of prior years 4.3 (0.5
Total deferred tax credit/(charge) 323 30 5)
35.0 “11

2023 2022

Tax creditedi(charged) to other comprehensive income £m £m
Current tax on pension scheme' 2.0 1.9
TJotal current tax credit 2.0 (:4
Deferred tax on pension scheme 147.2 (241.2)
Deferred tax on cash flow hedges {1.9) (3.5)
Total deferred tax credit/{charge) 145.3 (244.7)
147.3 (242.8)

' An additional deficit funding contribution of £10.0m has been paid by the Group during the year (2022: £13.0m) in relation to the defined benefit pension
scheme, resulting in a tax credit of £1.9m (2022: £19m) to the statement of other comprehensive income/{expense} and a corresponding reduction in our

current tax liability.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued}
1.9 TAXATION (CONTINUED)
2.9.2 FACTORS AFFECTING TAX CHARGE FOR THE YEAR

PURPOSE
Taxable profit differs from profits as reported in the income statement because some items of income or expense may
never be taxable or deductible.

The table below shows the reconcifiation between the tax charge on profits at the standard UK tax rate and the actual tax
charge recorded in the income statement ignoring the effects of temporary differences. The effective tax rate is the tax
charge as a percentage of Group profit before tax.

The tax credit for the year is lower (2022: higher) than the standard corporation tax rate of 19.0% (2022: 19.0%). The

differences are explained below:

2023 2022
£m im
Loss before tax {125.4) (27.2)
Loss before tax multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.0%
(2022: 19.0%) 42.8 32
Effects of:
Changes in tax rate 9.3 (15.4)
Adjustment in respece of prior years 1.9 -
Depreciation on assets not qualifying for tax relief (W L.7) (12.4)
Difference between accounting and tax base for land and buildings (4.4) {24)
Differences in overseas tax rates {0.1) {o.n
Sundry disaifowables (18.5) {20.5}
Cther 57 45
Total tax credit/{charge) 350 (41,1}
Effective tax rate (%) 155 (501

2.9.3 DEFERRED TAX

PURPOSE

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in the future due to temporary differences that arise when
the carrying value of assets and liabilities differ between accounting and tax treatments. Deferred tax assets represent the
amoupts of income taxes recoverable in the future in respect of these differences, while deferred tax liabilities represent
the amounts of income taxes payable in the future in respect of these differences. Here we show the movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using 2 tax rate of 25% reflecting that the rate of Corporation Tax will
increase from April 2023 to 25% for companies with profits over £250,000. The movement on the deferred tax account is
shown below:

2023 2022
Deferred tax £m im
Opening net asset/(liability) (1717.0) 982
Credited/{charged) to income statement 323 (30.5)
Credited/{charged} to other comprehensive income/{expense} 1453 (244.7)
Closing net asset/(liability) 0.6 (177.0)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

2.9 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2.9.3 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are shown below.

Revaluation Rollover Other Total
Accelerated of land and gains
Lax depreclation buildings
Deferred tax assets/(Jiabilities) im Em £m im £m
Ac 30 January 2021 (59.2) (6.6) (374 (1.0 (104.2)
Charged to income staterment (25.8) 4.1y (10.8) - {40.7)
At 29 January 2022 85.0) {10.7) (48.2) (1.0} {144.9)
Charged 1o income statemnent (F2.6) (1.3} - - (139
Charged to other comprehensive (expense)/income - - - (1.9} {19)
At 28 January 2023 (97.6) (12.0) (48.2) @9 (180.7)
Capital gains Pensions Other Total
tax on land and
and huildings provisions
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) Tax losses £ém £m £m £m £m
At 30 January 2021 237 29.0 1338 15.9 202.4
Credited/{charged) to income statement 5 10.2 29 4.6 10.2
Charged to other comprehensive (expense)/income - - (241.2) (3.5) (244.7)
At 29 January 2022 16.2 39.2 (104.5) 17.0 (32.1)
Credited/{charged) to income stacement 58.4 {3.5) (9.3) 06 46.2
Credited to other comprehensive (expense)/income - - 147.2 - 147.2
At 28 January 1023 74.6 35.7 33.4 17.6 1613
The deferred tax asset in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme is £1.7m (2022: £142.1m liability).
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention
to settle the balances net, Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances (after offset):
1023 2022
Deferred tax im £m
Deferred tax assets 57 05
Deferred tax labilities 5.0 (177.5)
Deferred tax net 0.6 (177.0}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
2.9 TAXATION (CONTINUED)
2.9.3 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The recoverability of deferred tax assets is supported by the expected level of future profits in the countries concerned.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward te the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future profits is probable. At the year end, the Group had approximately £298m of unutilised tax losses.
Deferred tax assets have been recognised on the entire amount, the recovery of which is supported by forecasts of future
profitability as set out in the Partnership Plan. Current forecasts indicate that losses wili be utilised within approximately
five years.

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension surplus has been adjusted to reflect the current tax benefit abrained
in the financial year ended 30 January 2010, following the contribution of the limited parmership interest in JLP Scottish
Limited Group to the pension scheme (see note 6.1}. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are recoverable after more than
one year.

As a resuft of exemptions on dividends from subsidiaries and capital gains on disposal there are no significant taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint arrangements.

2.9.4 FACTORS AFFECTING TAX CHARGES IN CURRENT AND FUTURE YEARS

PURPOSE
Here we explain any changes to the current or future tax rates that have been announced or substantively enacted.

The main rate of UK corporation tax is 19.0% and will increase to 25.0% from | April 2023 as substantively enacted in the
Finance Act 2021. This has increased the tax rate applied on deferred tax balances for the past two years and will increase
the tax rate applied on taxable profits and losses from the 2023/24 financial year.

The Group is aware of the upcoming Global Anti-Base Erosion Rules, which provide for an internationally co-ordinated
system of taxation to ensure that large multinational groups pay a minimum leve! of corporate income tax in countries
where they operate. The UK has not yet substantively enacted the rules, but they are expected to apply to accounting
periods beginning on or after 3| December 2023. From an initial review of the Group’s business and tax profile, we do not
expect the rules to have a material impact on the Group's tax rate or tax payments, There is no impact on the Group's
results for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
3 OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
3.1 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

PURPOSE

Qur balance sheet contains non-physical assets in relation to computer software which are used to support our business
and the generation of our profits. This note shows the cost of the assets, which is the amount we initially paid for them,
and details any additions and disposals during the year. Additionally. the note shows amortisation, which is an expense in
the income siatemont to reflect the usage of these assets. Amortisation is calculated by estimating how many years we
expect to use the assets, which is also known as the useful economic life {UEL). The amortisation charge reduces the initial
value of the assets over time spread evenly over their useful economic lives. The value after deducting accumulated
amortisation is known as the net book value.

Each year we review the value of our assets to ensure that their expected future value in use (VIU) in the business has not
fallen below their net book value. This might occur where there has been a system replacement in the year. If an asset’s
expected value in use falls below its net book value, this is reflected through an additional impairment expense, which
reduces profit.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Intangible assets: /ntangible assets, comprising both purchased and internally developed computer software, are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairments. The cost of internally developed software, including all directly
actributable costs necessary to create, produce and prepare the software for use, is capitalised where the development
meets the criteria for capitalisation required by IAS 38: Intangible Assets. This may include capitalised borrowing costs.
Internally developed software assets that are not yet in use are reviewed at each reporting date to ensure that the
development stilf meets the criteria for capitalisation, and is not expected to become impaired or abortive.

Amortisation: Once available for use, the purchased or internally developed software is amortised on a straight-line basis
over its useful economic life, which is deemed to be between three and ten years. The assets' useful economic lives are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date.

Impairment: Assets are reviewed for evidence of a trigger for potential impairment at feast annually or whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the value on the balance sheet may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s amortised cost exceeds its recoverable amount, the latter being the higher of the asset’s
fair value less costs to dispose and value in use. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately as a credit to
the income statement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
3 OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Computer software

Purchased Internally  Work in progress Total
developed

Intangible assets £m £m im m
Cost
At 30 January 2021 2227 8153 107.5 11455
Additons' - 1099 109.9
Transfers 4259 102.5 (145.4) -
Disposals ang write-offs {30.3} (74.49) (2.3) (107.0)
At 29 January 2022 1353 843.4 69.7 I, (484
Additions' - - 129.2 1292
Transfers 778 345 (hiz3
Disposals and write-offs (15.2) (48.0) .9 {65.1)
At 28 January 2023 2919 829.9 84.7 1,212.5
Accumulated amortisation
At 30 January 2021 (182.5) (495. 1% - {677.6)
Charge for the year (26.2) (103.2} - {129.4)
Disposals and write-offs 30.3 74.3 - 104.6
At 29 January 2022 (178.4) {524.0} - {T42.4)
Charge for the year {38.3) (93.1} 0.H (131.5)
Disposals and write-offs 152 480 - 632
At 28 January 1023 (201.5) (569.1) {0.1) {770.7)
het book value at 30 January 202 | 40.2 3202 1075 4679
Net book value at 29 January 2022 56.9 3194 69.7 446.0
Net hook value at 28 January 2023 76.4 160.8 84.6 441.8

' For the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023, additions far the year include the non-cash capital expenditure accrual on intangibte assets of £2.8m {2022

£2.6m).

Intangible assets principally relate to customer and distribution projects with useful economic lives of up to ten years.

There are five individually significant assets (2022: five) within the total carrying amount of intangible assets as at 28 January

2023: three are customer projects (£170.0m, 2022: three projects, £150.2m) and two relate to distribution projects

{E£101 4m, 2022: two projects £118.0m}. These assets have remaining useful economic lives ranging from three ta ten years.

During the year to 28 January 2023, computer software valued at £112.3m (2022: £145.4m) were brought inte use. This

covered a range of sefling, support, administration and information technology infrastructure applications, with usefut
economic lives ranging from three to seven years.

Amortisation of intangible assets {s charged within operating expenses.
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements (continued)
3.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

PURPOSE
Our balance sheet contains significant property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets, primarily comprising assets
refating to stores, distribution centres, offices and vehicles.

This note shows the cost of the assets, which is the amount we initially paid for them, or deemed cost if the assets were
purchased before 31 fanuary 2004 when the Group transitioned to report under UK-adopted IFRS. For right-of-use assets,
the cost is equivalent to the present value of the future lease payments relating to the leased assets. This note also details
any additions and disposals during the year, and shows depreciation, which /s an expense in the income statement to reflect
the usage of these assets. Depreciation is calculated by estimating how many years we expect to use the asset; this is also
known as the useful economic life (UEL). The depreciation charge reduces the initial value of the assets over time and
spread evenly over their useful econamic lives (UELs). The value after deducting accumuiated depreciation is known as the
net book value.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment: The cost of property, plant and equipment includes the purchase price and directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset into working condition ready for its intended use. This may include capitalised
borrowing costs.

The Group's freehold and long feasehold properties were fast revalued to fair value by the Directors, after consultation
with CB Richard Ellis, Chartered Surveyors, as at 31 January 2004. These values have been incorporated as deemed cost,
subject to the requirement to test for impairment in accordance with IAS 36: Impairment of Assets. The Group has
decided not to adopt a policy of revaluation since 31 January 2004,

Right-of-use assets: Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which is an amount equal to the corresponding
lease liabilities (present value of future lease payments) adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received. See note 5.6 for the lease liabilities accounting poficy.

Depreciation: No depreciation is charged on freehold land or assets in the course of construction. Depreciation is
calculated for alf other assets to write off the cost or valuation, less residual value, on a straight-line basis over the
following expected UELs:

Freehold and long leasehold buildings — 25-50 years

Other leaseholds — over the shorter of the UEL or the remaining period of the fease

Building fixtures — 10-40 years

Fixtures, fittings and equipment (including vehicles and information rechnology equipment} — 3-10 years

Property residual values are assessed as the price in current terms that a property would be expected ro realise, if the
buildings were at the end of their UEL. The assets’ residual values and UELs are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at
each balance sheet date.

For right-of-use assets depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the expected UEL of the lease. fudgement is
applied to estimate cthe lease UEL. This is done on an individual lease basis and considers the lease terms and the
enforceable period of the lease.

Impairment; Assets are reviewed for evidence of a trigger for potential impairment at least annually or whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the value on the balance sheet may not be recoverable. impairment testing is performed on
cash generating units (CGUSs) which are individual stores (including an allocation of online), this being the lowest level of
separately identifiable cash flows. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s net book value
exceeds its recoverable amourit, the latter being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to dispose and value in use.
Value in use calculations are performed using cash flow projections, discounted at a pre-tax rate, which reflects the asset
specific risks and the time value of money.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the CGU is increased to the revised estimate of
the recoverable amount, but ensuring the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined if no impairment loss had been recognised for the CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as a credit to the income statement when recovery of performance is considered reasonably certain.
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements (continued)
3.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

JUDGEMENTS

Depreciation: Depreciation is recorded to write down property;, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to their
residual values over their UELs. Management must therefore estimate the appropriate UELs to apply to each class of asset
as set out in the accounting policy above. Changes in the estimated UELs would alter the amount of depreciation charged
each year, which could materially impact the carrying value of the assets in question over the long term. {/ELs are therefore
reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that they are in line with policy and that those policies remain appropriate.

Application of residual values: The application of residual values to shell assets on freehold and long leasehold
properties is a key accounting judgement that impacts the depreciation charge recognised in respect of these assets.
Management has assessed that it is appropriate to apply residual values to these assets as the buildings will retain significant
value both during and at the end of their UELs. This residual value could be realised through a sale of the property or a
subletting arrangement. Management has therefore concluded that the application of residual values is consistent with the
definition set out in IAS 16.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Impairment: /n /ine with the Group s accounting policy, management must assess the value in use of each CGU when
testing for impairment. This requires estimation of the present value of future cash flows expected o arise from the
continuing operation of the CGUL These estimares require assumptions over future sales and margin performance, the
application of an appropriate discount rate and the Jl. online sales allacation. As an omnichannel retailer; the presence of a
physical store plays an important role in generating and facilitating online sales. judgement is required in relation to the
proportion of online sales and costs allocated to the future cash flows of John Lewis stores to reflect the role that the
stores play. The allocation of online sales and costs to the respective stores is based on customer sales data (which
identifies omnichanne/ customers} and physical touchpoints with a store, including Click & Coflect. Were there to be
significant changes in these estimations, the amount charged as impairment during the year could be materially impacted, or
impairment charges recognised in previous years may be reversed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
3.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Land and Fixtures, Assets in Total
buildings  fittings and course of
equipment  construction
Property, plant and equipment im £m £m im
Cost
AL 30 January 2021 44236 1,890.7 94.1 6.408.4
Additions' - - 2159 215.9
Transfers 89.2 1122 (201.4) -
Disposals and write-offs (112.6) (163.2) - (275.8)
At 29 January 2022 4,400.2 1,819.7 108.6 6,348.5
Additions' - 0.1 2242 2243
Transfers 718 1220 (200.8) -
Disposals and write-offs {13.9) (1s.n - {132.0)
At 28 January 2023 4,464.1 1,844.7 132.0 4,440.8

Accumulated depreciation

At 30 fanuary 2021 (1.888.4} (F,536.5) - (3,424.9)
Charge for the year® {132.3} (99.9) . (2322
Disposals and write-offs 760 160.0 - 2360
At 29 January 2021 (1,944.7} {1,476.4) - (3.421.1)
Charge for the year’ {161.4} (105.5) 0.1 (266.8)
Dispasals and write-offs 12.8 117.6 - 130.4
At 28 January 2023 (2,093.3} {1,464.3) 0.1 (3,557.5)
Net book value at 30 January 2021 25352 3542 94.1 29835
Net book value at 29 January 2022 2,455.5 363.3 108.6 29274
Net book value at 28 January 2023° 2,370.8 380.4 132.1 2,883.3

! For the 52 week period ended 28 [anuary 2023, additions for the year include the non.cash capital expenditure accruat on property, plant and equipment of
£34.8m (2022 £34.1m).

¥ For the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023 this includes an impairment charge of £46.6m in land and buildings (2022: £21.5m charge) and £5.2m in
fixtures and fictings (2022: £1 8m credit).

* Included wichin the net book value at 28 January 2023 are £5.3m {2022: £3.8m) of owned assets which are outside the Group's normal course of business.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Land and Fixtures, Total
buildings fittings and
equipment

Right-of-use assets £m im £m
Cost
At 30 January 2021 1,974.0 482 20222
Additions 1330 6.3 139.3
Disposals and write-offs’ (89.5) - (89.5)
At 29 January 2022 2,017.5 54.5 1,072.0
Additions 606 - 60.6
Disposals and write-offs’ (o.n - (10.7)
At 28 January 2023 2,067.4 54.5 1,121.%
Accumulated depreciation
At 30 January 2021 (478.1} (3.9) {482.0)
Charge for the year' {147.5) (82) {155.7)
Diisposals and write-offs 39.0 - 39.0
At 29 January 2022 (586.6) (2.1 (598.7)
Charge for the year' (201.8) (8.3) (210.1)
Disposals and write-offs 6.4 - 6.4
At 28 January 2023 (782.0) (20.4) (802.4)
Net book value at 30 lanuary 2021 1,495.9 443 1,540.2
Net book value at 29 January 2022 1,430.9 42,4 14733
Net book value at 28 January 2023 1,285.4 34.1 1,319.8

' For the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023 this includes an impairment charge of £69.4m (2022:
? Included within disposals and write offs is the impact of changes 1o Jeases following lease reviews.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
3.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with I1AS 36, the Group reviews its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets for evidence of a
trigger for potential impairment at least annually or whenever events or circumstances indicate that the value on the
balance sheet may not be recoverable. Each cash generating unit ({CGU) that shows an indicatien of impairment is included

in the impairment review.

Tha impairment reviewe cunpares Ui 1ecoverable amount tor each CGU to the carrying value on the balance sheet. It
considers the value in use (VIU) of a CGU compared to the carrying value in the first instance, and subsequently the fair
value less cost to dispose if the VIU is lower than the carrying value. The VIU calculation is based on five year cash flow
projections using the latest forecast data. For John Lewis, different growth expectaticns are applied to online and store
sales. The forecasts are then extrapolated beyond the five year period using a long-term growth rate of 2% for both
Waitrose and john Lewis, There are four CGUs for which the recoverable amounts are the fair value less cost to dispose
which are valued with reference to an active market and other relevant market inputs. The recoverable amounts of all
other impaired CGUs are based on the VIU.

The key assumptions used in the YIU calculation are the expected sales and margin performance, the allocation of online
sales and associated costs to stores in the determination of the John Lewis store CGU and the discount rate.

External market valuations are regularly obtained by the Group and used within the consideration of fair value less cost to
dispose. This is an annual exercise that considers the available market for properties.

Following the impairment review, the Group recognised a net impairment charge of £131.7m for Waitrose and a net
impairment release of £18.4m for John Lewis as exceptional items. Additionally, within operating expenses, an impairment
charge of £1.0m for strategic land holdings was recognised, as well as a release of £7.1m for Waitrose impairment
previously charged to operating expenses. A further £14.0m exceptional charge was recognised in relation to our Physical
Estate programme and represents the impairment of assets in our JL and Waitrose store closure programme, and the
resulting impairment from the reduction of the space we use in our Londen and Bracknell offices. The total net impairment
charge for the year following the impairment review is £121.2m.

In the value in use calculations, no specific impact has been incfuded in respect of climate change as it is not expected to be
materially different to the forecast assumptions during the forecast period.

John Lewis store impairment

The impace of the JL impairment review is a net release of £18.4m to exceptional items. The carrying value of JL plant,
property and equipment and right of use assets that were subject to impairment testing is £638.4m, after impairment. The
cash flow forecasts for the individual stores have been updated for the latest view of future trading which is based on
expected future customer behaviour, inflation and cost of living, post pandemic. For some stores, this is better than our
previous expectations, whilst for other stores performance expectations have declined. The updated cash flow forecasts
have led to a reversal of impairment charges of £75.8m and new impairment charges of £57.4m.

Cash forecasts

The calculations use a post-tax cash flow based on a five year plan approved by the Board. The plan includes the impact of
the updated property strategy, and factors in changes to customer behaviour post-pandemic as well as the impacts of
higher inflation and the associated cost of living crisis. The forecasts exclude any costs or benefits associated with capital
investments. The key assumptions in this plan are: sales which includes the continued recovery of JL store sales following
the pandemic disruption and online sales allocation; margin rates which includes the effect of cost inflation and cost
efficiencies; and discount rate. The plan differentiates between online and store sales, which is relevant to our store CGUs
that continue to include an allocation of online sales and associated costs.

For the |L business, there is significant ongoing market uncertainty and changing customer behaviours. The JL impairment

estimation is most sensitive to changes in the sales and margin forecasts, as well as the allocation of online sales and costs,
and therefore sensitivity analysis has focused on these aspects of the impairment evaluation. Reducing sales growth by 3%

would increase the net JL impairment by £27.7m. A decline of 75 bps in the margin rate would increase the JL impairment
by £20.8m.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
3.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Online sales allocation

Judgement is required as to whether online sales and associated costs should be attributed to JL stores for the purposes of
impairment evaluation. Cur allocation of a proportion of online sales, made by customers who shop both online and in
store (emnichannel), is supported by the omnichannel approach embedded in our strategy, management and operation of
our stores. [t reflects the role our stores play in providing customers with an opportunity to browse, touch and feel our
product range before purchasing online. The merchandising of the product offer in our physical estate provides inspiration
for our customers who may then choose to purchase online (in particular for larger items and more considered purchases
in our Home offer). For these reasons, online sales are allocated to stores based on Click & Collect online sales, and alse a
further proportian of online sales to reflect the role the store plays in facilitating online purchases. This further allocation is
based on evidence of a physical touchpoint with the store through previous purchasing behaviour. The allocations of the
safes and weighting of che drivers (ie Click & Collect versus further allocation to reflect the role the store plays in
facilitating online sales) varies by store.

Given the pace of change in customer behaviour and the transition to online purchasing, as well as the sensitivity of the JL
impairment to the online allocation, management continue to consider how further changes could impact impairment. If
the online aliccation assumptions were reduced such that only online sales serviced through instore Click & Collect were
allocated to CGUs, this would further increase the impairment provision by £126.1m. If no online sales were attributed to
the CGUs, the impairment provision would increase by £158.5m.

Discount rate

The pre-tax discount rate of 14.5% (2022: 12.0%) used in the calculation of cash flows is derived from the JL Weighced
Average Cost of Capical (WACC). This has increased since last year end, reflecting increased interest rates. An increase in
the discount rate of 300 bps would increase the JL impairment charge by £21.1m.

Waitrose store impairment

The impact of the Waitrose impairment review is a net charge of £124.6m, split into a net charge of £13].7m to
exceptional items and a release of £7.1m recognised in operating expenses. The carrying value of Waitrose plant, property
and equipment and right of use assets that were subject to impairment testing is £398.5m, after impairment. The plan
includes the impact of the updated property strategy, and factors in changes to customer behaviour post-pandemic as well
as the impacts of higher inflation and the associated cost of living crisis. The updated cash flow forecasts have led to new
impairment charges of £131.6m and reversal of previous impairment charges of £7.0m. The releases are due to improved
store performance which has been judged to be sustainable.

The impairment calculations for Waitrose stores use a post-tax cash flow based on a five year plan approved by the Board.

The forecasts exclude any costs or benefits associated with capital investments. The forecasts exclude any costs or benefits

associated with capital investments. The key assumptions in this plan are: sales which includes the recovery of volumes

through price investment and year-on-year sales growth; margin rates which includes the effect of costinflation and cost

efficiencies; and discount rate. Waitrose online sales are allocated directly to the store that the online order is picked and

fulfilled from. Online sales are therefore included in the Waitrose CGUs as the sales are direcdy attributable to store .
activity; this is not considered a key judgement.

The Waitrose Customer Fulfilment Centres (CFCs} have been included in the impairment review alongside the store
CGUs in a way that reflects the commercial reality that the CFCs are designed to serve specific regional postcodes of the
UK alongside the stores. '

The Waitrose impairment estimation is most sensitive to changes in the sales and margin forecasts. Reducing the sales
growth by 3% would increase the Waitrose impairment by £25.2m. A decline of 75 bps in the margin rate would increase
the Waitrese impairment by £32.1m.

The pre-tax discount rate of §3.5% (2022: 10.0%) used in the calculation of cash flows is derived from the Waitrose
Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) which has increased from last year end, reflecting increased interest rates, An
increase in the discount rate of 300 bps would increase the Waitrose impairment charge by £38.5m.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
3.3 INVESTMENT IN AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURE

PURPOSE
Cui bafance sheet includes an investment in a joint venture, Clickfink Logistics Limited, which is used to support our
business and the generation of our profits.

This note shows the cost of the investment in, and loans made to, the joint venture. It afso includes details of the share of
profitiloss and any dividends received from the joint venture during the year.

ACCOUNTING rOLICIES

Joint arrangements: The Group applies IFRS 11 joint Arrangements to all joint arrangements. Under IFRS 1/,
investments in foint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them

to be joint venwures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the equity accounted investees, from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint controf ceases.

John Lewis plc and GXO Logistics UK I Limited (formerly Clipper Logistics plc) are both investors in Clicklink Logistics
Limited. Each party owns 50.0% of the equity of Clicklink Logistics Limited and decisions regarding Clicklink Logistics
Limited require the unanimous consent of both parties.

Investment Loan Total
Joint venture £m £m £m
Caost
At 30 January 2021 2.1 2.0 4.1
At 29 January 2022 21 2.0 4.1
At 28 January 2023 21 2.0 1.1
Share of profit/(loss)
At 30 January 2021 (0.7) - {0.7)
Share of profic 1.0 - 1.0
At 29 January 2022 0.3 - a3
Share of profit 1.2 - 12
At 28 January 2023 1.5 - 1.5
At 30 January 2021 1.4 2.0 3.4
At 29 January 2022 24 20 4.4
At 28 January 2023 3.6 20 56
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continved)
3.4 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

PURPOSE

A commitment represents a contractual obligation to make a payment in the future. We have commitments for capital
expenditure. Contingent liabilities are potential future cash outflows where the likelihood of payment is more than remote
buc is not considered probable or carnnot be measured reliably.

In line with accounting standards, commitments and contingencies are not included within the balance sheet, buc are
detaifed in the note befow. The amounts below represent the maximum amounts that we are obfiged to pay.

At 28 January 2023, contracts had been entered into for future capital expenditure of £37.2m (2022: £23.3m) of which
£32.8m {2022: £20.8m) relates to property, plant and equipment and £4.4m (2022: £2.5m) relates to intangible assets.

4 WORKING CAPITAL AND PROVISIONS
4.1 INVENTORIES

PURPOSE

Our inventory is the stock available for sale or for manufaccuring our products. This note sets out the make-up of our
nventories between raw materials, work in progress and finished goods and goods for resale. Our raw materials and work
in progress are primarily refated to Herbert Parkinson and Leckford Farm. Sfow-moving and obsolete inventory is assessed
each reporting period and an appropriate provision is made against the inventory balance. The value of inventory is shown
net of provisions. Once the inventory is sold, it is charged to cost of sales in the consolidated income statement.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Inventory valuation: lnventory is stated at the lower of cost, which js computed on the basis of average unit cost, and
net realisable value. Inventory excludes merchandise purchased by the Group on a sale or recurn basis, where che Group
does not have the risks and rewards of ownership. Slow-moving and obsoclete inventory is assessed for impairment at each
reporting peried based on past experience and an appropriate provision is made. Inventory also includes a 'right to return
goods’ asset, which represents the value of inventory expected to be returned as a result of customers exercising their
rights under the Group’s returns policy. The expected favef of returns is based on past experience.

1023 2012

fnventory £m m
Raw materials 5.7 19
Work in progress 0.2 01
Finished goods 2nd goods for resale 6£95.8 6517
w0y 655.7

Provisions against inventories of £32.0m were charged (2022 £30.6m charged) to cost of sales.

Finished goods and goods for resale include a ‘right to return goods’ asset of £12.3m (2022: £12.5m). This refates to the
Group's expected returns invencory based on previous rates of return.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
4.2 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

PURPOSE
Our receivables are amounts owed to the Group. This note provides a split of receivables into trade receivables, other
receivables and prepayments and accrued income.

Trade receivables are amounts owed to us from customers and from suppliers if we are owed rebates. Other receivables
include interest receivable from third parties and amounts due from our Fartners in respect of the Group’s car finance
scheme. Prepayments are payments made in advance of the delivery of goods or rendering of services. Accrued income is
income earned by the Group for providing a product or service which has not yet been invoiced.

Other receivables and prepayments are split into current and nen-current to show those amounts due within one year and
those which will be recovered over a longer period. Trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for debts which we
do not consider to be recoverable.

ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

Trade receivables: Trade receivables are initiafly recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
less allowances for expected credit losses, using the simplified approach under IFRS 9: Financial Instruments. Such
allowances are based on an individual assessment of each receivable, which is informed by past experience, and are
recognised at amounts equal to the Josses expected to result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial asset. The Group also performs analysis on a case-by-case basis for particular trade receivables with irregular
payment patterns or history.

Supplier income (shown as part of accrued income): The price that the Group pays suppliers for goods is
determined through negotiations with suppliers regarding both the list price and a variety of rebates and discounts. The
principal categories of rebate income are in the form of volume and marketing rebates. Supplier income is broadly split
evenly between the two categories as follows:

Volume rebates: Volume rebates are earned based on sales or purchase triggers set over specific periods, such as the
number of units sold to customers or purchased from the supplier: Viblume rebates are recognised over the period set out
in the supplier agreement.

Marketing rebates: Marketing rebates include promotions, mark downs or marketing support provided by suppliers.
Marketing rebates are agreed with suppliers for specific periods and products.

Rebate income is recognised when the Group has contractual entitlement to the income, it can be estimated reliably and it
is probable that it will be received. Rebate income receivable is shown as part of trade receivables.

Rebate income is recorded against cost of sales and inventory, which is adjusted to reflect the lower purchase cost for the
goods on which a rebate has been earned. Depending on the agreement with suppliers, rebates invoiced are either received
in cash from the supplier or netted off against payments made to suppliers.

For promotions which are confirmed after the balance sheet date, the Group is sometimes required to estimate the
amounts due from suppliers at the year end. Estimates of supplier income are accrued within accrued income, and are
based on a review of the supplier agreements in place and of relevant sales and purchase data.

The majority of rebates are confirmed before the year end, therefore the level of estimate and judgement required in
determining the year end receivable is limited.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {(continued)
4.2 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

2023 2022
Trade and other receivables £m £m
Current:
Trade receivables 69.2 86.4
Other receivables 129.9 122.2
Prepayments 74.0 94.3
Accrued income 51.0 288
344.1 3317
Non-current:
Ocher receivables 14.0 113
Prepayments 29 45
16.% 158

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on ¢redit terms of less than 30 days. Concentrations of credit risk

are considered to be very limited. The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to fair value and is
denominated in Sterling. VWithin trade receivables is supplier income which has been invoiced where there is no legal righc

to offset. Included in trade payables are invoices for supplier income where there is a right to offset and the Group intends

to offset against amounts owed to suppliers (see note 4.3).

Within acerued income, there is £23.3m (2022: £11.9m} in refation to supplier income which has not yet been inveiced.
Additionally, accrued income includes £7.0m (2022: £9.8m) in relation to other operating income items (see note 2.3)
which has not been billed at the reporting date. The unbilled amounts of other operating income is made up of items that
are not individually macerial for further disclosures and had no significant changes during the period.

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses within operating expenses in the income statement. As at

28 January 2023, trade and other receivables of £0.4m (2022: £1.5m) were partially or fully impaired.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach with lifetime ECLs recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables. The reconciliation for the year is as follows:

Allowance for expected credit losses im
At 30 January 202t 2.
Charged to income statement 1.8
Released to income statement (2.5)
Written off 0.l
At 29 January 2021 1.5
Charged to sncome statement 0.l
Released to income statement 0.7)
Vritten off (0.5)
At 28 January 2023 0.4

As at 28 January 2023, trade and other receivables of £27.1m (2022: £29.2m) were past due but not impaired. The ageing
analysis of the past due amounts is as follows:

2023 2022
Ageing analysis £m £m
Up to 3 months past due 27.0 28.0
3 10 12 months past due 0.1 038
Over 12 months past due - 0.4
27.1 292
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements (centinued)
4.3 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

PURPOSE

Trade and other payables include amounts owed by the Group. We owe payments to suppliers for goods or services that
have been invoiced or accrued, and to HMRC in the form of taxes and social security. Amounts are payable to our Partners
through salaries and our annual profit share, the Partnership Bonus. Deferred income includes amounts owed to customers
through goods or services to be delivered, including in respect of free warranties. Non-current trade and other payables
and pon-current deferred income balanecs 4w nut expecied 1o be settled within the next financial year:

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Trade payables: Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Deferred income: Deferred income is recognised when the Group has received cash in advance of providing a good or
service. It includes revenue in respect of free warranties for Technology products. The Group allocates a portion of the
consideration received for the Technology product to the free warranty on a cost plus margin basis. The amount alfocated
to the free warranty is deferred and recognised as revenue over the period of the guarantee on a straight-line basis,

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Liabilities: Liabilities recognised in this note at the reporting date include amounts for unredeemed gift vouchers and gift
cards. In order to estimate these liabilities, managerment must make assumptions arcund likely redemprion rates.
Management must therefore exercise a degree of estimation when predicting redemption patterns based on actual
experience.

Deferred income: /n relation to free warranties, deferred income is based on the expected future repair or replacement
costs for all goods sold with a free warranty, plus a margin. The expected future costs are based on historical evidence of
claims and costs to repair or replace. Management exercise a degree of estimation regarding the margin percentage.

2023 2022
Trade and other payables £m £m
Current:

Trade payables (1,127.9) {1,061.9)
Amounts owing to parent undertakings (103.9) (112.0)
Orther payables (161.0) {159.4)
Other taxation and social security (159.6) {155.4)
Accruals (142.9) {183.7)
Deferred income (73.6) (88.1)
Partnership Borus - (46.4)
(1,768.9) {1,806.9)

Non-current:
Other payables - .1
Deferred income (28.3}) (29.9)
(28.3) 130.0)

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to fair value.
QOther payabies principally relate to liabilities in respect of unredeemed gift cards and gift vouchers.

Included in deferred income are contract liabilities for free warranties of £26.0m (2022: £27.6m) and payments from
customers for goods and services sold but not delivered of £54.7m (2022: £67.5m). During the year an amount of £17.8m
{2022: £12.4m) was released to the income statement in relation to free warranties matching to the period over which the
free warranties are utilised. The deferral for the year was £17.8m {2022: £9.3m}. All of the contract liabilities for goods and
services sold but not delivered at 29 January 2022 have been recognised as revenue in the 52 week period ended 28
January 2023,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued}
4.4 PROVISIONS

PURPOSE

We incur liabilities which have some uncertainty regarding the timing or the future cost required to settle them. These are
termed provisions and have been estimated and provided for at the year end. Our provisions primarily relate to the
expected cost of long leave, expected customer refunds, insurance claims, reorganisation costs and property-related costs.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES ‘
Provisions: Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation in respect of a past event, it is more likely than

not that payment (or a non-cash settfement) will be required to settle the oblfigation and where the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are discounted when the time value of money is considered material.

Employee benefits: The Group has a scheme to provide up to six months' paid leave after 25 years' service (long leave).
The cost of providing the benefits unider the scheme /s determined using the profected unit credic actuarial valuation .
method. The current service cost is included within operating profit in the consolidated income statement. The financing
elements of long leave are inciuded in finance costs in the consolidated income statement. Actuarial gains or losses are
taken directly to the consolidated income statermnent.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Provisians: As the provision for liabifities under the long leave scheme is assessed on an actuarial basis, estimates are
required for the appropriate discount rate, staff turnover, salary increases and inflation,

Long Customer Insurance Reorganisation Other Total )
leave refunds <laims

Provisions £m £m érn £m £ im
At 29 fanuary 2022 (i44.4) (24.8) (24.3) (49.6} (58.9) (302.0}
Charged to income statement (12.6) {46.2) (8.3) {13.0) (10.3) {90.4)
Released 1o income statement 267 - .o 4.6 110 433
Utilised 9.1 482 72 472 12.2 1239
At 28 january 2023 {12L.2) (22.8) (24.49) {10.8) (46.0) (225.2)
Of which:

Current (348) (22.8) (12.9) (10.8) 1.0 {1023y
Noh-current (86.4) - (11.5) - (25.0) (1229)

The Group has a long leave scheme, open to all Partners, which provides up to six months’ paid leave after 25 years’
service. There is no proportional entitlement for shorter periods of service. The provision for the liabilities under the
scheme is assessed on an actuarial basis, reflecting Partners’ expected service profiles, salary growth, National Insurance
and overtime earnings assurnptions. The real discount rate applied differs from the real discount rate used for the Group’s
retirement benefits (nate 6.1} as it reflects a rate appropriate to the shorter duration of the long leave liability, so as to
accrue the cost over Partners’ service periods.

Provisions for customer refunds reflect the Group's expected liability for retwrns of goods sold based on experience of
rates of return.

Provisions for insurance claims are in respect of the Group's employer’s, public and vehicle third-party liability insurances.
The provisions are based on reserves held in the Group’s captive insurance company, JLP Insurance Limited. These reserves
are established using independent actuarial assessments wherever possible, or a reasonable assessment based on past
claims experience.

Provisions for recrganisation reflect restructuring and redundancy costs, principally in relation to central operations
reviews, shop closures and the review of shop management structures (note 2.5). '

Other provisions primarily include property-related costs including dilapidations provisions.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
5 FINANCING
5.1 NET FINANCE COSTS

PURPOSE

Net finance costs include our costs in respect of interest payable on borrowings, our defined benefit pension and other
employee benefit schemes. Finance income includes interest received from short-term deposits, short-term investments
and fair value movements.

2023 2022
fm £fm

Finance costs
Net interest payable on:
Commitment fees and bank overdrafts (2.3) 22)
Other loans repayable within five years' (25.7) (28.9)
Other loans repayable in more than five years {12.7) (12.8
Interest payable in relation to lease liabilities (?1.8) (97.3}
Amortisation of issue costs of bonds and credit facilities (2.0) (2.5)
Finance costs in respect of borrowings (134.5) (143.7)
Fair value measurements and other (5.2) (2.8}
Net finance costs arising on defined benefit retirement scheme - (8.7}
Total finance costs (139.7) (155.2)
Finance income
Finance income in respect of cash and short-term investments’ 20.7 7.2
Fair vajue measurements and other 4.7 31
Net finance income arising on other empjoyee benefit schemes 398 -
Total finance income 65.2 10.3
Net finance costs {74.5) (1449)

' Other loans repayable within five years includes interest payable on interest rate swaps of £6.6m (2022: £5.0m).
* Finance income in respect of cash and short-term investments includes interest receivable on interest rate swaps of £6.1m (2022 £6.1m).

Capitalised borrowing costs totalled £1.4m {2022: £0.6m) of which £0.3m (2022: £nil) were capitalised within intangible
assets and £1.1m (2022: £0.6m) were capitalised within property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
5.2 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT

PURPOSE

Net debt summarises our debt position as at the year end, excluding any pension deficit. Net debt incorporates the
Group’s borrowings, bank overdrafts, fair value of derivative financial instruments and obligations under leases. These
liabilities are offset by cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and a portion of bond transaction costs that relate
to the remaining duration of the bond. This note shows how our net debt position has moved from the prior year end.

split out between cash movements and non-cash movements.

2022 Cash Other 2013
movements non-cash
movements £m
£m £m £m
Non-current assets
Derivative financiat inserumencs L7 - (0.1} 1.6
1.7 - ©.n 1.6
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14154 (377.3) - 1,038.1
Short-term investments 95.3 (95.0) - 0.3
Derivacive financial inscruments 6.0 (329) 382 1.3
15167 {505.2) 382 1,049.7
Current fiabilities
Borrowings and overdrafts {150.0 i50.0 (50.0 {50.0)
Lease fiabilities {156.6) 1247 (216.6) (148.5)
Derivative financial instruments (8.4} 31 1.3 (4.0)
(315.0) 3778 (265.3) (202.5)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (650.0) - 50.0 {600.9)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 74 - (1.4 6.0
Fair value adjustment for hedged element on bonds 1.0 - 52 6.2
Lease liabilities {1831 - ] (),754.7)
Drerivative financial instruments (0.8) - (8.0) (8.8)
(2.474.1) - 1228 (2,.351.3)
Total net debt (1270.7) (127.4) {104.4) (1,502.5)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (centinued)
5.2 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT (CONTINUED)

2023 2022
Recanciliation of net cash flow to net debt im £m
Decrease in net cash and cash equivalencs in the year {377.3) (102.8)
Cash outflow from borrowings 150.0 750
Cash (inflow)/outflow from movement in shore-term investments (¥5.0) 954
Cash inflow from SIP shares {0.1) -
Cash outflow from movement in other net debt items 194.9 2741
Cash movement in net debt for the year (127.5) 3443
Operiing net debt (1,270.7) (1,405.5)
MNon-cash mevement in net debt for the year {104.4) (206.5)
Closing net debt (1,502.6) {1.270.7)
Our total borrowings and lease liabilities are summarised below.
Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
fm £m £m
At 30 January 202§ (875.0) (2,037.3) (2,912.3)
Movements arising from operating cash flows - 97.3 97.3
Movements arising from financing cash flows 106.1 155.1 261.2
Othey non-cash movements (310 (203.4) (234.5)
At 29 january 2022 (600.0) (1,988.3} (2,788.3)
Movements arising from operating cash flows - 91.8 9L8
Movemenes arising from financing cash flows 181.1 132.9 314.0
Other non-cash movements (3.5 (139.6) (170.7)
At 28 January 2023 (650.0) (1,903.2} (2,553.2)

Borrowings exclude unamortised bond transaction costs of £6.0m (2022:

element on bonds of £6.2m gain (2022: £1.0m gain).

5.3 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

£7.4m) and the fair value adjustment for hedged

PURPOSE

Qur short-term investments represent amounts on short-term deposits. They are deposited for a period of greater than
90 days but less than one year with financial institutions.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Short-term investments: Short-term investments comprise tradable securities and deposits with original maturities of
greater than 90 days but less than one year. Maturity periods are not the scle factor: Investments in Variable Net Asset
Values (VINAV) with a weighted average maturity of less than 90 days, are included within short-term investments due to
the fact they do not bear an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2023 2022
Short-term investments £m £m
a.3 953

Shortterm investments

For the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023, the effective interest rate on short-term investments was 1.3% (2022:
0.3%) and these investments had an average maturity of 93 days (2022: 102 days).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
5.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PURPOSE
Our cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash placed on short-term deposits of less than 90 days with
financial institutions and money market funds.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents on the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and
short-term deposits with original maturities of less than 90 days which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. In the consolidated statement of cash flows, net cash and casft equivalents comprise cash and cash equivalents, as
defined above, net of bank overdrafts.

1023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents £m fmr
Cash ac bank and in hand 142.9 1625
Short-term deposits 875.2 1,252.9
1,038.) 1,415.4

For the 52 week period ended 28 [anuary 2023, the effective interest rate on short-term deposits was |.4% (2022: 0.0%)
and these deposits had an average maturity of six days (2022: two days).

At 28 January 2023, £12.4m (2022: £13.4m) of the Group’s cash balance and £0.Im (2022; £nil) of the Group’s accrued
interest balance was pledged as collateral. This is part of the Group's insurance arrangements and the release of these funds

is subject to approval from third parties.

5.5 BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS

PURPOSE

Qur borrowings comprise bonds, bank loans, bank overdrafts and Share Incentive Plan shares, which are held in trust for
the benefit of Partners.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Borrowings: Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs and subsequently measured at

amortised cost. Where there is an effective related fair value hedge, the movement in the fair value attributable to the
hedged risk is separately disclosed.

Arrangement costs for bonds and loan facilities in respect of debt are capitalised and amortised over the life of the debt at
2 constant rate. Finance costs are charged to the income statement, based on the effective interest rate of the associated
borrowings.

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised. Qualifying assets are
those that take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use. Capitalisation commences when both
expenditure on the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred. Capitalisation ceases when the asset is ready for jts
intended use. The capitalisation rate used to determine the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is 5.6% (2022: 4.2%).

Share Incentive Plan: The Share Incentive Pian (SIP or BonusSave) is initially measured at fair value and the liability is
subsequently measured at amortised cost. It is de-recagnised once the liability has been settled.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued}
5.5 BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS (CONTINUED)

2023 2022
Burrowings and overdrafts im fm
Current:

Bank loans' (50.0) (150.0)
(50.0% (13U.)

Non-current:
Bank loans' - (50.0)
6% Bonds, 2025 (300.0) (300.0)
4% Bonds, 2034 (300.0) (300.0)
Unamortised bond and lean transaction costs 4.0 7.4
Fair value adjustment for hedged element on bonds 6.2 1.0
{587.8) (641 6)

"£{50m of term loans were repaid during 2022/23. See note 7.1.2.

All borrowings are unsecured, denominated in Sterling and are repayable on the dates shown, at par.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
5.6 LEASE LIABILITIES

PURPOSE

The Group enters into leases for property, plant and equipment. The Group’s lease portfolio principally comprises
property leases of land and buildings in relation to Waitrose and John Lewis shops, distribution centres and head offices.
The leases typically run for terms between 5 and {00 years and may include break clauses or options to renew beyond the
non-cancellable periods. The majority of the Groups lease payments are subject to market review, usually every five years,
and some lease agreements include rental payments contingent on turnover or economic indices. These contingent lease
payments are excluded from the calculation of lease liabilities under IFRS 16: Leases.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Lease liabilities: The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on whether the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Under IFRS 16, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at the lease cornmencement date. The lease
liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not yet paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’ incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate and this rate is determined
on a portfolio basis, in relation to asset type and location.

Lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost and are increased by the interest charge and decreased by the
lease payments made. Lease liabilities are remeasured when there is a change in future Jease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or as
appropriate, changes in the assessment of whether a renewal or purchase option is reasonably certain to be exercised or 2
break clause is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has elected to apply the exemption for recognising tHight-of-use assets and lease liabilities an the balance sheet
where the underlying asset is of low value. Lease expenses relating to low value assets will be recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis.

In relation specifically to vehicle leases, the Group has also elected to apply the exemption for short-term leases and
therefore will not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet for vehicle leases of less than {2
months in duration.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the income statement when incurred.

Sub-lease incame is recognised as other operating income on a straight-line basis over the sub-lease term, less allowances
for situations where recovery is doubtful.

Sale and leaseback: A safe and Jeaseback transaction is where the Group sells an asset and immediately leases back the
same asset from the buyer. On sale. the property, piant and equipment asset is derecognised from the balance sheet and
the Group measures 2 right-of-use asset arising from the feaseback at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of
the asset that relates to the rights of use retained by the Group. The Group also recognises a lease liability at the date of
the transaction. Any gain or loss that relates to the rights of the buyer is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
5.6 LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The following amounts are included in the Group's consolidated financial statements in respect of its leases:

2023 2022

£m £m

Depreciation charge for right of use assets (excluding impairment) {see note 3.2) (140.8) (139.8)
Interast, expense A lease liabilitics (91.8) (97.2)
Expense relating to short-term leases (4.3) (1.7}
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets that are not shown above as shorc-term leases 0.3) (.8
Expense relating 1o variable lease payments not included in lease liabitities 3.7 (3.3)
Totat cash outflow for leases comprising interest and capital payments (see note 5.2) {224.7) (2524
Additions to right-of-use assets (see note 3.2) 60.6 1393
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets (see note 3.2) 1,319.5 1,473.3
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets 10.0 60

We currently do not disclose potential future undiscounted lease payments not included in lease liabilities as these are

subject to a high level of judgement regarding expected lease extension terms and future end dates. Additionally, the value
of rental payments are subject to future market rates applicabie as at the date of extension which are parameters not yet
publicly known. As a result, we do not consider the potential future undiscounted lease payments to be able to be reliably

estimated. There were no leases not yet commenced to which the Group is committed that are not included in lease

liabilities as at the year end.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
6 PENSIONS
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

PURPOSE

The Group’s pension scheme is made up of two parts: the defined benefit section and the defined conuibution section. The
defined benefit section provides a non-contributory pension in retirement based on Partners’ pensionable pay and
pensionable service. The defined concribution section is where contributions made by Fartners and the Group are invested
in a chofce of funds and then the contributions and investment returns are used to buy benefits on recirement.

The consolidated balznce sheet includes a retirement benefit asset or liability, which is the expected future cash flows to be
paid out by the defined benefit section of the pension scheme, offset by assets held by the scheme to meet these liabilities.
The expected liabilities are calculated by an actuary using a number of financial and demographic assumptions whilst the
assets are held at fair value. The defined benefit section of the scheme closed to future accrual on I April 2020,

The defined contribution section of the scheme is avaifable to all Partners and pays fixed contributions into individual
investment funds on Partners’ behalf. There is therefore no liability on the Group balance sheet relating to the defined
contribution section of the pension scheme, other than any accrual for the previous period’s monthly defined contribution
payments.

This note details the financial and demographic assumptions made in estimating the defined benefit obligation, together
with an analysis of the components of the pension lability. ft afso explains where these amounts have been recorded in the
consofidated bafance sheet and the consofidired income statement.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Employee benefits: The defined benefit scheme assets are held separately from the Group. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit section of the scheme is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method,
which measures the liability based on service completed and aflows for projected future increases.

Remeasurements of defined benefit pension schemes due to experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income during the period in which they arise.

There are a number of unfunded pension labilities, where the actuarially assessed costs of providing the benefit are charged
to the consolidated income statement. There are no assets supporting these arrangements.

Contributions to the Group’s defined contribittion section are charged to the income statement as they are incurred. The
Group has no further obligation once the contributions have been made.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Retirement benefits: This section details the assumptions used to calculate the total defined benefit pension obligation.
This is the estimate of the current cost of meeting future benefits to be paid out by the pension scheme. The calculation
requires the application of a discount rate to estimate the present day fair value of the pension payments, as well as
assumptions on mortality rates and inflation. Given the size of the Group’s defined benefit obligation, relatively small
movements in these assumptions could cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the obligation. Sensitivity
analysis on the key assumptions is provided in note 6.1.5. The pension scheme asset includes a variety of assets including
those where a market quotable price is not available (level 3). The assets are vaiued by third party fund managers using a
variation of valuation models (see note 6.1.4).

Retirement benefits

The pension scheme operated by the Group is the lohn Lewis Partnership Trust for Pensions. The scheme is governed by a
corporate trustee which is independent of the Group. The Trustee is responsible for the operation and governance of the
scheme, including making decisions regarding the scheme’s investment strategy.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The scheme includes a funded final salary defined benefit section, providing pensions and death benefits to members. This
scheme closed to new members and future acerual on | April 2020 and all active members of the scheme moved to

become deferred members.
All contributions to the defined benefit section of the pension scheme to meet the obligations are funded by the Group.

The scheme also includes a defined contribution section, Contributions to the defined contribution section of the scheme
are made by both Partners and the Group.

There are a number of unfunded pension liabilities, where the actuarially assessed costs of providing the benefit are charged
to the consolidated income statement. There are no assets supporting these arrangements.

Actuarial valuation

The pension scheme is suhjert to a full actuarial valualion every three years using assumptions agreed between the
Pensions Trust and the Group, The purpose of this valuation is to design a funding plan to ensure that the pension scheme
has sufficient funds available to meet future benefit payments.

The last valuation was completed by an independent professionally qualified actuary as at 31 March 2C19. The valuation at
that date showed a funding deficit of £58.0m (31 March 2016: £479.0m deficit). The actuarial valuation showed that the
scheme assets were sufficient to cover 99% (31 March 2016: 90%) of the benefies which had accrued to members.

As a result of the actuarial valuation, the Group and the Trustee agreed to put in place a plan te eliminate the deficit of
£58.0m over a six year period. As part of this plan, it was agreed that deficit reducing contributiens would be paid in equal
monthly instalments from | April 2020 to 31 March 2026 totalling £10m per annum.

We are in the closing stages of finalising the 31 March 2022 actuarial valuation. We expect the results of the valuation to
show that, since the last valuation in 2019, the funding position of the scheme and the estimated time period to low
dependency has improved, and this may mean that no deficit contributions will be required ahead of the next triennial
valuation in 2025.

IAS 19 accounting valuation

In the financial statements the liabilities are determined in accordance with iAS 19: Employee Benefits. Ac the year end,
there was an IAS |9 accounting pension deficit of £101.9m (£100.2m after deferred tax), compared to a surplus of £473.5m
in January 2022 {£331.4m post deferred tax). The accounting position reflects the gap between the market value of pension

assets held by our defined benefit scheme and the IAS |9 value of cur pension liabilities.

At the year end, IAS 19 pension liabilities for the defined benefit obligation for funded arrangements were £4,475.9m, down
from £6,732.7m at January 2022, with the reduction largely attributable to an increase in the discount rate as a result of
increasing interest rate expectations, partly offset by this year’s inflation figure being higher than expected. The market
value of pension assets was £4,387.8m, down from £7,225.5m at January 2022. The reduction was largely due to a fall in
the value of liability driven investments designed to hedge interest rate and inflation risks related to the pension scheme’s
liabilities (as measured on the actuarial basis).

Differences between the actuarial valuation and accounting valuation

The actuarial valuation will almost always be different compared with the accounting valuation, mainly due to the use of
different assumptions to value the liabilities. The discount rate used for the accounting valuation is prescribed by the
accounting standard and assumes that pension assets are invested in high quality (AA) corporate bond yields of an
appropriate term. The actuarial discount rate is determined based on assumptions set by the Trustee following consultation
with the Group and Scheme Actuary, and takes into account the scheme’s actual investment strategy, expected evolution of
the investment strategy (the journey plan) and the Trustee’s view of the Group’s covenant.

Whilst the accounting valuation is useful for comparing pension schemes across different businesses, it does not take into

account the scheme's actual investment strategy, ofeen producing a higher value of liabilities than the technical provisions
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

valuation, and therefore it is of less use for scheme funding purposes. It is the actuarial valuation, not the accounting
valuation, that is used to judge the cash contributions from the Group to the scheme.

Investment strategy and de-risking

The Pensions Trust’s investment strategy is consulted upon with the Group. The investment strategy is designed to ensure
the scheme can pay members benefits as they fall due, while also targeting full funding on a low dependency basis. The
Trustee will pursue an investment strategy that generates investment returns in excess of government bonds bur with a risk
level that is commensurate with the strength of the covenant.

Following positive progress aver most of 2022, the pension scheme was affected by extreme market volatility in September
and October folfowing the UK Government's 'mini budget’, which created significant instability in the economy and financial
markets. In order to preserve suitable liquidity within the Trust’s assets, the hedge (a liability matching strategy designed to
protect against movements in interest rates and inflation on the actuarial basis) was reduced from 00% to 75% of assets.
As at 31 March 2023 the hedge was increased to 100% of liabilities on a technical provisions basis. The Pensions Trust
continues to manage scheme risks carefully and appropriately. The pension scheme remains liquid and well funded despite
the market volatility.

Recognition of a retirement benefit surplus

The Group recognised a retirement benefic surplus posicion at the prior year balance sheet date. The recognition of a
surplus is determined by (AS 19 and applying IFRIC 14 which is an interpretation providing furcher guidance about when a
surplus can be recognised. The Group considers that under the Pension scheme rules, the Group has an unconditional right
to a refund of surplus after all pension payments have been made. As such the surplus was recognised as the amount that
the Group has a right to receive as a refund.

Risk management

The cost of the scheme to the Group depends upon a number of assumptions about future events. Future contributions
may be higher or lower than those currently agreed if these assumptions are not borne out in practice or if different
assumptions are agreed in the future.

Specific risks include:

e Changes in future expectations of price inflation: the majority of the scheme's benefit obligations are linked 1o
inflation (subject to a cap) and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities. Changes in the liabilities due to
changes in inflation expectations are broadly offset by the Trustees’ liability matching strategy as detailed in note
6. {the liability matching scheme is designed to hedge the actuarial liabilities and not the accounting measurement
of liabilities),

® Changes in the discount rate used to value pension liabilities: a lower discount rate will lead to higher liabilities.
Chn an actuarial basis, changes in the technical provision fiabilities due to changes in the discount rate are broadly
offset by the Trustees’ liability matching strategy as detailed above. On an accounting basis, if the change in the
discount rate is driven solely by an increase in credit spreads (and not gilt movements which is what the liability
matching strategy hedges) then there will not be an offsetting impact on the assets for accounting purposes;

e  The return on assets being Jower than assumed: if the rate of growth in assets falls below the discount rate used
to value the liabilities then the pension deficit {surplus) will increase (reduce). This is offset in part by the
Trustee’s investment strategy of holding a diversified portolic of assets as detailed in note &6.1.4;

®  Falls in asset values not being matched by simifar falls in the value of liabilities: as the majority of assets held by
the scherne are not matched to the liabilities of the scheme, a fall in plan assets will lead to an increase
(reduction) in the deficit (surplus). This is offset in part by the Trustee’s investment strategy of holding a
diversified portfolio of assets as derailed in note 6.1.4;

®  Unanticipated increase in life expectancy leading to an increase in the scheme’s liabilities: an increase in life
expectancy would mean pensions are expected to be paid for a longer period, increasing the obligations and
increasing {decreasing) the scheme's deficit (surplus). This is mitigated in part by the benefit design including a Life
Expectancy Adjustment Factor, whereby future pensions coming into payment are adjusted to allow for increases
in life expectancy.
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Notes to the consoclidated financial statements (continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
6.1.1 ASSUMPTIONS

PURPOSE

This section details the assumptions used to calculate the total defined benefit pension obligation. This is the estimate of
the current cost of meeting future benefits to be paid out by the pension scheme. The calculation includes applying a
discount rate to estimate the present day fair value of the pension payments, allowing for future expected increases fn
earnings and pension payments and the life eyvpectancy of the roembers of the pension scheme.

Financial assumptions
Scheme assets are stated at market values at 28 January 2023. The following financial assumptions have been used to value

the obligation:

2023 2022
Dis¢ount rate 4.65% 2.30%
Future RPI inflation 3.00% 3.30%
Furure CPI inflation 2.60% 285%
Increase in pensions — in payment
Pre-April 1997 1.85% 1.95%
April 1997-April 2016 2.85% 3.05%
Post-April 2016 1.85% 1.95%
Iicrease in pensions — deferred 2.60% 2.85%

Nominal discount rate: IAS |9 requires that the nominal discount rate is set by reference to market yields on high
quality corporate bonds of a suitable term consistent with the scheme cash flows. The Group’s pension scheme has cash
flows spanning out over 50 years and an average duration of 17 years. The model adopted by the Group is a yield curve
approach, based on corporate bonds within the iBoxx AA corporate bond index. Where there are no high quality
corporate bonds of appropriate duration to reference, an extrapolation from other bond yields is required. Following
actuarial advice, the criteria used to determine which bonds are included in the model has been updated during the year, to
ensure the discount rate remains robust to changes in bond yields. This change in estimate has increased the discount rate
by 0.2% at 28 January 2023

Future RPI and CPl inflation: The inflation assumptions used to calculate the Group's defined benefit pension
abligations are based on a cash flow weighted Bank of England RPE, which is then adjusted for inflation risk. The Group has
reflacted the impact of RPI reform to align RPI with CPIH (a variant of the Consumer Price Index that includes an estimate
of housing costs) expected from 2030 onwards An inflation risk premium of 0.2% has been applied until 2030, increasing to
0.5% beyond this date (an average margin of 0.35%). A long-term gap of [.0% between RPl and CPI has been applied until
2030, reducing to 0.1% beyond this date (an average long-term gap of 0.45%).

Demographic assumptions

The post-retirement mortality assumptions used in valuing the pension liabilities were based on the 53 (2022: 52 Light})
series standard tables. Based on scheme experience, the probability of death at each age was multiplied by 118% for males
and |00% for females who were non pensioners and 109% for males and 97% for females who were pensioners (2022:
127% for males and §06% for females who were non pensioners and |130% for males and 109% for females who were
pensioners). This reflects evidence of lower life expectancy due to delayed medical intervention as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic. Future improvements in life expectancy have been allowed for in line with the CMI 2021 improvements model
with a smoothing parameter of 7.0 (2022: CMI 2020, smoothing parameter of 7.0) subject to a long-term trend of 1.25%.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINVED)

6.1.1 ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The average life expectancies assumed were as follows:

2023 2022

Male Eemale Maje Female

Average life expectancy for a 65 year old (in years) 213 24.0 210 234
Average life expectancy at age 65, for a 50 year old (in years) 1.6 249 220 247

6.1.2 AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PURPOSE

This section details the amounts recognised in our consofidared financial starements in relation to the defined benefit
section of our pension scheme. This consists of the net pension asset and liability. recognised on our balance sheet, the
cost of providing the pension benefit over the year, recognised in the income statement, and actuarial gains and losses
(being changes in assumptions, or assumptions not being borne out in practice} which are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income/(expense). The movements are broken down into the key components that impact the defined
benefit section of the pension scheme.

2023 2022
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet £im fm
Defined benefic obligation for funded arcangenments (4,475.9) {6.732.7)
Tocal value of scheme assets 4,387.8 72255
Tocal funded defined banefic {fiabilicy)/asset at end of year (88.1) 452.8
Defined benefit obligation for unfunded arrangements (13.9) {199
Defined benefit {liability)/asset at end of year {net) (1oL 4735

PURPOSE

The cost of providing the pension scheme over the year, recognised in the consolidated income statement, is broken down
as follows:

Service cost is the cost to the Group of future benefits earned by members which is attributable to members’ service in
the current period. Following the closure of the defined benefit section of the pension scheme on | April 2020, no further
service costs will be recognised.

Contribution expense is in respect of the Group's contributions to the defined contribution section of the pension scheme
and cash supplements in respect of certain Partners in lieu of future pension accrual.

Administrative expenses are in relation to the pension scheme. Net interest on the net defined benefit lability is made up
of the interest cost on pension liabifities and interest income on pension assets.

2623 2022
Amounts recognised in the income staternent €m £m
Contribution expense' (114.2} (115.3)
Administrative expenses — funded by the pension scheme (9.4) (7.6}
Administrative expenses — funded by the employer (1.7 (1
Total operating expense {137.3) (134.0)
Ner interest on net defined benefir liability Iy (2.9)
Total pension charge (126.3) (143.9)

' Includes Group contributions to the defined contribution section of the pension scheme of £113.1m (2022: £113.9m), together with cash supplements in
respect of certain Partners in lieu of future pensian accrual of £1.1m {2022: £1.4m).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED})
6.1.3 RECONCILIATION OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

2023 2022
Amounts recognised in equity £m £m
Return on plan assets greater than interest income (2.812.2) 505.6
Remeasurements:
— gain from changes in financial assumptions 2,634.1 500.9
— (loss)/gain from changes in demographic assumptions {70.2} 53
— experience (losses}/gains (351.2) 105.1
Total {loss)/gain recognised in equity (599.5) FE16.9
PURPOSE

The net defined benefit pension asset/(hability) is the difference between the total pension liability (being the expected cost
of making future defined benefit pension payments) and scheme assets. The table below details movements in the net
defined benefit pension asset/(liability) during the year. Movements in scheme assets are explained further in 6.1.4.

Movements in the net defined benefic asset/(liability} are as follows:

Pension expense, which is the cost associated with providing defined benefit pension benefits over the year. This is equal to
the pension operating expense set out above in 6.1.2, but excluding contribution expense and administrative expenses met
directly by the employer:

Coneributions paid into the scheme will increase the value of the net pension asset.

Gains or Josses recognised in equity relating to returns on plan assets being different to the interest income and
remeasurements (explained further below).

2023 2022
Reconciliation of net defined benefit (liability)/asset £m £m
Net defined benefit asset/(liabilicy) at beginning of year 473.5 (646.9)
Pension credit/(charge} 1.7 {17.5)
Contributions 224 219
Total (losses)/gains recognised in equity (599.5) 11169
Net defined benefit (liability)/asset at end of year (101.9) 4735

PURPOSE

The total pension liability (or defined benefit obligation) represents the current cost of meeting the future benefits to be
paid out by the scheme. The mevements in the defined benefit obligation are broken down into key areas that impact the

obligation as follows:

Future pension obligations are stated at present value. A discount rate is used to calculate the current value of the future

liability.

The interest on pensions liabilities js the unwinding of this discount rate and is charged to the income statement within net

finance costs.

Remeasurements arise from the uncertainty in making assumptions abour future events when calculating the liability. These
may arise from changes in assumptions, for example movements in the discount rate, or experience adjustments which
result from differences between the assumptions made and what actually occurred over the period. Remeasurements are

recognised in equity and shown in the statement of comprehensive income/(expense).

Any cash benefits paid our by the scheme will reduce the defined benefit obligation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
6.1.3 RECONCILIATION OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

2023 2022
Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation £m m
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year {6,752.0) {7,443.5)
Incerasc on pension labilities (153.0) {(H14.0y
Remeasurements:
— gain/{loss} from changes in financial assumptions 2,634.1 500.9
— (loss)gain from changes in demographic assumptions (70.2) 53
~ expetience {losses)gains @s5LY 1051
Benafits paid 102,46 194.2
Defined benefit obligation at end of year (4,489.7) (6,752.0)

The scheme labilities are §5.2% (2022: 71.9%) in respect of deferred scheme participants and 44.8% (2022: 28.1%) in
respect of retirees.

The weighted average duration of the scheme liabilities at the end of the year is |7 years (2022: 22 years). The reduction in
duration is due to the significant increase i discount rates.

PURPOSE

The pension scherne holds 2 number of investrnents to meet future pension payments, referred to as the assets of the
scheme. This note decails movements in the value of pension assets during the year The movements are broken down into
key areas that impact the pensian assets as follows:

Interest income on assets represents the expected return on investments i it is in fine with the discount rate. [t is
calcufated as the discount rate at the beginning of the year multiplied by the value of the assets at the beginning of the year.

This is recognised within net finanice costs in the income statement.

Return on plan assets greater/(less) than interest income represents how much greater or less the actual return is than the
interest income. This is recognised in equity and shown in the statement of comprehensive income/(expense).

Any cash benefits paid out or expensss paid by the scheme will reduce the value of the scheme’s assets.

Coneributions paid into the scheme will increase che value of che scheme’s assets.

2023 2022
Reconciliation of value of assets £m m
Value of assets at the beginning of year 7,225.5 6,796.6
Interest income on assecs 164.1 104.1
Return on plan assets greater than interest income {2,812.2) 505.6
Benefits paid {202.6) (194.2)
Administrative expenses paid 9.4 (7.6)
Conuributichs 114 2i.0
Value of assets at the end of year 4,187.8 72155
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
6.1.4 ANALYSIS OF ASSETS

2023 2022
Quoted Unquoted Total Tetal Quoted Ungquoted Total Toral
£m £m £m £m im £m

Equities
UK - - - - 10.5 10.8 21.3 0.3%
Rest of the world - - - - 368.1 520.7 £88.38 12.3%
Bonds
Government — Rest of the world - - - - 197.0 10.6 2076 2.9%
Corpgrates — UK - - - - 238 05 243 0.3%
Corporates — Rest of the world - - - - 3scR 2473 6287 B./%
Property
UK - 594.0 594.0 13.5% - 554.1 554.1 T7%
Alternative assets
Liabilicy driven invescmencs - 1,630.8 1,630.8 37.2% - 3.020.6 3,0206 41.8%
Hedge funds - 254.2 254.2 5.8% - 3744 374.4 5.2%
Private equity - 477.0 477.0 10.9% - 519.3 5193 7.2%
Other alternative assets - 501.4 60(.4 13.7% - 8107 810.7 11.2%
Cash and other 830.4 - 830.4 18.9% 1757 - 1757 2.4%
Total market value of assets 830.4 3,557.4 4,387.8 160.0% 1,155.9 60696 72155 100.0%

Equities and bonds which are traded on active markets are included at the quoted price, which is normally the bid price.

Level 3 assets are investments where a market quotable price is not available. The fair values of these assets are derived in
accordance with IFRS 13 and provided by the relevant fund manager. Final audited year-end valuations for some of these
assets are not available until after the year-end. As part of the checks carried out on these assets, a retrospective review is
carried out for the purposes of these accounts and finally once all year-end valuations are available.

Freehold properties are stated at fair value as determined by CBRE Ltd, who are Royal [nstitution of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) Registered Valuers. Valuations included in the financial statements are valued as at 31 December 2022 in accordance
with the current edition of the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards Global and UK, and Financial Reporting Standard
102. The valuer's opinion of fair value was primarily derived using comparable recent market transactions on arm’s length
terms, and reflects the rental income from current tenants, the remaining term of current leases, and market rents for the
locations in which the properties were based. The fair value of the indirect property assets is based on the most recent
available fund valuation at 31 December 2022 adjusted for cash flows to year end.

Hedge funds, private equity funds, private credit funds, insurance linked funds and infrastructure funds are valued at fair
value by the investment managers or their third-party agents, having regard to professional valuations, asset values and
other appropriate financial information. For private equity funds, private credit funds and infrastructure funds, fair values
are based on the most recently available quarterly valuations adjusted where relevant for cash flows to year end. This is 31
December 2022 for all funds with the exception of £71.0m of private equity funds for which this is 30 September 2022,
Hedge funds and insurance linked funds are valued monthly including at the end of January. Various different valuation
methods and assumptions are utilised by the fund managers as appropriate for the underlying investment including
discounted cash flows, enterprise value, cost plus accrued interest and external pricing. Where internal cash flow modelling
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
6.1.4 ANALYSIS OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

has been performed, significant assumptions will include discount rate and expected cash flows. The sensitivity of significant
assumptions to the valuation of level 3 assets has not been disclosed as the diversified nature of the portfolio and the wide
range of different assumptions adopted by each fund manager make disclosure impractical.

Due to the compfex nature of valuing the quarterfy priced assets, which inciudes private equity funds, private credit funds,
infrastructure funds and property, no estimate has been used from 31 December 2022 to determine the year end valuation
for these assets to 28 January 2023 as any valuation difference is not expected to be material.

Assets sold after the year end and prior to sighing of the financial statements are stated at the realised value within ‘cash
and other’.

Financial instruments including derivatives are valued in accordance with note {.1.5.

Liability driven investments are invested with through a unit-linked insurance policy and include UK Government bond and
cash equivalent assets valued at £1,973.9m (2022; £4,272.6m) and associated repurchase agreements and swaps valued at
£(343.1)m (2022: £{1,252.0ym}. This is part of the Trustee's interest rate and inflation hedging strategy (Nability matching
strategy).

Other alternative assets include investments in infrastructure funds of £247 8m (2022: £345.3m), insurance linked funds
£1.6m (2022: £76.8m) and private debr £352.0m (2022: £388.6m).

Cash and other includes cash deposits of £329.3m (2022: £187.4m), pending cash for unsettled transactions of £488.2m
{2022: £nil), forward foreign exchange contracts valued ac £11.0m (2022: £(9.7}m)} and other items valued at £1.9m (2022:
£(2.0)m).

The Trustee and the Group are undertaking useful discussions to align understanding and goals where appropriate in
respect of climate risk. This process will continue in future years. The Group is not aware of any particular risk pertaining
to the pension assets and will continue to review this matter with the Trustee.

2023 2022
Actual return on assets £m £m
Interest income on assets 164.1 1041
Return on plan assets grearer than interest income {2,812.2) 5056
Actual return on assets (2,648.1) 609.7
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
5.1.5 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

PURPOSE

The defined benefit obligation is volatile given that it is based on a number of long-term assumptions, which are likely to
change over time. lilustrated below is the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in key assumptions.

The sensitiviries have been Jerived using approximate methods which are consistent with the rest of the disclosure and
calculated by changing the relevant assumption while holding all other assumptions constant, except where this directly

impacts other assumpticns such as pension increase assumptions which are dependent on inflation assumptions:

im % change
Defined benefit obligation as at 28 J. y 2023 {4,489.7)
Sensitivity of:
- 0.1% increase to Discount rate' (2.7 (1.6%)
- 1.0% increase to Discount rate' (649.5) {14.5%)
- 0.1% increase to Retail price inflation’ 20.5 0.5%
- 0.1% increase to Consumer price inflacion’ 256 0.6%
132.1 2.9%

- a ohe-year increase in life expectancy

' 'The discount rate and inflation sensitivities do not allow for the impact of the liability matching strategy, which is designed to hedge interest rate and inflation
risks related to the pension scheme's liabilities (as measured on the actuarial basis). As set out above, changes in the accounting liabilities due to changes in
inflation expectations are broadly offset by the Trustees' liability matching strategy. However, if the change in the accounting discount race is driven solely by
an increase in credit spreads (and not gilt moverments which is what the liability matching strategy hedges) then there will not be an offsetting impact on the

asséts for accounting purposes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
6.1.6 OTHER ARRANGEMENTS

JLP Scottish Limited Partnership
On 30 January 2010, the Group entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustee to address an element of
the scheme deficit that existed at that time.

The Group established two partnerships, JLP Scottish Limited Partnership and JLP Scottish Partnership, which are both
consolidated within these Group financial statements.

Together with another Group company, JLP Scottish Limited Partnership provided sufficient capital ta JLP Scottish
Parthership to enable it to procure property assets with a market value of £150.9m from ather Group companies. The
Group retains control aver these properties, including the flexibility to substitute alternative properties. The properties
held in JLP Scottish Group have been leased back to John Lewis ple and Waitrose Limited.

As a partner in JLP Scottish Limited Partnership, the pension scheme is entitled to an annual share of the profits of the JLP
Scottish Limited Partnership each year over 21 years. At the end of this period, the partnership capital allocated to the
pension scheme wifi be reassessed, depending on the funding position of the pension scheme at that time, with a potential
value in the range of £0.5m to £99.5m. At that point, the Group may be required to transfer this amount in cash to the
scheme.

Under [AS [9, the investment held by the pension scheme in JLP Scottish Limited Partnership, a consolidated entity, does
not represent a plan asset for the purpose of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the pension
surplus position presented in these consolidated accounts does hot reflect the £69.6m (2022: £65.3m) investment in JLP
Scottish Limived Partnership held by the pension scheme. The distribucion of [LP Scottish Limited Partnership profits to the
pension scheme is reflected as pension contributions in these consolidated financial statements on a cash basis.

John Lewis Properties plc guarantee

As part of agreeing the funding valuation in 2017, John Lewis Properties plc provided a corporate guarantee to the pension
scheme. This guarantee means that if John Lewis plc fails to make any payments due to the scheme, then the pension
scheme can claim against john Lewis Properties plc for those payments. As part of the guarantee, John Lewis Properties ple
is required to maintain at least £760.0m of net assets.

Waitrose Limited guarantee

As part of agreeing the funding valuation in 2020, Waitrose Limited provided a corporate guarantee to the pension scheme.
This guarantee means that if John Lewis plc fails to make any payments due to the scheme, then the pension scheme can
claim against Waitrose Limited for those payments. There is no requirement for Waitrose Limited to maintain a minimum
net asset position.

The guarantees have improved the recovery to the pension scheme in the event of insclvency of the Group. The pension
scheme would be entitled to claim against either or both of John Lewis Properties pic and Waitrose Limited under these
arrangements,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
7.1 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS

PURPOSE

The principal financial risks that we are exposed to relate to the capital structure and long-term funding of the Group and
afso to the markets and counterparties we are exposed to in our operations. These risks can be summarised as: capital and
long-term funding risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and energy risk. This note detaffs
how each of these risks is managed.

7.1.1 CAPITAL AND LONG-TERM FUNDING RISK
The Group’s ubjectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, provide returns
for its Partners and to maintain a prudent level of funding. The Group is a long-term business, held in trust for the benefit

of its Partners.

The Group’s capital management strategy is to maintain a prudent capital structure, seeking to maintain a financial risk
profile consistent with an investment grade credit rating to ensure the long-term financial sustainability of the Group.
Although the Group does not have an external credit rating, it routinely monitors its capital and liquidity requirements,
whilst maintaining an appropriate level of liquidity (cash plus undrawn committed credit facilities) and a managed debt
maturity profile to reduce refinancing risk and ensure continuity of funding. Forms of borrowing include bond issues, bank
debt, assets acquired via leases, any pension deficit and Share Incentive Plan shares as part of the BonusSave scheme.

7.1.2 LIQUIDITY RISK

In line with the Group Board approved Treasury Standard, the Group is required to hold a minimum amount of liquidity,
made up of a mixrure of cash and undrawn commitled credit facilites. Liquidity requirements are managed in line with
short and long-term cash flow forecasts and reviewed against the Group’s debt portfolio and maturity profile. Surplus cash
is invested in accounts, short-term deposits and other short-term investments with sufficient, prudent liquidity determined
by the above mentioned cash flow forecasts. The Group actively reviews and manages its cash holdings, sources of debt and
committed credit facilities. Greater emphasis has been placed on cash balances providing a material portion of the Group’s

overall liquidity, with undrawn committed credit facilities complementing these balances.

At the year end, the Group had undrawn committed credit facilities of £420m (2022: £420m). This facility was renewed
during the previous year and now matures in October 2026. In addition to these facilities, the Group had listed bonds at
the year end totalling £600.0m (2022: £600.0m), with £300.0m due to mature in 2025 and the remaining £300.0m due to
mature in 2034, The bonds have fixed coupons. The Group has a bank loan of £50m which is due to mature in Q4 2023.
The loan has variable interest payments. Two £75.0m bank loans were repaid in March 2022, in advance of their maturity in
Q4 2022. The maturity profiles of financial debt are set out below.

The Group's listed bonds, bank loans and committed credit facilities contain financial covenants. Throughout the year the

Group maintained comfortable headroom against its covenants.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

7.1 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
7.1.2 LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

The following analysis shows the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under financial liabilities and derivative

financial fiabilities at the balance sheet date:

Carrying Total Due Due Due
amount contractual within between 2 years
cash flows { year { and 2 years and beyond
£m £m £m m im
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings and overdrafts {637.8) {650.09 {50.0) {300.0) (300.0)
Interest payments on borrowings - (189.2) {32.2) {30.9) (126.1)
Lease liabilities' (1,903.2) (2,954.8} (2220) {216.2) (2,516.6)
Trade and other payables (1.4318) (14318} (1,431.8)
Derivative financial liabilities
Deerivative contracts — receipts - 4395 3625 770 -
Derivative contracts — payments - (438.4) (357.4) (81.0) -
At 28 January 2023 (3,972.8) {5,224.7) (1,730.9) (551.1} (2,942.7)

' The lease liabilities due 2 years and beyond can be further broken down as £{582.8}m 2-5 years, £(654.13m 5-10 years, £(653

15 years and beyond.

)m 10-15 years and £{626.6)m

Carrying Total Due Due Due
amount contractual within between 1 years
cash flows | year | and Z years and beyond
£m £m fm im im
Nen-derivative financial fiabilities
Borrowings and overdrafts (791.6) {800.0) {150.0} {50.0} (600.0}
Interest payments on borrowings - {225.2) 35.1) 317N (158.4)
Lease labilities [ (1,988.3) (3.069.4) (221.3) (220.6) (2,647.5)
Trade and other payabies (14515} {14515} {1.451.4) 1)
Derivative financial liabifitles
Derivative contracts — receipts - 5138 3913 {64 6.4
Derivative contracts — payrients - (513.1} (3%2.7} (115.3) (X3
At 29 fanuary 2022 (4,231.4) {5,565.4) (1,859.7) (0L.3) (3,404.9)

For the purposes of this note, the foreign currency element of forward foreign currency contracts is translated at spot

rates prevailing at the year end.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
7.1 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
7.1.3 INTEREST RATE RISK

In order to manage the risk of interest rate fluctuations on the Group's financial debt and cash, the Group maintains a mix
of fixed and floating rate debt (77% fixed) in line with the Board approved Treasury Standard. An analysis of the Group’s
financial liabilities is detailed below. Exposures to interest rate fluctuations are managed, when required, using interest rate
derivatives. The Group has converted £100.0m of fixed rate debt to floating rate debt using interest rate swap contracts.
The interest rate swap rontracts are designated as fain value hedges and fair value movements are recognised within the
income statement. Derivative financial instruments recognised as fair value hedges during the year were effective.

7.1.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage exposures to movements in exchange rates arising from
transactions with overseas-based suppliers and other organisations. Foreign exchange management committees exist for
each of Waitrose and John Lewis, and they meet regularly to oversee the foreign exchange purchasing activities for each
brand. Foreign currency exposures are hedged primarily using forward foreign exchange contracts covering up to 100% of
forecast direct exposures on a rolling basis. Forward foreign exchange contracts used to hedge forecast currency
requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with fair value movements recognised in equity. Derivative financial
instruments that were designated as cash flow hedges during the year were effective. At the balance sheet date, the
notiona! value of open forward foreign currency contracts of £421.7m (2022: £497.6m) had been entered into, to hedge
purchases in foreign currencies which will mature over the next 24 months.

7.1.5 CREDIT RISK

The Group has no significant exposure to an individual customer’s credit risk due to transactions being principally of a high
volume, low value and short maturity. Cash deposits and other financial instruments give rise to credic risk on the amounts
due from counterparties. These risks are managed by restricting such transactions to an approved list of counterparties,
who have an investment grade credit rating by at least two of the three primary rating agencies. Appropriate credit limits
are designated to each counterparty.

The Greup considers its maximum exposure to credit risk is as follows:

2023 2022

£im £m

Trade and other receivables 213.1 219.9
Short-term investments 0.3 953
Cash and cash equivalents 1,038.1 14154
Derivative financial instruments 12.9 7.7
1,264.4 1,738.3

7.1.6 ENERGY RISK

The Group actively manages the energy cost risk associated with the Group's activities. The Group regularly reviews its
pricing exposure to diesel, electricity and gas consumption and determines strategies for forward purchasing and hedging of
energy costs using flexible purchase contracts and by entering into over-the-counter diesel swap contracts.

Diesel cost exposures are hedged primarily using over-the-counter diesel swaps covering up to 100% of forecast direct
exposures on a rolling basis. Diesel swaps used to hedge forecast diesel requirements are designated as cash flow hedges
with fair value movements recognised in equity, Derivative financial instruments that were designated as cash flow value
hedges during the year were effective. At the balance sheet date, the notional value of open diesel swaps of £5.4m (2022:
£6.2m) had been entered into, to hedge future purchases of diesel.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
7.1 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
7.1.7 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The following analysis illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's financial instruments to changes ip market variables, namely
UK interest rates and the US Doliar and Euro to Sterling exchange rates. The level of sensitivities chosen, being 1%
movement in Sterling interest rates and a 10% movement in Sterling when compared to the US Dollar and Euro, provide a
reasonable basis to measure sensitivity whilst not being the Group’s view of what is likely to happen in the future.

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of pension and other provisions,
which is addressed in notes 4.4 and 6.1.5.

The analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratic of fixed to floating rate borrowings and
the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are constant throughout the year, based on positions as at the
year end.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:
¢ The sensitivity of interest costs to movements in interest rates is calculated using floating rate debt and
investment balances prevailing at the year end;
®  Changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments not in hedging relationships are assurmed only to
affect the income statement;
e All derivative financial instruments designated as hedges are assumed to be fully effective.

2023 2022
Income Equity Income Equity

statement statement
+H-£m +- £ +£m +i- £m

UK interest rates +/- |% (2022: +/~ |%) 10.9 - 109
US Dollar exchange rate (GBP/USD) +/- 10% (2022: +/- 10%) - 217 - 260
Euro exchange rate (GBP/EUR) +/- 10% (2022: +/- 10%) - 132 - 19.2

7.2 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

PURPOSE
We use cash flow hedges to manage the risk of adverse currency movements.

This note details the fair value of these financial instruments and financial liabilities, together with the valuation techniques
and key assumptions made in determining the fair value, as required by UK-adopred IFRS. The fair value represents the
amount that would be received from the sale of an asset or the amount that would be paid to pass on a iiability.

Fair value estimation
The different fevels per the [FRS [3: Fair Vaiue Measurement fair value hierarchy have been defined as follows:
tevel I: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idencical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or lability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices);
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {that is, uncbservable

inputs).

During the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023, there have been no transfers between any levels of the IFRS 13 fair
value hierarchy and there were no reclassifications of financial assets as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

7.2 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

7.2.2 FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is as follows:

2023 2022
Assets Liabilities Recognised in Recognised in Assets  Liabilities Recognisedin  Recognised
othey income other in income
comprehensive statement comprehensive statement
Fair value of derivative financial income income
instruments £m £m im £Em £m £m £m £m
Non-current
Currency and commadity derivatives -
cash flow hedge 1.6 (3.1) (7.1} - 1.7 {0.8) 09 -
Other derivatives - 5.7 - . - - - -
1.6 (8.8) a.n - 1.7 (0.8) 0.9 -
Current
Currency and commodity derivatives -
cash flow hedge 1.3 (4.0) 7.4 - 58 (7.5} {L.7) -
Orher derivatives - - - {0.1) 0.2 {0.9) - 0.7
1.3 (4.0) 7.4 .1 60 (8.4) (.7 0.7)

The fair value of a derivative financial instrument represents the difference between the value of the outstanding contracts
at their contracted rates and a valuation calculated using the forward rates of exchange and interest rates prevailing at the

balance sheet dare.

The fair value of the derivative financial instruments held by the Group are classified as level 2 under the IFRS |3 fair value
hierarchy, as all significant inputs to the valuation model used are based on observable market data and are not traded in an

active market,

Specific valuation techniques used to value the financial instruments include quoted market prices. There have been no

changes in valuation techniques from the prior year.

7.2.3 FAIR YALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD AT AMORTISED COST
The following table compares the Group's liabilities heild at amortised cost, where there is a difference between carrying

value (CV) and fair value (FV):

2023 2022
cv Fv cv Fv¥
£m £m £m £m

Financial liabilities
Listed bonds (594.0) (482.3) {592.6) (619.5)

The fair values of the Group's listed bonds have been determined by reference to market price quotations and are classified

as leve| | under the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

For other financial assets and liabilities, there are no material differences between carrying value and fair value because they

are all of a short term nature.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
7.3 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

PURPOSE

This note sets out the currency exposure of our financial assets and liabilities. The currency analysis details the amount of
financial assets, primarily cash and cash equivalents, and financiaf liabilities, held in Sterling or other currencies, together
with the amounts at floating or fixed interest rates. The marurity analysis provides an indication of repayment phasing for
the financial liabilites.

7.3.1 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
Short-term trade and other receivables and derivative financial assets are excluded from this analysis, on the basis that they
are primarily non-interest bearing and denominated in Sterling.

Floating Non-interest Tatal
rate bearing

Currency analysis £m £m £m
Sterling financial assets 9453 929 1,0382
Gther financiaf assets 0.2 - 0.2
At 28 January 2023 945.5 9.9 1,038.4
Sterling financial assets L4181 92.4 1.510.5
Other financial assets 02 - 02
At 29 January 2022 14183 92.4 1.510.7

Floating rate assets are short-term deposits and investments at market rates or the base rate of the relevant currency.
Non-interest bearing balances include cash in shops and cash in transit, primarify made up of credit and debit card
transactions not yet settied.

7.3.2 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Short-term trade payables are exciuded from this analysis on the basis that they are all non-interest bearing.

Fixed race Floating rate Total
Currency analysis £m £m £m
Ali Sterfing
At 28 January 2023 {2,400.5) {146.7) (2,547.2)
At 29 January 2022 (2,485.1) (295.8) {2,780.9)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
8 OTHER NOTES
8. SHARE CAPITAL

PURPOSE
Share capital consists of ordinary shares. It is measured as the number of shares issued and fully paid, multiplied by their
nominal value.

2023 2022

Issued and fully paid  Issued and fully paid

Share capital £m £m
Equity

Deferred ordinary shares

6,750,000 of £1 each 8.7 67

8.2 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

PURFPOSE

Two or more parties are considered to be related if one party has direct or indirect control or significant influence over
financial or operating policies of the other party. We have a number of related parties with whom we transact, including the
Pension Scheme Trustee. key management personnel and certain related charities. We are required by UK-adopted IFRS to
detail the transactions made in the year with refated parties to draw attention to the possibility that our financial position
and results may have been affected by them. This disclosure allows us to demonstrate that we are transacting fairly with all
our refated parties.

8.2.1 SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED UNDERTAKINGS
All transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries and related undertakings are eliminated upon consolidation, and
therefore do not need to be disclosed separately. A list of subsidiaries and related undertakings within the Group is

included within note 29. Loans to joint ventures are disclosed in note 3.3.

8.2.2 ARRANGEMENTS WITH PENSION SCHEME TRUSTEE
The Group entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustee on 30 January 2010 to address an element of
the scheme deficit that existed at that time.

8.2.3 OTHER TRANSACTIONS
Key management compensation has been disclosed in note 2.8.3,

During the year the Group provided administrative support services to charities related to the Group. The estimated value
of these support services is £167,000 (2022: £161,000}. The Group also made donations totalling £1.0m (2022: £0.8m) to
the John Lewis & Partners Foundation.

8.3 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

PURPOSE
Events that take place after the balance sheet date of 28 january 2023 and before the date the financial statements are
signed are recorded in this note. In order to be disclosed, these events must be sufficiently material to warrant disclosure.

There are no subsequent events to report.
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John Lewis plc - Company only financial statements
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET as at 28 January 2023

1023 2022
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
12 Intangible assets 292.3 2886
13 Property, plant and equipmenc 501.8 554.0
13 Right-of-use-assets 669.5 7322
V7 Trade and other receivables 5.2 6.6
Derivative financial instruments 1.é 17
14 Investments in subsidiaries 9413 8G9.2
24 Deferred tax asset 99.0 -
15 Investments in and loans to joint ventyre 5.6 44
26 Retirement benefit surplus - 558.1
2,6163 29548
Current assets
16 Inventories 426.9 410
17 Trade and other receivables 251.3 239
Current tax receivable 188 79
Derivative financial instruments L 60
13 Short-term investments 0.3 953
12 Cash and cash equivalents 938.6 1.319.2
1,647.2 20785
Total assets 4,161.5 50333
Current [iabilities
20 Boreowings and overdrafts (50.0) (150.0)
21 Trade and other payables {1,441.4) (1.657.7)
2 Lease liabilities {58.3) (66.5)
23 Provisions (93.4) (107.9)
Derivative financial instruments (4.0} (8.4)
(1,847.1) (1.990.0)
Non-current liabilities
20 Barrowings (587.8) {641.6)
21 Trade and other payables {20.8) {22.1)
22 Lease liabilities (925.7) (985 .4}
23 Provisions {113.8) {157.8)
Derivative financial instruments (8.8) (0.8)
26 Retirement benefit obligations (32.3) (19.3)
24 Deferred tax liabilicy - {51.8}
(1,688.8) (1,878.8)
Total liabilities {3,535.9} {3,869.8)
Net assets 127.6 l.164.5
Equity
27 Share capital &7 8.7
Share premium 0.3 03
Other reserves 1.9 04
Retained earnings TVT.7 1,157.1
Total equity 727.6 i, 1645
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

The financial statements on pages 99 to | 15 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2022 and signed on its

behalf by Sharen White and Bérangére Michel, Directors, John Lewis plc.

Lo o Ttlhed

/U e

Sharon White and Bérangére Michel
Directors, John Lewis pic

28 April 2023

Registered number 00233462

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Share Share Hedging Foreign Retained Total
capital premium reserve currency earnings equity

translation

reserve

Notes £m im im fm £m £m
Balance at 30 fanuary 2021 67 03 (14.5) 09 358.7 352,

10 Loss for the year - - - - (69.5) (69.5)
Remeasurament of defined benefic pension scheme - - - - 11090 11090
Fair value Joss an cash flow hedges - - 0 - - 21
Cash flow hedge gains reclassified and reported in the conselidated
income sratement - - (1.0} - - (1.0)
Tax on above items recognised in equity - - {35 - (241.1) (244.6)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year - B {6.6) - 798 4 7918
Hedging losses transferred to cost of inventory - - 2.4 - - 206
Balance ac 29 January 2022 &7 0.3 {0.5) 09 1 157.4 11645

10 Loss for the year - - - - 4.2 42
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension scheme - - - - (592.3) {592.3)
Fair value loss on cash flow hedges - - 367 - - 367
Cash flow hedge gains reclassified and reported in the consolidated
income statement B - {10.2) - - (10.2)
Tax on above items recognised in equity - - {1.9) - {48.2 146.3
Total comprehensive {expense}/income for the year - - 24.6 - (439.9) (415.3)
Recycle to retained earnings - - - {0.5) 05 -
Hedging losses transferred to cost of inventory - - {21.6) - - {21.8)
Balance at 28 January 2023 8.7 0.3 2.5 0.4 717.7 7276

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the company financial statements
9 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
9.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The separate financial statements of the Company are prepared in accerdance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, in particular Financial Reporting Standard 10}
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (FRS 101) and the Companies Act 2006 using the historical cosc convention. FRS 01 sets
out a reduced disrlnsure frameworle for a *qualilying entity™ as defined in the standard, which addresses the financial
reporting requirements and disclosure exemptions in the individual financial statements of qualifying entities that otherwise
apply the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reperting Standards (IFRS). The

Company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 101.

The disclosure exemptions adopted by the Company in accordance with FRS |01 are as follows:

®  The requirements of paragraph 33{c) of IFRS 5 ‘Nen Current Assets Held For Sale and Discontinued
Operarions’;

®  The requirements of IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’;

*  The requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS |13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ (disclosure of valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurement of assets and liabilities);

®  The requirements of the second sentence of paragraph |10 and paragraphs |13(a), | 14, |15, 118, 119(a) to {c},
120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’;

®  The requirements of paragraph 52 of IFRS 16 ‘Lease’;

®  The requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements to present comparative
infarmation in respect of:

- Paragraph 7%9(a)}{iv) of IAS I;

- Paragraph 73(e} of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;

- Paragraph | 18({e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets;

®  The following paragraphs of IAS | ‘Presentation of financial statements”:

- 10(d) (statement of cash flows);

- 10(f), (a statemenct of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity
applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its
financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements);

- 40A - 40D (requirements for a third statement of financial position);

- 16 (statement of compliance with all IFRS);

- 38A (requirement for minimum of two primary statements, including cash flow statements);

- 38B - 38D (additional comparative information);

- 111 {statement of cash flows information);

- 134 - 136 (capital management disclosures};

®  The requirements of JAS 7 ‘Statement of cash flow’;

®  The requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
error’ (requirement for the disclosure of information when an entity has not applied a new IFRS that has been
issued but is not yet effective);

®  Paragraph |17 of JAS 24 ‘Related party disclosures’ {key management compensation);

*  The requirements in JAS 24 ‘Related party disclosures’ to disclose related party transactions entered inte
between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is
wholly owned by such a member;

®  The requirements of paragraphs 130(f)(ii), 30{f)iii). 134(d)-134(f) and 135(c)-135(e) of IAS 36 Impairment of

Assets.
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Notes to the company financial statements {continued)
9 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
9.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The Company’s accounting policies are aligned with the Group'’s actounting policies as described in note | to the

consolidated financial statements. Additional accounting policies are noted below.

The financial year is the 52 weeks ended 28 January 2023 (prior year: 52 weeks ended 29 January 2022).

Going concern
In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statements for the 52 week pericd ended 28 January 2023,
the Directors are required to consider whether the Company can continue in operational existence for a period of at least

12 months from the approval of the financial statements.

The Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis, having undertaken a rigorous
assessment of the financial forecasts with specific consideration to the Company in the context of the trading position of the
Company. for the reasons set out in note |.1.1. Consequently, the Directars have concluded that the Company will have
sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the

financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

9.2 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
The Company has a number of investments in subsidiary companies. Investments are valued at cost, less allowances for
impairment. Investments are reviewed for evidence of a trigger for potential impairment at least annually or whenever events

or circumstances indicate that the value on the balance sheet may not be recoverable.

2.3 AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The following standards, amendments and interpretations were applicable for the periods beginning after | January 2022 and
therefore adopted by the Company for the period from 30 fanuary 2022 to 28 January 2023. The adoption of these standards
has nat had a significant impact on the Company’s results, financial position or disclosures:

®  Amendments to IAS té: Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (applicable for cthe period
beginning 30 |anuary 2022);

s  Amendments to IFRS 3: Business Combinations - updated references (applicable for the period beginning 30 January
2022y

*  Amendments to |AS 37: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract {applicable for the period beginning 30
January 2022).

10 PROFIT AND LOSS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, john Lewis plc has not presented its own income statement or
statement of comprehensive income/(expense). The result dealt with in the accounts of the Company amounted 1o £4.2m
profit {2022: £69.5m loss). There was £nil dividend income in the year (2022: £nil).

Details of auditor’s remuneration are provided in note 2.6 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the company financial statements {continued)
Il PARTNERS
I11.1 PARTNER NUMBERS

The Partner numbers and benefits referred to below relate to Partners contracted by the Company in branches and central

functions. Full employee numbers are provided in note 2.8. to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

During the year the average number of Partners employed by the Company was as follows:

2023 2022
John Lewis 21,100 21,200
Orcher 1,600 2,500
23,700 23,700
11.2 PARTNER PAY AND BENEFITS
Employment and related costs were as follows:
2023 2022
£m £m
Staff costs:
Wages and salaries (614.1) {626.7)
Social security costs (55.4) (49.8)
Partnership Bonus - (15.6)
Employers' National Insurance on Partnership Bonus - (1.9
Cost of living payment (9.2) -
Other pension expenses (563.8) (57.0)
Long leave cost 4.7 (4.6)
Total before Partner discounts (747.2) (755.6)
Partner discounts (excluded from revenue) (52.1) (48 4)
(799.3) (804 0)

In 2022, some John Lewis Partners worked in VWaitrose branches which resulted in a recharge of £11.5m between the entities
and was not reflected in the total £804.0m analysed in the table | 1.2 above. The average number of Partners in table 11.] has
not been adjusted to reflect the seconded Partners. There were no such arrangements in 2023.

Included above are the following amounts in respect of key management compensation:

2023 2022

im £m

Salaries and short-term benefits (6.3} (6.0}
Post-employment benefits' (0.6) (0.5)
Termination provisions® (1.2) -
8.1) (6.5)

" Includes cash supplements in lieu of future pension accrual.

? Includes contractual payments and compensation for loss of office.

Key management includes the Directors of the Company, members of the Executive Team and other officers of the Group.
Key management compensation includes salaries, Partnership Bonus, National Insurance costs, pension costs and the cost of
other employment benefits, such as company cars, private medical insurance and termination payments where applicable.

Costs of key management compensation are included within operating expenses and exceptional items as applicable,
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
It PARTNERS (CONTINUED)
11.2 PARTNER NUMBERS (CONTINUED)

Key management participate in the Group's long leave scheme, which is open to all Partners and provides up to six months’
paid leave after 25 years’ service. There is no proportional entitlement for shorter periods of service. It is not practical to
allocate the cost of accruing entitlement to this benefit to individuals, and therefore no allowance has been made for this

benefit in the amounts disclosed.

11.3 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors' emoluments are disclosed in note 2.8.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software

Purchased Internally developed Work in progress Total
intangible assets £m £m £m im
Cost
At 29 January 2022 1536 5558 499 759.3
Additions' - 1.2 88.0 892
Transfers 530 21.0 {74.0) -
Disposals and write-offs {8.9) {24.2) an {33.2)
At 28 January 2023 197.7 556.8 60.8 815.3
Acc lated amorti
At 29 January 2022 (Vs.1y {355.6) - (470.7)
Charge for the year (23.3} (5%.1) - (82.4)
Disposals and write-offs 89 212 - 300
At 28 January 2023 {129.5) {393.5) - (523.0)
Net book value at 29 January 2022 i85 2002 49.9 288.6
MNet book value at 28 January 2021 68.2 163.3 £0.8 2923

' Fer the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023, additions for the year include the non-cash capital expenditure accrual on intangible assets of £2.Im (2021,
£1.7m).

Intangible assets principally relate to customer and distribution projects with useful economic lives of up to ten years.
There are three individually significant assets within the total carrying amount of intangible assets as at 28 January 2023: three

are customer projects (£86.7m, 2022: £72.8m) and one relates to a distribution project (£106.7m, 2022: £42.0m). These

assets have useful economic lives ranging from seven to ten years.

During the year to 28 January 2023, computer systems valued at £75.9m {2022: £55.2rm) were brought into use. This covered
a range of selling, support, supply chain, administration and information technology infrastructure applications, with useful

economic lives ranging from three to ten years.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged within operating expenses.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and buildings Fixtures, fittings and  Assets in course of Total
equipment construction
Property, plant and equipment £m £m £m £m
At 29 January 2022 934.0 9347 70.1 1.938.8
Additions' 15.4 Iz 11583 141.9
Transfers 03 784 (78.71 -
Diisposals and writu-csifc ©.2) (73.4) (47.8) (130.6)
At 28 January 2023 940.5 9250.7 58.9 1,250.1
Accumulated depreciation
AL 29 January 2022 (632.6) (752.2) B {1.3848)
(Charge)/release for the year 20 (48.0) e.1 {45.9)
Disposals and write-offs 9.1 733 - 824
At 28 Janwary 2023 (621.5) (726.9) 0.1 ¢1,348.7)
Net book value at 29 January 2022 3014 1825 70.1 554.0
Net book value at 28 January 2023 319.0 223.8 59.0 601.8
' For the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023, additions for the year include the non-cash capital expenditure accrual on property, plant and equipment of
£19.6m (2022; £18.4m).
? For the 52 weel period ended 28 January 2023, this includes an impairment credit of £22.1m to land and buildings (2022: £10.2m charge} and a credit of £5.6m
to fixtures and fittings {2022: £4.Im credit).
In accordance with 1AS 36, the Company reviews its property, plant and equipment for impairment at least annually or
whenever evenrs or circumstances indicate that the value on the balance sheet may not be recoverable.
The impairment review compares the recoverable amount for each CGU to the carrying value on the balance sheet and
includes right-of-use assets. The key assumptions used in the calculations are the discount rate, long-term growth rate,
allocation of online sales, expected sales performance and costs, and market valuations considered in fair value less costs of
disposal calculations.
Land and buildings  Fixtures, fittings and Total
equipment
Right-of-use assets Em £m £m
Cost
At 29 January 2022 9640 499 1,013.9
Additions 6.4 1.0 7.4
Disposals and write-offs (17.2} - (17.2)
At 28 January 2023 953.2 50.9 1,004.1
Accumulated depreciation
AL 29 Jarwiary 2022 (2722) (9.5) 281.7)
Charge for che year' 47.7) {79 (55.6)
Disposals and write-offs 27 - 27
Ac 28 January 2023 G171.2) (17.4) (334.6)
Net book value ac fanuary 2022 6918 404 732.2
636.0 33.5 54695

Net baok value at 28 January 2023

' For the 52 week period ended 28 fanuary 2023, this includes an impairment charge of £8.1m (2022: £10.8m).
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has the following investments at 29 January 2022.

Shares in Group companjes Loan to Total
Group companies
£m im £m
At 29 fanuary 2022 63.0 7462 809.2
Movements {i4.3) 146.4 1321
At 28 January 2023 43.7 892.6 941.3
During the year the Company recognised an impairment of £14.3m (2022: £nil) related to one of its subsidiaries, following a
review of the subsidiary's expected future performance.
A list of subsidiary undertakings is provided in note 29.
15 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURE
The Company applies IFRS |1 to all joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Company
has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method after initially being recognised at cost in the balance
sheet,
The Company financial statements include the Company’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
equity accounted investees, from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint control ceases.
John Lewis pic and GXO Logistics UK I} Limited (formerly Clipper Logistics plc) are both investors in Clicklink Logistics
Limited. Each party owns 50.0% of the equity of Clicklink Logistics Limited and decisions regarding Clicklink Logistics Limited
require the unanimous consent of both parties.
Investment Loan Total
Joint venture £m £m fm
Cost
At 29 January 2022 2.4 20 4.1
Additions - - .
At 28 January 2023 2] 20 4.)
Share of profit
At 29 January 2022 03 - 03
Share of profit 1.2 - i.2
At 28 Japuary 2023 1.5 - 1.5
AL 29 January 2022 14 2.0 4.4
At 28 January 2023 3.6 2.0 5.6
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
16 INVENTORIES

2023 2022
Inventory £m £m
Finished goods and goods for resale 426.9 4110
426.9 4110
The cost of inventory recognised as an expense by the Company in the year was £2,448.0m (2022: £2,44%.6m). Provisions
against inventories of £26.3m were charged (2022: £24.5m) to cost of sales.
Finished goods and goods for resale include a ‘right to return goods’ asset of £12.3m (2022: £12.5m). This relates to the
Group's expected returns inventory based on previous rates of return,
7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
Trade and other receivables im £m
Current:
Trade receivables 45.8 51.2
Other receivables' 11z2.0 107.3
Prepayments 60.6 65.1
Actrued income 32.9 15.5
2513 2391
Non.current:
Other receivables 2.3 21
Prepayments 2.9 45
5.2 6.6

' The Group operates the BonusSave scheme, a share incentive plan {SIP) which allows Partners to elect to invest part of their Partnership Bonus back into the
Group (see John Lewis Partnership plc’s Annual Report and Accounts note 5.5}, Included within other receivables is a balance of £86.9m {2022: £80.8m) due
from John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited in relation to SIP shares in issue but not allocated to Partners,

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on credit terms of less than 90 days. Concentrations of credit risk
are considered to be very limited. The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to fair value and is
denominated in Sterling. Within trade receivables is supplier income which has been invoiced where there is no legal right to
offset. Included in trade payables are invoices for supplier income where there is a right to offset and the Company intends to

offset against amounts owed to suppliers (see note 21).
Within accrued income, there is £20.4m {2022: £8.6m) in relation to supplier income which has not yet been invoiced.

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses within operating expenses in the income statement. As
at 28 January 2023, trade and other receivables of £0.3m (2022: £0.7m}) were partially or fully impaired. As at 28 January
2023, crade and other receivables of £23.6m (2022: £23.6m) were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of the past
due amounts is as follows:

2023 2022

im £m

Up to 3 months past due 235 23.0
3 to |2 months past due 0.1 0.5
Over |2 months past due 0.0 c.1
3.6 236
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Notes to the company financial statements {continued)
18 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

2013 2022
m £m
Short-term investments 0.3 953

For the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023, the effective interest rate on short-term investments was 1.3% {2022: 0.3%)
and these investments had an average maturity of 93 days (2022: {02 days).

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2072
Cash and cash equivalents im £m
Cash at bank and in hand 215 96.1
Short-term deposits 847.1 1,223.1
938.6 1,319.2

For the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023, the effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 1.4% (2022: 0.0%) and
these deposits had an average macuricy of six days (2022; two days).

10 BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS

2013 2022
£m £m
Current:

Bank loans' {50.0) {150.0)
(50.0) (150.0)

Non-current;
Bank loans - (50.0)
61/8% bonds, 2025 (300.0) (300.0}
41/4% bonds, 2034 (300.0) {300.0)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 6.0 7.4
Fair value adjustment for hedged element on bonds 6.2 1.0
{587.8) (641.6)

' £150m of cerm loans were repaid during 2022/23.

All borrowings are unsecured, denominated in sterling, and are repayable on the dates shown, at par.
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Notes to the company financial statements {continued)

2t TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022
£m £m
Current:
Trade payables (53 |.|) (494.4}
Amotnts owed 1o parent company' (102.6) {2 n
Amounts owed ta Gralip crinpanics (551.3) {537.3)
Other payables {146.5) (141.3)
Other taxation and social security {133.3) (123.6)
Accruals (107.8) (120.9)
Deferred income (68.8) (82.6)
Partnership Bonus - (46.4)
(1,641.4) (1,657.7)
Non-current:
Deferred income (20.6) (22.1)
(20.6) (22.1)
! The Company operates the BonusSave scheme, a share incentive plan (SIP} which allows Partners to elect to invest part of their Partnership Bonus back into
the Company {see john Lewis plc Annual Report and Accounts note 5.5). Included within amounts owed to parent company is a balance of £104.2m in relation
to the §IP shares in issue, of which £86.9m relates to SIP shares in issue but not allocated te Partners. There is an offsetting equivalent batance in relation 1o
these shares included within other receivables. The remaining £17.3m relates to SIP shares held directly by Partners.
The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to fair value.
Included in deferred income are contract liabilities for free warranties of £26.0m (2022: £27.6m) and payments from
customers for goods and services sold but not delivered of £54.7m (2022: £67.5m). During the year an amount of £3.0m
(2022: £12.4m) was released to the income statement in relation to free warranties matching to the period over which the
free warranties are utilised. The deferral for the year was £10.7m (2022: £9.3m). All of the contract liabilities for goods and
services sold but not delivered at 29 fanuary 2022 have been recognised as revenue in the 52 week period ended 28 January
2023
22 LEASE LIABILITIES
The following amounts are included in the Company's financial statements in respect of its leases.
2023 2022
Im £m
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets (excfuding imparment) (see note 13) (55.6) (47.2)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (48.4) {32.3)
Expense relating to shorc-term leases (2.2) (1.9
Expense relating to leases of low value assets that are not shown above as short-term leases ©.3) (1.2}
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in lease liabilities (0.8) (0.6}
Total cash outflow for [eases comprising interest and capital payments (100.1) (73.1)
Additions to right-of-use assets 7.4 837
Carrying ameunt of right-of-use assets 669.5 7322
c.1 -

Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets

Lease liabilities repayable by instalments falling due after more than five years are £769.9m (2022; 802.3m).
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
23 PROVISIONS

Long Customer Insurance Reorganisation Other Total
leave refunds claims
£m £m £ £m fm £m
At 29 January 2022 (144.4) (24.8) (16.0} {24.5) (55.5) {265.2)
Charged 1o income statement {12.8) {46.2) {8.0) 7.1) {4.5) {78.4)
Released {o income statement 267 - (K4 37 5.1 40.%5
Utifised 2.1 482 73 19.6 1.9 96.1
At 18 January 2013 (121.2) (22.9) {15.7) (8.3) (39.0) (207.0)
Of which:
Current (348} (12.8) ©.9) ®.3) (18.6) 91.4)
Non-current (86.4) - (6.8) - (20.4) (1138)

The Group has a long leave scheme, open to all Partners, which provides up to six months’ paid leave after 25 years' service.
There is no proportional entitlement for shorter periods of service. The provision for the fiabilities under the scheme is
assessed on an actuarial basis, reflecting Partners” expected service profiles, safary growth, National insurance and overtime
earnings assumptions. The real discount rate applied differs from the real discount rate used for the Group's retirement
benefits (note 6.1) as it reflects a rate appropriate to the shorter duration of the long leave liability, 3o as to accrue the cost
over Partners’ service periods.

Provisions for customer refunds reflect the Group's expected liability for returns of goods sold based on experience of rates
of return.

Provisions for insurance claims are in respect of the Group's employer’s, public and vehicle third-party liability insurances. The
provisions are based on reserves held in the Group's captive insurance company, JLP Insurance Limited. These reserves are
established using independent actuarial assessments wherever possible, or a reasonable assessment based on past ¢laims
experience.

Provisions for reorganisation reflect restructuring and redundancy costs, principally in relation to head office reviews, shop
closures and the review of shop management structures {note 2.5).

Other provisions primarily include property-related costs.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
24 DEFERRED TAX
24.1 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a rate of 25.0%. The movement on the deferred tax account is

shown below:

2023 2022

fm £m

Opening (liabiiicy)/asset (51.8) 186.5

Credited to income statement 5.5 84

Creditedf{charged} to other comprehensive income/{expense) 145.3 (246.7)

Closing asset/{liabilicy) 99.0 {51.8)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are shown below.
Accelerated Revaluation Rollover Other Total
tax depreciation of land and gains
buildings
Deferred tax liabilities im im fm £m £m
At 30 January 202( (3.3) .0n (6.2) (0.4} (12.0)
Charged to income statement {4.5) (2.8) (2.0} - (9.3)
Charged to other comprehensive income - - - {0.1) (0.1)
At 29 January 2022 (7.8) (4.9) (8.2 (0.5) (21.4)
Charged to income statement (35.1) {1.2) - - (36.3)
At 28 January 2023 (429} 6.1} (8.2) (0.5) (51.7)
Tax and Capital gains Pensions Other Total
capital losses tax on land and provisions
and buildings

Deferred tax assets/{liabilities) im £m £Em £m im
At 30 January 2021 23.7 17.1 151.3 6.4 198.5
{Charged}/eredited to income statement (7.4) 12.2 10.1 28 V7.7
Charged to other comprehensive income/{expense) - - (243.1} (3.5) (246.6)
At 29 January 2022 16.3 293 81.7} 57 (30.4)
Credited/{charged) to income statement 47.0 04 (7.6) 20 418
Credited/{charged) to other comprehensive income/(expense) - - 1472 (1.9 1453
At 28 January 2023 63.3 29.7 57.9 5.8 156.7

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to

settle the balances net.
The recoverability of deferred tax assets is supported by the expected level of future profits in the countries concerned.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit

through future profits is probable.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
24.1 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension surplus has been adjusted to reflect the current tax benefit obtained in
the financial year ended 30 January 2010, following the contribution of the limited partnership interest in fLP Scottish Limited
Partnership to the pension scheme (see note 6.1 to the consolidated financial statements),

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are recoverable after more than one year.

24.2 FACTORS AFFECTING TAX CHARGES IN CURRENT AND FUTURE YEARS

The Government announced in March 2021 that the rate of Corporation tax will increase from April 2023 to 25% for
companies with profits aver £250,000. This will increase the tax rate applied on taxable profits and losses from the 2023/24
financial year.

25 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
At 28 January 2023, contracts had been entered into for future capital expenditure of £22.8m (2022: £12.7m) of which
£19.4m (2022: £)).2m) relates to property, plant and equipment and £3.4m (2022: £1.5m) relates to intangible assets.

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

As disclosed in nate 6.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the investment held by the pension scheme in JLP Scotrish
Partnership is £69.6m (2022: £65.3m). This represents a plan asset for the Company accounts which is added to the Group
funded defined benefit deficit of £88.1m {2022: £492.8m surplus). The retirement benefit deficit of the Company as at 28
January 2023 was £32.3m with a funded deficit of £18.5m and an unfunded obligation of £13.8m (2022: £538.8m net surpius,
with a £558.1m funded surplus and £19.3m unfunded obligation). Note 6.1 of the consolidated financial statements details the
financial assumptions used.

27 SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022
Authorised Issued and Authorised Issued and
fully paid fully paid
Share capital £m £m £m £m
Equity
Deferred ordinary shares
6,750,000 of £1 each 6.7 6.7 6.7 6.7

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company provided administrative support services to charities related to the Company. The estimated
value of these support services is £167,000 (2022: £161,000). The Company also made donations totalling £1.0m (2022:
£0.8m) to the john Lewis & Partners Foundation.
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Notes to the company financial staternents {continued)
29 SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Compaiiy fids 2 number of subsidiaries and related undertakings which contribute to the overall profitability of the
Group. In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 4 of The Large and Medium-Sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regutations 2008, a full list of related undertakings, registered office

addresses and the percentages of share class owned as at 28 January 2023 are disclosed below. Subsidiaries and related

undertakings as at 28 January 2023 were as follows:

Percentage
Name Principal activity Country of incorporation  Class of share shareholdings
Admiral Park Retail Management Limited Property holding company Guernsey' Ordinary 54%
Buy.Com Limited Dormant England & Wales’ Ordinary 100%
Carlisle Place Ventures Limited Home services England & Wales’ Ordinary 100%
Clicklink Logistics Limited Jeint venture England & Wales’ Ordinary 50%
Herbert Parkinson Limited Manufacturing and making up England & Wales® Ordinary 100%
JLP Insurance Limited Insurance Guernsey’ Ordinary 100%
JLP Scotland Limited Non-trading Scotland® Ordinary 100%
JLP Scottish Limiced Partnership!! Investment holding undertaking Scotland® Partnership interest 100%
JLP Scottish Partnership™ Investment holding undertaking Scotland® Parcnership interest 100%
John Lewis Car Finance Limited Car finance England & Wales’ Ordinary 100%
John Lewis Hong Kong Limited Sourcing cempany Hong Kong® Ordinary 100%
John Lewis India Private Limited Sourcing company India’ Ordinary 100%
John Lewis International Limited International retail England & Wales® Ordinary 100%
John Lewis Partnership Pansions Trust Non-trading England & Wales® Ordinary 100%
John Lewis Properties pic Property holding company England & Wales’ Ordinary 100%
John Lewis PT Holdings Limited Holding company England & Wales® Ordinary 100%
Jonelle Jewellery Limited Dormant England & Wales® Ordinary 100%
Jonelle Limited Dormant England & Wales® Ordinary" 100%
Park One Management Limited Provision of management services England & Wales® Ordinary 37%
Peter Jones Limited Dormant England & Wales’ Ordinary 100%
The Odney Estate Limiteq Deormant England & Wales® Crdinary 100%
Waitrose {Jersey) Limited Food retailing Jersey’ Ordinary 100%
Waitrose {Guernsey) Limited Food retailing Guernsey' Ordinary 100%
Waitrose Limited Food retailing England & Wales® Ordinary 100%

! The address of the registered office is PO Box 119, Martello Coure, Admiral Park, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey GY| 3HB.
! The address of the registered office is 17| Victoria Street, London SWIE SNN.
’ The address of the registered office is Clipper Logistics Group, Gelderd Road, Leeds. West Yorkshire LS12 6LT.

* The address of the registered office is PO Box 155, Mill Court, La Charroterie, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey GY 1 4ET.
* The address of the registered office is John Lewis & Parcners, 60 Leith Streec, Edinburgh EHI 35P.

* The address of the registered office is Suite 3201, Jardine House, | Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kang.

” The address of the registered office is 3rd Floor, Tower B, Signature Towers, South City, Sector - 36, Gurgaon, Haryana 122001, India.
® The address of the registered office is Number 22 Mount Ephraim, Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN4 BAS.
* The address of the registered office is 44 Esplanade, St Helier. Jersey JE4 9WG.
1 Jonelle Limited has three classes of shares, each with 2 nominal value of £1.

" John Lewis Partnership Pensions Trust and JLP Scotland Limited are the Limited Partners. John Lewis plc is the General Partner.

® JLP Scottish Limited Partnership and John Lewis Properties plc are the General Partners.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
29 SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED UNDERTAKINGS (CONTINUED)

The whoie of the ordinary share capital of the subsidiary undertakings of john Lewis plc is held within the Group. Except as
noted above, all of these subsidiary undertakings operate wholly or mainly in the United Kingdom.

Ultimate control rests with john Lewis Partnership Trust Limited, which holds the deferred ordinary shares issued by John
Lewis Partnership plc in Trust for the benefit of emplayees of the Partnership. Both of these companies are registered in
England and Wales. Copies of the accounts for these companies may be obtained from the Company Secretary, fohn Lewis
Partnership ple, 171 Victoria Street, London, SWIE 5NN.

The Company is a General Partner of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership, a qualifying Jimited partnership registered at John
Lewis & Partners, 60 Leith Screet, Edinburgh, EH1 35P. This is consolidated within John Lewis plc.

John Lewis pic Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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TEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Group and Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Company financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law they have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards (UK-adopted IFRS) and have elected to prepare the Company financial statements in accordance with
UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Frameworl.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each
of the Group and Company financial statements, the Directors are required to:
*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
®  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;
e for the Group and company financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards (UK-adopted IFRS);
®  assess the Group and Company's ability to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern;
®  use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do se.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable
chem to ensure that ics financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and a Directors’

Report that comply with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ

from legislation in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board.

s “*‘\#/WL“

Sharon White and Bérangere Michel
Directors, John Lewis plc
28 April 2023

John Lewis plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
i16



kPG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC
1. Our opinion is unmoedified

We have audited the financial statements of John Lewis plc (“the Group”) for the 52-week period ended 28 January
2023 which comprise the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows,
Company balance sheet, Company statement of changes in equity, and the related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 1 of the Group financial statements and the accounting policies in note 9 of the Company financial
staterments.

In our opinion:

& thefinancial staterments give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent Company's affairs
as at 28 January 2023 and of the Group’s loss for the 52-week period then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accerdance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards;

¢ the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordahce with UK-adopted
accounting standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

® the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities are described below. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion. Qur audit opinion is consistent with our report to the Audit and Risk Committee.

We were first appointed as auditor by the sharehelders on 8 June 2016. The period of total uninterrupted engagement
is for the seven financial years ended 28 January 2023. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and we are
independent of the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied
to public interest entities. No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were provided.

Materiality: £22 million (2022: £14.5 mitlion) 0.21% (2022:
group financial statements as a whole 0.13%) of Revenue

Coverage 98% (2022: 98%) of Group Revenue

Key audit matters vs 2022
Recurring risks Impairment of property, ptant and equipment and >

right-of-use assets

Defined benefit pension schemes (Gross liability ¥
estimation and valuation of level 3 assets)

Parent Company Recoverability of parent Company’s investment in >
recurring risk subsidiaries
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC (CONTINUED)

2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {(whether or
not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy;
the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below
the key audit matters {unchanged from 2022), in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our audit
opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public
interest entities, our results from those procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results are based
on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion therean, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we de not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The risk Our response

Impairment of | Forecast-based assessment Our procedures included:

property, plant and
equipment and | The Group has significant property, plant We performed the tests below rather than

right-of-use assets | and equipment (PPE) and right-of-use seeking to rely on any of the Group's
assets (ROUAs) held on the consolidated manual controls because the nature of the
balance sheet. In the period a net balance is such that we would expect to
impairment charge of £106.2 million was obtain audit evidence primarily through
Carrying  amount recognised, in relation to PPE and ROUAs the detailed procedures described.
£1,036.8 million, | included in Cash Generating Units | However we engaged our IT Audit
out of the total PPE | (“CGUS”) of John Lewis and Waitrose | specialists to evaluate the design and

and ROUA  of | pperating segments implementation and operating
£4,202.8 million effectiveness of relevant IT controls over
(2022: carrying | There is a risk that the carrying value of certain IT systems and layers used in in
amount £864 | stores and related PPE and ROUAs may deriving elements of the online sales
million, out of the | be higher than the recoverable amount. allocation rates for certain CGUs within the

total PPE and ROUA | Where there is an indicator of | John Lewis operating segment.
of £4,400.7 million} | impairment and a review for impairment

is conducted, the recoverable amount is - Model design evaluation and re-

determined based on the higher of performance: We evaluated the

‘value-in-use’ {VIU) or ‘fair value less reasonableness of the design of ViU models
Page 62 to 63| .55 of disposal. The recoverable [ in line with the requirements of the
{accounting  policy) amount is calculated at a CGU level and a accounting standard and re-performed the
and page 64 to 67 single store is considered to be a CGU. calculations the Directors performed for
{financial determining the VIU of each cash
disclosures) generating unit.

The recoverable amount was assessed for
£1,036.8 million of the total PPE and

RGUA net book value (2022: £864 million} - Qur sector experience: We evaluated
and resulted in a net impairment charge assumptions used, in particular those
of £ 106.2 million during the year {2022: relating to forecast revenue growth and
£ 25 million). profit margins for the Waitrose and John

Lewis stores, We also challenged the
Directors as to the achievability of their
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forecasts and business plans, taking into

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC (CONTINUED)

account the historical accuracy of previous
The recoverable amount of an individual forecasts.

store relies on a number of assumptions,
most notably short-term sales growth - Benchmarking assumptions: We
and profit margin, the discount rate and compared the Director’'s key assumptions
specifically for the CGUs within John to externaily derived data in relation to key
Lewis operating segment, the online sales inputs such as projectad economic growth,
allocation, which all involve a high a customer  spending  behaviours  cost
degree of estimation uncertainty. inflation, market inputs used in deriving the
discount rate and online allocation.

We performed an assessment of whether
Auditor judgement is required to assess an over/understatement of the

whether the Directors’ estimate of an impairment charge for certain CGUs

individual store’s recoverable amount ] jdentified through these procedures was
falls within an acceptable range. material.

Il

Sensitivity analysis: We performed
sensitivity analysis to stress-test the
impairment cafculation to changes in short-
term sales growth and profit margins, the
discount rate and specifically for CGUs
within John Lewis operating segment,
online sales allocation,

Real estate valuation specialist: We
engaged our real estate valuation specialist
to evaluate the reasonableness of the
assumptions and methodologies used in
determining the fair value less cost of
disposals of CGUs whose recoverable
amounts are determined on that basis.

- Assessing disclosures: We also assessed
whether the Group's disclaosures about the
sensitivity of the outcome of the
impairment assessment to changes in key
assumptions reflected the risks inherent in
the recoverable amount of PPE and ROUAs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC {CONTINUED)

The risk

QOur response

Impairment of
property, plant and
equipment and

right-of-use assets
(continued)

The effect of these matters is that, as part
of our risk assessment, we determined
that the VIU had a high degree of
estimation uncertainty, with a potential
range of reasonahle outcomes greater
than our materiality for the financial
statements as a whole. The financial
3.2 the
sensitivities estimated by the Group.

statements note disclose

Our results

We found the carrying amount of PPE and
ROUAs, and the related impairment charge
to be acceptable (2022; acceptable).

Defined benefit
pension schemes
{Gross liability
estimation and

valuation of level 3
assets)

Net £101.9 mitlion

pension deficit
{2022: £473.5
million pension
surplus)

Refer to page 81
{accounting policy}
and pages 82 to 91
{financiaf
disclosures)

Subjective valuation

level of estimation is

in order to determine the

A significant
required
valuation of the gross liability. Small
changes in the key assumptions (in
particular, discount rates, inflation and
mortality rates) can have a material
impact on the gross liability.

In addition, within the pension asset
portfolio are a number of assets whose
valuation require significant judgement
as a
unavailable (level 3 assets). Certain of
these include assets for which a net asset
valuation {("NAV") is not readily available
additional audit
procedures are necessary given the

result of quoted prices being

and therefore

nature of the valuation.

The asset classes where significant audit
effort and judgement was focused were
investment properties,
investments and infrastructure funds
{non-NAV priced valuations).
holdings together represented £1,926m
{(2022:  £2,260m)
substantial proportion of assets are
stated at a non-NAV priced valuation.

private equity

Level 3

out of which a

Our procedures included:

We performed the tests below rather than
seeking to rely on any of the Group's
controls because the nature of the balance
is such that we would expect to obtain
audit evidence primarily through the
detailed procedures described.

- Assessing assumptions: We used our
actuarial specialists to challenge the key
assumptions defined benefit
obligation (in particular, the discount rate,
inflation and mortality rates). This involved
comparing the assumption to available
market data and our expectations based on

used for

the scheme profile.

- Assessing base data: We assessed
whether the data used in the current year
defined benefit
consistent with that prepared at the triennial
valuation as at 31 March 2022. We used our
actuarial the
methodology used to roll-forward the results
of the triennial valuation as at 31 March
2022,

obligation valuation is

specialists to challenge
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC (CONTINUED])

The risk

Our response

Net defined benefit
obligation
{continued)

The effect of these matters is that, as part
of our risk assessment for audit planning
purposes, we determined that the value
of the gross defined henefit obligation
and level 3 pension asset has a high
degree of estimation uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasonable outcomes
greater than our materiality for the
financial statements as a whole.

The financial statements (note 6.1.5)
disclose the sensitivity estimated by the
Group.

Our procedures for level 3 assets included:

- Substantive tests of detail: We assessed
historical accuracy of valuations for a sample
of assets to help inform whether current
valuations were appropriate, Additionally,
we obtained direct confirmations from third
party fund managers to support the
valuation of assets stated in the financial
statements.

in addition, for non-NAV price valued assets
we performed the following additional
procedures:

- Qur valuation expertise: For property
assets, we used our own property valuation
specialist to assess the key inputs and
assumptions used by external valuers by
reference to our own market and industry
banchmarks.

- Methodology choice: We have assessed
the pricing model methodclogies used with
reference to the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors for property and the International
Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation
(IPEV) or
accounting framework for private equity
investments, private credit and
infrastructure funds included in plan assets.

guidance applicable financia!

funds

- Assessing disclosures: We considered the
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of the sensitivity of the defined
benefit obligation to these assumptions and
disclosure of estimation uncertainty over the
valuation of level 3 pension assets.

Our results

We found the valuation of the Defined

benefit pension schemes [Gross liability
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC (CONTINUED)

estimation and valuation of level 3 assets) to
be acceptable (2022: acceptable).

The risk

Our response

Recoverability of
parent Company's
investment in
subsidiaries

(£929.3 million;
2022: £809.2
million)

Refer to Page 103
{accounting
policies) and Page
107 ({financial
disclosures)

Low risk, high value

The carrying amount of the parent
Company’s investment in subsidiaries
amount to £929.3 million (?022: £809.2
million). Their recoverability is not at a
high risk of significant misstatement or
subject to significant judgement.

However, due to their materiality in the
context of the parent Company financial
statements, this is considered to be the
area that had Lhe greatest effort on our
overall parent Company audit.

Our procedures included:

We performed the tests below rather than
seeking to rely on any of the Company's
controls because the nature ot the balance
is such that we would expect to obtain
audit evidence primarily through the
detailed procedures described.

- Test of details: We compared the
carrying values of the investment in
subsidiary and debt due from the group
entities with the net assets of the
refevant subsidiary included within the
group consolidation, to identify whether
the net asset values of the subsidiaries,
being an approximation of its minimum
recoverahle amount, were in excess of
their carrying amount.

- Assessing subsidiary audits:
Assessing the work performed over the
subsidiaries and considering the results of
the work on those subsidiaries” profit and

net assets.
Our results
We found that the carrying amount of the

investment and the related impairment charge to
be acceptable {2022: acceptable).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC (CONTINUED)

3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set at £22 million {2022: £14.5 million},
determined with reference to a benchmark of Group revenue {as disclosed in note 2.1} of which it represents
0.21% {2022: 0.13%).

We consider total revenue to be the most appropriate benchmark as it provides a more stable measure year on
year than profit before tax.

Materiality for the parent Company financial statements as a whole was set at £19.75 million (2022: £12.3
million), determined with reference to a benchmark of Company total assets, of which it represents 0.46% (2022:
0.2%}.

In line with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual account balances and disclosures were
performed to a lower threshold, performance materiality, so as to reduce to an acceptable level the risk that
individually immaterial misstatements in individual account balances add up to a material amount across the
financial statements as a whole.

Performance materiality was set at 75% {2022: 75%) of materiality for the financial statements as a whole, which
equates to £16.5 million (2022: £10.9) for the Group and £14.8 million {2022: £38.2 million} for the parent
Company. We applied this percentage in our determination of performance materiafity because we did not
identify any factors indicating an elevated level of risk.

We agreed to report to the Audit and Risk Committee any corrected or uncarrected fdentified misstatements
exceeding £1.0 million (2022: £0.725 million), in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds. Of the Group’s 18 (2022: 18) reporting components, we subjected 6 (2022: 6)
to full scope audits for Groups purposes, and 1 component {2022: 1) was subjected to specified risk-focused
audit procedures. The latter was not individually significant enough to require a full scope audit for Group
purposes but did present specific individual risks that needed to be addressed over Claims paid and Outstanding
loss reserve.

The components within the scope of our work accounted for the following percentages: 98% of total revenue
[2022: 99%), 86% of total assets (2022: 86%) and 83% of profit before tax (2022: 84%). The remaining 2% of total
revenue (2022: 1%), 14% total assets (2022 14%) and 17% of profit before tax {2021: 13%) is represented by 11
reporting components (20621: 11}, none of which individually represented more than 5% (2022: 5%} of Group
revenue, Group total assets or Group profit before tax. For these residual components, we performed analysis
at an aggregated Group level to re-examine our assessment that there were no significant risks of material
misstatement within these.

The Group team instructed component auditors as to the significant areas to be covered, including the refevant
risks detailed above and the information to be reported back. The Group team approved the component
materialities, which ranged from £1 million to £19.8 million {2022: 0.7 million to 12.3 million), having regard to
the mix of size and risk profile of the Group across the components. The work on 1 of the 7 components (2022:
1 6f the 7 companents) was performed by component auditors and the rest, including the audit of the parent
Company, was performed by the Group team.

We were able ta rely upon the Group's internal control over financial reporting In several areas of our audit,
where our controls testing supported this approach, which enabled us to reduce the scope of our substantive
audit work; in the other areas the scope of the audit work performed was fully substantive

In working with component auditors, we have held planning calls to discuss the areas of the audit relevant to
the component. We issued group audit instructions to the component auditor on the scope of their work. We
have conducted video conference mestings to discuss the findings reported to the Group team.
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4 Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liguidate the Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the Group’s
and the Company’'s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no
material uncertainties that could have cast sighificant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for
at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the gaing concern period”).

We used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the general economic environment to identify the
inherent risks to its business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group’s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period. The risk that we considered most likely to adversely
affect the Group’s available financial resources over this period was weaker than expecled trading performance.

We considered whether this risk could plausibly affect the liguidity or covenant compliance in the going coencern
period by assessing the degree of downside assumption that, individually and collectively, could result in a
liquidity issue, taking into account the Group’s current and projected cash and facilities (a reverse stress test).

We also assessed the completeness of the going concern disclosure.

Our conclusions based on this work:

* we consider that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate.

* we have not identified, and concur with the Directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
or Company's ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period; and

* we found the going concern disclosure in note 1.1.1 to be acceptable.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may resultin cutcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions
are not a guarantee that the Group or the Company will continue in operation.

5. Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud
To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure te commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:
® Fnquiring of Directors, the audit and risk committee, internal audit, legal counsel and inspection of
policy documentation as to the Group’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud,
including the internal audit function, and the Group's channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as whether
they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.
Reading Board, Audit and Risk Committee and Remuneration Committee meeting minutes.
Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.
We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audit. This included communication from the Group audit team to the component audit
team of relevant fraud risks identified at the Group level and request to the component audit team to report to
the Graup audit team any instances of fraud that could give rise te a material misstatement at the Group level.
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As reguired by auditing standards, we performed procedures to address the risk of management override of
cantrols, in particular the risk that Group management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting
entries and the risk of bias in accounting estimates and judgements such as impairment and pension
assumptions. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because there
is limited perceived pressure on management to achieve an expected revenue target and limited opportunity to
commit fraud.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC {CONTINUED)

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.
We performed procedures including:

& |dentifying journal entries to test for all full scope components based on risk criteria and comparing the
identified entries to supporting documentation. These included those posted by senior management,
journals posted by irregular users to irregular account and post close journals.

® Assessing significant accounting estimates for bias.

Identifying and responding to risks of moterial misstatement related to complionce with lows ond regulotions

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through our discussion with the
Directors, and other management (as required by auditing standards, and discussed with the Directors and other
management the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

As the Company is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the control
environment including the entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory requirements.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications
of non-compliance throughout the audit. This included communication fram the Group audit team to the
component audit team of relevant laws and regulations identified at the group level, and a request for the
component auditor to report to the Group audit team any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation
that couid give rise to a material misstatement at the Group fevel.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
finanicial reporting tegistation (including related companies tegislation}, distributable profits legistation, pensions
tegislation and taxation legisiation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as
part of cur procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect;
health and safety, General Data Protection Regulation {GDPR), fraud bribery and corruption, environmental
protection legislation, expart control, Consumer Rights Act, Competition Law, Food Standards Act and
employment law recognising the nature of the Group'’s activities. Auditing standards limit the required audit
procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the Directors and other
management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational
regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

We discussed with the Audit and Risk Committee matters related to actual or suspected breaches of laws and
regulations, for which disclosure is not necessary, and considered any implications for our audit.
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Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC {CONTINUED}

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

In addition, a5 with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may invalve
collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controis. Qur audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-
compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

6. We have nothing to report on the other information in the Annual report

The Dircctars are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the
financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financiat
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements
in the other information.

Strategic report and Directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other information:
we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report.
® in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the

financial statements; and
e inour opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

7. We have nothing to report on the other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adeguate for our

audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
e the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or
certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

126



kPG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHN LEWIS PLC {CONTINUED}

B. Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 116, the Directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the financial statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and parent Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as appiicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK} wili always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected tc influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is  provided on the FRCs website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

9. The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members
thase matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by faw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’'s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Nicholas Frost

{Senior Statutory Auditor]

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square, London, E14 5GL

28 April 2023
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